Phoenix Journal #188



By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Table Of Contents

FOREWORD	
TUE., NOV. 12, 1996	1
YOU WANT A REVELATOR	1
CHAPTER 1	
CHECK OUT YOUR NUMBERS—AGAIN	
OUT OF AFRICA—WITHOUT ROBERT REDFORD	7
A GLOBAL APPARATUS	9
CRAIG WILLIAMSON	
MARIO RICCI, P-2, AND THE KNIGHTS OF MALTA	
CHAPTER 2	
POCANTICO HILLS CONFABS	
RULING CLASSES UNITE	
PICKING POLICYMAKERS	
STRANGE VIEWS OF GROUP'S FOUNDER ZBIGNIEW BRZEZINSKI	
ROCKEFELLER CENTER—SOUTH	19
CUT AND DRIED	
CARTER FILLED POSITIONS WITH TC MEMBERS	
TC AGENDA CARRIED OUT	
CHAPTER 3	
THREE FRONT GROUPS COMPARED	
THE COUNCIL ON FOREIGN RELATIONS	
THE BILDERBERG GROUP	
TRILATERAL COMMISSION	
VETS WANT INQUIRY	
SPOTLIGHTERS NOT SURPRISED AT EASTERN EUROPEAN EVENTS	
TRILATERALISTS SAY: 'TOO MUCH DEMOCRACY'	
INVESTIGATION SCARES SOLONS	
TRILATERAL MEMBERS SURROUND CLINTON	
CHAPTER 4	
LAST-MINUTE ELECTION THOUGHTS	
CHAPTER 5	
LIFE HAPPENS and so, too, do elections	
EGYPT	
RUMORS AND RUMORS OF RUMORS	
GEORGE BUSHAND THE 12333 SERIAL MURDER RING	
PROPAGANDA TWO	
RICCI AND WILLIAMSON	
ON THE GMR (Giovanni Mario Ricci) GROUP	
DEALING WITH 'PROBLEMS'	
THE TELEGRAM	
CHAPTER 6	45

RAYELAN RUSSBACHER/AND GLOBAL SCIENCES	47
BO GRITZ	48
THE ISRAELI CONNECTION	49
GUNS-FOR-IVORY	50
TINY ROWLAND	51
OPERATION LOCK	51
CHAPTER 7	55
A WISE OLD SAYING	55
A LONG TRAIN OF ABUSES	57
AFGHANIS AND OTHER TRAINING	59
THE 'MINISTRY OF PROPAGANDA'	61
CHAPTER 8	65
FRI., NOV. 8, 1996	65
YOU ARE NOW "IN" THE NEW WORLD ORDER	65
"THE" TEACHER SAID REGARDING LAWS	67
GOVERNMENT POST RESIGNATIONS Christopher	68
DONALD GREGG AND WALTER RAYMOND	68
SHULTZ PROTESTS	69
MILITARY PSY-OPS	69
PUBLIC DIPLOMACY TARGETS EUROPE	70
OTHER PRIORITIES	71
'GET LA ROUCHE'	74
CHAPTER 9	78
NEVER MIND "E.T.s"	
A BIGGER CROOK THAN MICHAEL MILKEN	79
THE GAIA MYTH AND ECO-FASCISM	80
THE OLOF PALME ASSASSINATION AND COVER-UP, REVISITED	
SAFE TO DO BUSINESS AGAIN	83
CHAPTER 10	85
PART VI MORE FROM: FIRE FROM THE SKY	85
[QUOTING, PART 40:] FIRE FROM THE SKY, PART VI	
THE KILLING CONTINUES by Calvin Burgin	85
THE OKLAHOMA BOMBINGS AND THE RADIOACTIVE COVER-UP	85
SHERMAN H. SKOLNICK	86
NORMAN R. AUGUSTINE	86
WILLIAM JAMES PERRY	89
GENERAL GEORGE S. BROWN	92

FOREWORD

REC #1 HATONN TUE., NOV. 12, 1996 7:44 A.M. YR.10, DAY 088

TUE., NOV. 12, 1996

YOU WANT A REVELATOR

In our search for Truth I often feel that I become an Advertising Agency when you want a REVELATOR of unknown, unheard and unseen things. Why? Because you can more easily DISCOUNT information in which you have no confirmation or backup, if it more effectively pleases your senses.

Well, sorry readers, I am NOT a "revelator". I simply reveal Truth so that YOU can set your lives toward right directions and choices. I am NOT a "Christian"—I am a CHRIST—ian. I revere GOD in Goodness, Truth, and Being.

Even though I ask you readers to NOT question me about channels and another's product of information—I am continually badgered about one or another of the speakers on your place as you brush interchanges with them. I am again most recently asked about one Tuella.

"What do you think about Tuella?" I am asked. I don't! I observe that much of Tuella's early work was quite valid and so too does that mean much is now valid. However, a few years back she "was had" by a quite physical, human, cheating, lying con-man who presented as Vegan, the illegitimate SON of Commander Ashtar. Vegan met with Tuella, captivated her imagination, and she became the ONLY place that, for a handsome fee (\$\$\$), you could write in and get personal readings.

Readers, REASON and good sense would tell you this COULD NOT be true in identification if you believed ANYTHING "else" the speaker told you. Why do you demand to have unseen energies to worship and human physical impersonators to "prove" something? NEITHER IS APPROPRIATE. YOU MUST REALIZE TRUTH FROM THE FACTS WHICH PRESENT, AND WE AS THE GUIDES AND TEACHERS MUST PRESENT THE REALITY OF WHAT HAS HAPPENED SO THAT YOU CAN AWAKEN FROM THE INDUCED STUPOR FOISTED OFF ON YOU AS UNSUSPECTING BEINGS.

Because "MIND" and "thought" is all there is, you have to understand that you become exactly what you "think". So, in order to enslave you, it is a requirement that you be given programmed "thoughts" so that you BECOME what is desired by the unGodly beings working for God's adversary.

May I please share with you portions of a book, *The Illuminati Formula Used to Create an Undetectable Total Mind Controlled Slave*, by Fritz Springmeier and Cisco Wheeler? I only wish to now use excerpts from the "Introduction by Fritz".

You have, readers, the perfect EXAMPLE of a living being having undergone the worst kind of Monarch

Mind Warp in Cathy O'Brien and even she and Mark Phillips, her deprogrammer, are stunned at how large the problem remains. And these are only examples of the extreme programs. The daily barrage of programming to you-the-people is far more blatant, yet subtle, in presentation. But it works for the Evil-pretenders-to-the Throne of the New World Order through the Illumaniti as this group of Elites came to label themselves.

[QUOTING:]

There are many dangers to the human race, some real and some imagined. I believe that the traumabased mind control which this book exposes is the greatest danger to the human race. It gives evil men the power to carry out any evil deed totally undetected.

[H: Ah, you might argue that there is no "trauma-based" anything foisted off on you. Oh? When you can't have health care; when your babies are hooked on drugs; when you become hooked on drugs; when your stability is removed, your welfare withdrawn, your job lost, your income gone, your physical beings are sick, and on and on—THAT IS TRAUMA OF THE WORST KIND FOR IT IS NEVER RECOGNIZED. When a loving man, who is desperate to get food and health care to a bleeding and hungry child—can't—is this not the worst kind of trauma and torture? When a man then moves away to leave because he can't survive in his setting—is this not CONTROL? What will happen to all those LEFT without welfare? If they become state property they will simply be molded into more submissive slaves or tools for disruption to organized and peaceful community. How many men leave the woman to fend for herself and babies which he has fathered? Now think about it, readers—be honest—how many? It is not the "lower class" who perpetrates this—it happens right before your eyes as there are "affairs" and the male just takes off somewhere to his own life and discards, to the winds, his responsibilities. Perhaps he never stops "caring" or "loving" or whatever—but the results are the same—severe trauma to those trying to survive in a world of hurt. I might add that within a goodly person that guilt will reside the rest of his conscious days, in one form or another. Those kinds of DEBTS can't ever be repaid, even in money—but survival funds would certainly have helped.

Many of these men will say, "Oh, but I knew she/he would do ok!" Oh? How knowest thou that? They are simply not there to see the pain, hunger, load of responsibility, hurt, welfare acceptance, digging to survive, and finally, making it or breaking from the pressures. Neither do the offspring or ones left ever forget or trust again—even if they forgive and carry on with their individual lives. This usually leaves an equally unbalanced second family, as guilt deprives the children of such unions without that which they can have, because the debt is still due and owing to the original seed. Ah, readers, it is truly a painful pathway as you drift further into the morass of a world gone nuts.]

By the time the astute reader finishes this book, they will be as familiar with how to carry out traumabased mind control as some of the programmers. Ancient and more recent secrets will no longer be secrets. [H: Hopefully, you will also come to know how to carry out DEPROGRAMMING.]

The centerpiece of these organizations is the trauma-based mind control that they carry out. Without the ability to carry out this sophisticated type of mind control using MPD [Multiple Personality Disor-

der], drugs, hypnosis and electronics and other control methodologies, these organizations would fail to keep their dark evil deeds secret. When one of the mind-control programmers of the Church of Scientology, who has left Scientology, was asked about MPD, he said, "It's the name of the game of mind control."

[H: Ekkers, in their never-ending badgering by such as Green, et al., are accused of not only mind-warping practices such as Doris bringing into total control a whole audience of unsuspecting captives, she is also classified as a Multiple Personality Disorder person by such notable authorities of lying speakings as Ann Beam, who has written to lawyers, judges and newspapers this edict. The facts are that Doris Ekker is neither of the above. Doris becomes one of the most effective DEPROGRAMMERS on your globe. Why? Because we deal in truth of both actuality and circumstance. There is never any deviation from the concept of truth in happenings from this chair—not now or ever. How can you learn to discern? KNOW ALLYOU CAN ABOUT THE INFORMATION AND THE PEOPLE (SPEAKERS). IF THE SPEAKER GIVES YOU MULTIPLE STORIES ABOUT ANYTHING—BE SUSPICIOUS. Our stories NEVER change except as memory may fail and omit something—but will never invent anything. "They", especially Green and his agent, Beam, invent a new story to tell each time the scenario is laid forth. This means that, at the least, only one tale can be correct and, more likely, NONE OF THE TALES ARE EVEN REMOTELY CLOSE TO TRUTH. So it comes to you who would be trying to discern: Who might be the truthbearer and who might be the lying cheat with ultimate motives of getting something for the agony produced? And WHO gets the money? The lawvers!]

Research into this subject will never be complete. The book has tried to give a comprehensive view of how the programming is done. The basic techniques were developed in German, Scottish, Italian, and English Illuminati families and have been done for centuries. [H: Indeed, you now come full circle to the some 13 families who control the world through their power through THAT CONTROL. GO READ THE *PROTOCOLS OF ZION* AND YOU WILL FIND THE METHODOLOGY FOR THE MASS CONTROL OF SOCIETIES AND NOT JUST INDIVIDUALS.]

Some of the techniques go all the way back to ancient Egypt and ancient Babylon to the ancient mystery religions. The Nazis are known to have studied ancient Egyptian texts in their mind-control research. The records and secrets of the generational Illuminati bloodlines are very-well guarded secrets. Even when I've learned about the location of secret depositories of some of the Illuminati's secrets in Europe, America, and Asia, their records and secrets are too well-guarded to be examined.

The intelligence agencies, such as MI-6, began investgating these mind-control techniques early this century, but their records have been routinely destroyed and tampered with. There are some survivors and professionals who know that the British used programmed trauma-based MPD (DID) agents in WW-1. In Jan, 1987, Richard Kluft submitted an article to the *American Journal of Clinical Hypnosis* about 8 MPD patients who were between 60 and 72 years of age.

Traugott Konstantin Oesterreich (1880-1949), who was professor of philosophy at Tubingen University, Germany, studied MPD and demonic possession and wrote a classic study of it in 1921 entitled *Possession Demonical & Other*, which was translated into English in 1930. His classic work on this subject provides documented cases which reveal that the basic trauma-based mind control was going on in Germany, France and Belgium long before the 20th century. Although he is unable to put together all the

pieces and the clues for what they are, the reader of this book might enjoy reading the 1930 English translation of his classic work....

The Germans and Italians under the Nazi and Fascist governments began to do serious scientific research into trauma-based mind control. Under the auspices of the Kaiser Wilhelm Medical Institute in Berlin, Joseph Mengele conducted mind-control research on thousands of twins, and thousands of other hapless victims. Himmler supervised genetic research.

[H: Please note that the Nazi-Fascist units and ruling power—were from the lineage of the ANTI-CHRIST/GOD groupings of humanoids. The ultimate leaders of these experiments were Khazarian "false" Jews calling themselves originally, THE SERPENT PEOPLE (RACE). This "serpent" is even reflected in the logos of the so-called medical profession.

While you are trying and trying to figure out WHO IS WHO—it becomes VERY SIMPLE; there is Christ-ness and non-Christ-ness. If that which is non-Christ-ness is the practice of a person—he is NOT OF CHRIST/GOD. You don't have to "figure" and "calculate" further. All you have to do is learn to live beside the individual WITHOUT BECOMING THE INDIVIDUAL OR ACCEPTING HIS EVIL CONCEPTS. Remember that "evil" (the term) is simply the pulling away from the path TO GOODNESS. Sin is defined AS ERROR DISTRACTING FROM THE PATHWAY TO TRUTH AND GOODNESS.]

[END OF QUOTING]

I don't wish to further belabor the subject in this "Foreword" but over the next weeks we will be delving into these subjects quite deeply. We will also be thanking these same authors for their research into the 13 families and the sharing of that information. The one thing the Evil Empire cannot endure—IS LIGHT AND TRUTH SHOWN UPON THEM.

The most DANGEROUS TOOLS of these manipulators are the *Bible* Thumpers who distort truth to suit the needs of the controllers while YOU pounce on anyone who denies that all in such "*Bibles*" is absolute truth but simply might, as well, be manipulated to suit the needs of the preachers' controllers. **CHRIST IS FREEDOM, NOT DOGMA OR DOCTRINE!**

I find that you look repeatedly for definitions or concepts of THE ONE, (ATON). You pronounce that entity as non-existent, an Egyptian Fable and thus and so while your preachers ramble on and on about "some" God and "some" Christ by their favorite names. No, "Aton" is the symbol, the definition of "THE ONE"—IN THIS INSTANCE, LIGHT OR SOURCE. It is, indeed, an ancient Egyptian term and was usually represented as the "source" or the "Sun" without which life could not flourish.

I want you to watch WHAT YOU THINK AND DO AS CHRISTMAS APPROACHES! ALL OF YOU: SEE WHAT YOU THINK AND WHAT YOU DO!

No indeed, I do not wish to destroy the one time of the year when you turn to some sort of goodness in expression in a human setting. BUT WATCH AND EXPERIENCE, REALLY EXPERIENCE, THAT WHICH YOU SEE, HEAR AND DO AT THIS HOLIDAY SEASON—AND SEE IF IT *REALLY REFLECTS GOD AND GOODNESS IN ALL ASPECTS OF THE REPRESENTATION OF*

THE "BIRTHING" OF GOODNESS AS IN A CHILD.

I would add something here that might well be very personal for the very act of which I will speak is ONLY of loving and giving. Dharma receives many cards and letters, gifts of everything from a handkerchief, to a doll or a coin to use in the colloidalizing processing. These are truly what the "thought" is about, readers, for NOBODY HAS TO DO THIS BECAUSE IT IS EITHER EXPECTED, DEMANDED OR NECESSARY. Everyone has their own family to attend; it is a time of over spending anyway, and yet, the loving remembrances that say I Love You are presented. Bless those thoughts and bless you for caring, for otherwise, we have no purpose in continuing our work. We can survive the crises and troubles because of this BROTHERHOOD, this direction in sharing, and TRUTH—simple TRUTH. MAY WE ALWAYS WALK WITH GOD, ALLAH, ATON THAT OUR LIGHT MAY SHINE FORTH.

Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn November 12, 1996

CHAPTER 1

REC #1 HATONN

FRI., NOV. 1, 1996 7:52 A.M. YR.10, DAY 077

FRI., NOV. 1, 1996

CHECK OUT YOUR NUMBERS—AGAIN

A new month comes and simply compounds the prior errors in calendar counting, and so what else is new on Planet Earth-Shan? If something annoys you—just round off to the nearest whole number.

In New York one year there was a major legislation pending to round off the numerical value of "pi" [the ratio of the circumference to the diameter of a circle] because "the fractions were annoying".

Well, readers, the entire calendar counting system is off by thousands of years for all sorts of reasons of which not the least is your counting SYSTEM.

What is all the hoopla about your computers NOW? You don't have any valid way of representing year 2000. So, what will you do—repeat 19__ again?

Something more serious happened in the "B.C./A.D." debacle now called the "Common Era" as there was no Roman Numeral available to represent the "0" (zero) (SUPPOSEDLY Christ's Birth) and therefore the anniversary of that date will have to be celebrated in year 2001. Christ is a "state of being" so at any rate the date would be incorrect just because the CONCEPT is incorrect. And worse, Esu I-E-Jmannuel (the one later called "Jesus") was born in August and not in December.

So what is the hoopla about? Well, there was already a 25th celebration for "Satan" toward the moon ending in or around the 25th December—in whatever year it was ultimately decided for celebration. Oh, it was later called to represent "Saint" something or other but note the letter in your English alphabet: s-a-i-n-t (Satin—as spelled in many countries). This came to be foisted off onto Santa (s-a-n-t-a, Satan as spelled in the U.S.). And worse, "Nick" is a dubbed name for Satan as in (Satin Nick-olas). So, just what do you celebrate at "Christmas"? Mostly all the trappings and traditions of Satanic holiday complete with commercial Zionistic selling and profit-taking from you-the-people. You are not even allowed to longer celebrate, LEGALLY, the Religious or Spiritual aspects through VISUAL settings—in most public places. The candle holder of the Jewish tradition is the accepted replacement which has become the Judeo-Christian heritage. B.S. There IS NO "Judeo-Christian" HERITAGE. The two are OPPOSITES IN THE EXTREME.

So, about Christmas gift giving? Giving is nice ANY DAY OF THE YEAR—TO EXPRESS LOVE AND SHARING. Christmas is a nice time for focusing on the GOOD in life experience—but I wonder how many of you truly find Good, Life, and Joy ANY time? It is NOT in the giving or the celebration—IT IS THE LIE ABOUT THE DATE AND WHAT IT MEANS THAT IS CONFUSING. AND THE PRINCE/

KING OF CONFUSION? SATAN!

I asked Dharma to count the number of cards advertised in a catalog of Christmas Cards to see how many were related to the Spiritual or Religious aspect of the Holiday. Four. Four out of well into the Hundreds. There were more, by far, odes to the Jewish Holiday—but of course, the catalog was an advertisement for a Jewish commercial business.

No, I am NOT knocking anything—I just am called to answer inquiries and this is one of them. You will do whatever you will do, with or without my input. I actually enjoy your warmth and celebrations of family and goodness any time I can find it, anywhere. X-mas is no exception. And yes indeed, "X-mas" is the OFFICIAL abbreviation of Christmas.

This is not the first time there is trauma to the trivial in the minds of mankind. So, if you check it out, you may be off even more than centuries or thousands—you may well be off by zillions! There was such a stink at the end of the 1800s that it became THE big issue of the day, never mind that the Bolsheviks were planning a takeover of the world and swinging into Bankster Big Deal Protocols to see to its fruition in year 2000 when NO ONE WOULD BE ABLE TO READ A CALENDAR ACCURATELY. You would have KNOWN more about it, however, in 1899 than today.

So, what might I have as a comment on this "great" computer dilemma?

"BEFORE GOD WE ARE ALL EQUALLY WISE—EQUALLY FOOLISH."

<u>OUT OF AFRICA—</u> WITHOUT ROBERT REDFORD

I would like to share a notation about a mutual acquaintance out of Africa and note that "Islam" is getting bad press as "Islamic fundamentalists...", etc. Indeed I see a nasty confrontation seething and turning toward Civil War—soon. The interesting thing is that Islam and Moslem are coins of the same realm and it is so unfortunate that the misfits of Earth-Shan can bring this kind of confusion and hatred into the hearts and souls of men.

Never mind, however, for this is not the focus of my little speech—I want YOU to know WE KNOW.

[QUOTING, from a paper we will leave UNNAMED, please:]

SOUTH AFRICA: The South African government has issued an "emergency warning" about what some government officials are describing as the "growing influence of Islam" in that country. According to Reuters news agency, the Islamic "revolution" in South Africa is being led by Islamic fundamentalists who have received **training in Afghanistan, Iran and Libya**.

In August Islamic nationalists hunted down and executed the leader of one of the largest **drug rings** in South Africa. As the drug kingpin was being beaten and readied for execution, crowds of people were cheering the vigilantes on. The Moslem fundamentalists have become heroes in their neighborhoods and this is just the beginning of their effort to eliminate leaders of the drug cartel.

In response the South African government arrested the vigilante leader, while a Moslem member of the government heaped praise on him, causing a conflict in government circles. Another government minister, Bantu Holomisa, was sacked by Nelson Mandela because he accused the ANC (African National Congress) of taking \$400,000 in bribes from Jewish hotel owner Sol Kerzner prior to the 1994 elections.

Kerzner is the Jew who founded and opened a gambling area in the Transkei called Sun City (Sin City). While the apartheid government was in power, Kerzner made it possible for those who wished to engage in interracial sexcapades to be able to do so by driving across the border from South Africa into Transkei's Sun City. [H: I'm sure there would not be sexcapades without Kerzner—aren't you? After all, he probably hog-tied those sexcapaders and dragged them into the brothels. Do you see: anything to keep you distracted and off-balance and cause the culprits of the acts of immorality to not be responsible for their own choices!]

At the time he gave the \$400,000 contribution to the ANC, Kerzner was under investigation by the government of the Transkei which claimed that he had bribed some members of the Transkei tribal government when he obtained his casino license. Watch for the conflict between the Islamic fundamentalists in South Africa and the pro-Jewish faction of the Mandela government to grow in the near future. The growing number of Islamic fundamentalists in the South African government and the rapidly growing Islamic movement in that country will eventually cause a major conflict between those who are Islamic and oppose the Jews and those like Mandela who have cooperated with the Jews in the past. Mandela and others who are pro-Jewish will soon have to choose between the Jews and the growing number of Moslems in the country. Also, don't rule out a possible alliance between Afrikaneer nationalists and Islamic fundamentalists in the future.

[END OF QUOTING]

No, I don't have much further comment on the above other than this is simply the way things ARE here and there around the globe. However, it is a typical way to get the business away from the owners as is equally practiced all over the world causing people to flee to cover-safety in other locales. Sun City is simply another sin city on the pattern of Las Vegas, Atlantic City, etc. It also proves the Elite plan to have Africa as their own relax-and-recreate playground. It is likewise amazing how many of these businessmen have valid connections which are rarely seen by the "people" and, in addition, why so little publication information is available on the real nitty-gritty of the circles of power or funding.

I do have to remind you readers, ALL: Money is not good or bad—only MAN is good or bad and money is valid for use of "money", "currency", whatever, as exchange (barter) for opportunities for use. Who is at fault in the above scenario, for instance, of "Sin City"—the man who built it for whatever reason (usually more money possibilities) OR THE PEOPLE WHO CHOOSE TO UTILIZE THE OPPORTUNITIES PROVIDED BY THE CITY? Are the "funds" in point or the morality of USE OF THIS FACILITY? Mankind seems to blame the provider of opportunity, just as he blames the messengers for the truth when all that is supplied is the CHOICE. MORALITY CANNOT BE LEGISLATED! MORALITY IS WITHIN THE HEART OF INDIVIDUAL BEING.

My attention to the Palme murder and the connections to Africa brought wondrous response immediately from our African friends and colleagues. They know all about this and ask that I continue to further offer

more. Well, I will only offer what has been offered elsewhere because I like my people nice and secure as well as the next commander. However, what you need to realize is that the nasty operations of the few really nasty networks are global—not locked into Watts in Los Angeles, California, U.S.A. Moreover, it is CURRENTLY IN OPERATION AND FIGHTING FOR TAKEOVER OF THE GLOBE!

You need a bit more background before I can launch off into a reasonable dissertation of these CON-NECTIONS, so giving full credit to *EIR Special Report: George Bush and the 12333 Serial Murder Ring*, October 1996:

[QUOTING, we continue on page 3...]

AGLOBAL APPARATUS

Williamson and White were not merely hit-men for the apartheid regime in South Africa. By the mid1980s, when the Palme assassination plot unfolded, both men were in the middle of a largely Britishsponsored smuggling and mercenary apparatus, running up into the highest echelons of what is known as
the Club of the Isles, the European financier oligarchy that controls much of the world supply of strategic
raw materials, petroleum, arms, explosives, and black market commodities such as narcotics. At this time,
this apparatus was enjoying the total backing of the Thatcher government in Britain, and the Reagan-Bush
administration's "secret parallel government" structure, headed, out of the White House, by Vice President
George Bush. Both Thatcher and Bush were assets of various factions of the Club of the Isles, and remain
so today.

Not only was this Club of the Isles-run apparatus flooding the Persian Gulf with weapons. Similar flows of arms were stoking conflicts all across southern Africa (Angola, Mozambique, Namibia), in Southeast Asia (Cambodia), Central Asia (Afghanistan), and Central America (Nicaragua, El Salvador)—all at an enormous profit to the Club of the Isles.

CRAIG WILLIAMSON

According to published accounts, including an interview with Williamson in the April 19, 1995 London *Observer*, Craig Williamson was recruited in the late 1970s, while a university student, as a spy for the South African security police, and was assigned to infiltrate radical student organizations, especially groups involved in the anti-apartheid struggle. By the late 1970s, Williamson had maneuvered himself into a leadership position in the International University Exchange Fund headquartered in Geneva, a group that specialized in conduiting money to the African National Congress (ANC). Among the other directors of the IUEF, while Williamson was infiltrating the fund, were Swedes Bernt Carlsson and Gunnar Eriksson, both close collaborators of Swedish Social Democratic Party leader, and frequent prime minister, Olof Palme.

In January 1980, Williamson returned to South Africa, along with his security branch boss, Brig. Johan Coutzee. Coutzee would eventually become the national police chief of South Africa. In 1989, he defected to the ANC, and began to spill the beans on some of the most egregious apartheid-era crimes of the National Party. Because of his early break with the National Party, Coutzee is considered to be a very credible source of eyewitness information about the dirty war in southern Africa.

Williamson remained in the security branch as an officer until 1985, when he retired with the rank of major. He immediately joined the South African military intelligence service, and was promoted to the rank of colonel.

While he was still with the security branch, Williamson, by his own admission, participated in a series of terrorist attacks and assassinations, targeted against leading figures in the ANC. Among the crimes to which Williamson confessed were the 1982 assassination of anti-apartheid activist Ruth First, in Maputo, Mozambique; the bombing of the London headquarters of the ANC the same year; and the Lubango, Angola mail-bomb killings of Jeanette Schoon and her six-year-old daughter, Katryn, in 1984. The actual target of the 1984 mail-bomb attack was Marius Schoon, another prominent anti-apartheid activist.

When Williamson switched over to South African military intelligence in 1985, he operated under the cover of several "private" companies, including GMR, an international trading company, founded by Giovanni Mario Ricci (a shadowy figure with whom we will deal later) and an outfit called Longreach. According to South African government sources, Longreach shared offices in Johannesburg with GMR, but also maintained offices in the Isle of Wight, off the coast of England. [H: And don't forget about those enriched, by CIA, Bush, et al., drug funds, oil funds, and other illicit hiding of cold, hard MONEY on the "Cow Islands" off England—you know: Jersey, Guernsey and so on.] These sources report that the British government reached a *modus vivendi* with Longreach, which was known to be a front for South African intelligence. It was all right for Longreach operatives to stalk ANC leaders inside Britain—as they did for years; but it was not acceptable for Longreach to officially operate "on shore", with an office in London. As we shall see, Williamson's ties to British Intelligence, and to senior figures in the City of London financial oligarchy, deepened over time.

During 1985-87, according to De Wet Potgieter, the Pretoria bureau chief for the South African *Sunday Times* who has written a book cataloguing the South African underworld, Longreach employed Anthony White as a director. Official statements by GMR claim that the firm's South African branch was not formally started until sometime in 1986, but other published accounts, backed by sources in South Africa, place the actual start-up date, and the point at which Williamson, White, and Ricci were in collusion, at some time during 1985, at the latest. So, according to these sources, during the 24-month period preceding and following the Palme assassination, White, Williamson, and Ricci were all involved, together, in Longreach.

Longreach's executive director at this time was Michael Irwin, a "former" high-ranking officer in the British Royal Marines. According to the Swedish daily *Aftonbladet*, Irwin functioned as a liaison between British and South African intelligence, via Longreach, to coordinate such activities as the surveillance of anti-apartheid activists, and the breaking of the United Nations embargo against South Africa, through an elaborate smuggling apparatus. The *Aftonbladet* information is consistent with a report from a South African government official, that Longreach was simultaneously operating out of the **Isle of Wight**.

It is here that the role of Giovanni Mario Ricci takes on special significance, and reveals links among Williamson, White, and a European-based criminal infrastructure that figured prominently in some of the most notorious of the **Bush-Thatcher** "secret parallel government" activities of the 1980s.

Ricci, an Italian national, with close ties to the Propaganda Two (P-2) Italian freemasonic lodge, set up

shop on the Seychelles Islands during the mid-1970s. When the island's were taken over by a "Marxist" regime, under President-for-life Albert René, Ricci became the power behind the throne, and rapidly helped transform the Seychelles into a world-class off-shore money-laundering center and tax haven. Ricci's own Seychelles International Bank became the islands' de facto central bank; Ricci, in 1983, arranged for a branch of the Bank of Credit and Commerce International (BCCI) to be opened on Mahe Island; Ricci was made the unofficial chief of the islands' foreign intelligence service; and Ricci's hotel became a safehouse-of-preference for some of Europe's leading financial swindlers and renegade arms merchants, many of whom were involved in aspects of the Thatcher-Bush secret wars.

[H: Now readers, ANYBODY who thinks Robert Dole is NOT JUST A PUPPET OF THE BUSH BRIGADE, THINK AGAIN. My goodness, as frail a reed as is Perot in this election—it IS THE ONLY THING YOU HAVE GOING—FOR YOU. Clinton is a puppet of the same gang but for different reasons, and the Bilderbergers and Dole fit better with the Committee of 300. Take your choice and weep.]

MARIO RICCI, P-2, AND THE KNIGHTS OF MALTA

Africa Confidential, a **London** newsletter often described as being closely affiliated with Britain's MI-5, published a story on the Ricci-Williamson alliance in its April 15, 1987 issue, entitled "South Africa: The network of a Master Spy". Africa Confidential editor Stephen Ellis reported that the Ricci-Williamson collaboration was principally aimed at breaking the South Africa embargo, especially the petroleum embargo.

"Oil exports to South Africa are outlawed by the United Nations," Ellis noted, "although South Africa has previously experienced little difficulty in circumventing this legislation, largely through independent commodity dealers such as Marc Rich. Rich in fact visited the Seychelles in 1984 for talks with local officials and others to discuss a scheme to establish the islands as an oil-dealing entreport, buying cheap from Mexico and re-selling the oil for a profit. Rich is not known to have participated in this plan subsequently. This scheme was the brainchild of Francesco Pazienza, a former employee of the Italian military intelligence service SISMI, and a former consultant to the notorious Banco Ambrosiano. Pazienza, an extraordinary political fixer, is currently on trial in Italy for offences connected with the 1982 collapse of Banco Ambrosiano. Pazienza stayed at Ricci's hotel in the Seychelles when he was on the run from the Italian police in 1984. It was then that he raised the oil scheme which he discussed with other interested parties, including René, Ricci, Rich, and Robert Armao, former aide to the Rockefeller family, spokesman for the late Shah Mohammed Reza Pahlevi of Iran, and friend of Central Intelligence Agency Director William Casey. It appears that Pazienza's 1984 scheme is only now coming to fruition, although not quite as he had planned since Pazienza is in jail and the idea is in the process of being co-opted by Williamson."

Africa Confidential brought up another dimension of the Ricci and Pazienza profiles, one that has significant implications for the sanctions-evading operations, and the under-ground international arms trade. "Among the many achievements in Pazienza's bizarre career was the establishment in New York of a company called the Sovereign Order of St. John, Knights of Malta, Inc. Ricci is officially accredited to the Seychelles as the representative of a phony Christian order of chivalry which he calls by various names at different times, mostly versions of the name Sovereign Order of St. John, Knights of Malta, and it appears

that he was originally recognized as the ambassador of Pazienza's outfit. Ricci's spurious diplomatic status gives him access to a diplomatic bag. Williamson has also joined Ricci's Order of St. John. ...The Seychelles is the only country in the world which has given diplomatic recognition to Ricci's order. He has rendered numerous services to the Seychellois government over a period of years, including supervision of external security and donations to the ruling party. And it was Ricci who, according to President René, masterminded the establishment of the Seychelles as a **tax haven**, a strange development in a Marxist state.

"Williamson's directorship of GMR (South Africa) gives him an association with a remarkable international network in Europe, the Indian Ocean, Somalia and Kenya, where GMR is said to have interests in casinos. An impressive array."

Impressive indeed. The Knights of Malta, both the official Vatican-recognized order, and the many splinter orders, have been long identified as pivotal to the global arms trade. Sam Cummings, the American-born, London-based armaments dealer who founded Interarms, the world's largest "private sector" supplier of weapons, is a longtime member of the Knights of Malta, as was the late CIA director Casey, and American shipping magnate J. Peter Grace. Cummings and Grace were instrumental in the "public diplomacy" efforts, on behalf of the Bush-North secret wars of the 1980s.

But, Ricci's connections to the even more shadowy P-2 Lodge are of equal significance to the reinvigorated Palme probe, with its focus upon the "South Africa connection", Williamson, White, et al.

[END OF QUOTING]

If this seems hard for some of you to follow—stick with us. You will find I don't utilize all of the material because you need to get your own copy of this report.

You are going to find that you can't OVERLOOK some references and we will cover them a bit later, but one you have to attend is the "Train" connection. Also we will cover Mr. Goldsmith's infectious integration with the Plan

One of the Trains, you will recall, was a constant companion to JACQUELINE KENNEDY ONASSIS right up until her sudden and rapidly growing CANCER which took her life! Of course it didn't, but they couldn't easily just "suicide" a former Mrs. Kennedy as they did John-Boy.

John Train, investment banker, writer, Anglophile, spook, is a sort of "red dye", a marker for secret government operations tied to the international killer apparatus centered on GEORGE BUSH and the international explosives cartel. From Sweden to AFRICA, from France to Afghanistan, from London to New York, you will find the tracks of John Train.

JOHN TRAIN: WALL STREET'S MAN IN BUSH'S SECRET GOVERNMENT. Still feel safe in your little election-year whirl of propaganda and who might be running what?

People, you have allowed a nasty little world of evil conspirators to take over. IT IS YOUR CHOICE! And, NO THANK YOU, I have no interest in CLEANING anything "up". You do what you will—I simply want to get God's people through in some semblance of physical and SPIRITUAL wholeness. We

need to do some modicum of realistic building and growing and that won't inconvenience the "big boys" a whit—in fact, it will make them look good a little longer—in your blinded eyes.

And what of those triangular "ships" flying low and indescribably over your heads hither and yon. Indeed, what about them? Well, they DO NOT house "little grey aliens"!

And to you readers of long-standing: YES, we have written all of this PRIOR TO NOW—but many, many readers were not yet aboard and do not realize the tight connections of the players in the Plan—any plan. This is only ONE connection network which is focused so greatly out of and into and through South Africa as to catch the eye of those friends almost as far down-under as is Australia—where the same players lurk in the Bushes.

I CAN WORK WITH MY ENEMY—I DO NOT <u>BECOME</u> MY ENEMY! Try it for self, but perhaps you had best MAKE SURE where your foundation is built and on what footing you take your stand. MINE IS WITH, ON, THROUGH, FOR, AND ALWAYS, ATOP GOD'S OWN TRUTH, LAW, AND REFLECTION. Indeed I can work with anyone for in not becoming "that one" I have no need to break laws, lie, cheat, steal or upset anyone.

Some very, very important breaking information has just come past my request-for-attention-screen. I ask that it be put onto the hot-line POST HASTE. Dharma simply cannot physically cover it all and, in addition, it is too late for next Tuesday's paper as next Tuesday IS the election.

People, it simply doesn't matter what happens on Tuesday—it is FIXED and PLANNED and IS DAS-TARDLY in concept and conclusion. You have been expecting it so why act shocked and, now that it is too late to change it, you are overwhelmed. NOTHING IS DIFFERENT! GET INFORMED. LEARN THE PLAYERS. AND YOU MAY HAVE A CHANCE OF BYSTEPPING THE SCALLYWAGS IF NOTHING ELSE. KEEP THE LAWS FOR YOU CANNOT WIN ANYTHING SAVE INCAR-CERATION OR FIRING SQUAD BY BREAKING THEM AT THIS JUNCTURE IN THE GAME. THE MILITARY BASES, EVERYWHERE, ARE BEING RENOVATED FOR HOUSING ALL YOU DISSIDENTS. CHECK IT OUT—RIGHT OVER, EVEN, IN BARSTOW, CALIFORNIA. Check it out with building contractors in the area who are being hired to do the job. No, they don't know why—they are told it is to update housing, etc. It doesn't even occur to them to ask and most don't even know which bases are actually "closed" for ANY reasons. You are dealing with a BLIND population of people.

"Fighting" a thing is the last way to accomplish anything. By the very term it indicates there has to be a power stronger than the other and GOD does not play in your SILLY GAMES OF GLADIATOR SPORTS. GOD WINS THE *GAME*, AND CARES LITTLE ABOUT THE SKIRMISHES. WARS DO NOT TAKE OUT THE GRANDE PLAYERS—ONLY THE LITTLE GUN FODDER VICTIMS. IN YOUR MILITIA-TYPE ESCAPADES YOU ONLY MANAGE TO TAKE-OUT THE LEADERS OF PATRIOT VALUE.

AND YOU WHO STILL WONDER ABOUT COL. "BO" GRITZ, IT IS A GOOD SAFE PLACE FOR BO RIGHT NOW WHERE HE CAN'T BE ACCUSED OF ANYTHING LIKE PATRIOTISM. THE BIG BOYS NEED HIM IN A SECURE PLACE AS REWARD FOR SERVICES RENDERED. SATAN ALWAYS HAS A WAY TO SURPRISE EVERYONE AND YOU ALWAYS FALL FOR THE

TRICKS, AND SO WHAT ELSE IS NEW?

Thank you for seeing to the hot-line items because we can't keep up from this desk. Salu.

CHAPTER 2

REC #1 HATONN

SUN., NOV. 3, 1996 8:26 A.M. YR.10, DAY 079

SUN., NOV. 3, 1996

AS THIS CIRCUS CONTINUES

I would like, Dharma, to focus on some of the REAL PLAYERS in this foolish game of charades. To do so and to fully bring past non-accessed (to our information) players and readers up to current speed, I need to speak about the Bilderbergers, and more importantly, the Trilateral Commission, and see how these players are integrated within the Committee of 300. This is repetitious and tedious but, if our own team does not know the players, we can't fully develop our strategy or our defenses. Our only intent is to build, develop industrial products for use by citizens, and make sure there is a fundamental holding of TRUTH and ability to reason in Truth and function in physical aspect.

This world game is exactly like a multi-ring circus in that so many things are taking place on the field of play as to be so elusive as to astound and confound. You have to see the activities, recognize the possibilities—but eventually, if you are going to participate in the circus itself—you have to know who runs the thing, plays in the game, is the "Star", and the general "pecking order" in the barnyard. Obviously if you are avoiding confrontation with the goose because of a goose's reputation for biting and you bumble into the real nasty culprit in that barnyard, the setting but gentle-appearing old hen, you have made a nasty mistake and will get a severe flogging.

You nice readers do not even REALIZE that the players you see are not the CONTROLLERS you GET. We are going to lay out some players for you and for all practical purposes they will come through as recognized world leaders—AND YOU WILL NOT KNOW WHETHER THEY ARE CONTROLLED REPLICAS OR THE REAL "McCOY"—or—Rockefeller as the case will be. It doesn't matter at our level of intrigue for the one they present as the "player" may well be a puppet, but you can get the drift of the screenplay just by watching the play unfold.

I am not going to go back to our own dissertations on these topics because most of you didn't get it the first time and you need the confirmation—not revelation—of FACTS. Those facts, in fact, need to be as in confirmed evidence and documentation so that you can KNOW and not simply "assume" because I ask Dharma to type it for me.

From *Spotlight*, as FIRST PRESENTED IN <u>NOVEMBER 1992</u>. This was when the major puppets and puppet-masters were becoming current-day players and continue to impact you TODAY.

We will begin with that Trilateral Commission from Hell and see if you can begin to fit some more major puzzle pieces together on this Sunday before elections in the U.S.

I am asked why I have not made these thrusts BEFORE election so you would have all this? Well, WE HAVE DONE SO OVER AND OVER AND OVER AGAIN—*ALREADY*. Tuesday next doesn't make a whit of real difference—as all the players have fundamentally FIXED the game. If you won't change and take control of your nation and yourself, all the hoopla from here is not going to change an iota of it BEFORE THE FACT. KNOWLEDGE, however, may well allow you some actions AFTER THE FACT WHERE YOU CAN WORK FROM CONSTITUTIONAL LAW.

[QUOTING, PART I:]

THE TRILATERAL COMMISSION

HERE ARE THE PEOPLE WHO WANT TO RULE THE WORLD!

NOT A CONSPIRACY THEORY, BUT A FACT...

Every year since 1973, a handful of the wealthiest and most influential financiers, industrialists, media barons, union bosses and political figures from North America, Western Europe and Japan hold a secret conclave and chart the future of the globe.

The deliberations of this elite group of power brokers, led by David and Laurance Rockefeller, shape the course of world affairs. Yet, few people know that this organization—The Trilateral Commission—exists.

This is no "conspiracy theory". THIS IS A FACT. HERE'S THE FULL STORY OF THE TRILATERAL COMMISSION AND HOW ITS DECISIONS AFFECT YOU.

[H: We will go back and remind you ones of the more distant and earlier established clubs who orchestrate, but here is the layout of the manipulators at levels of international "Circles of Intrigue".]

TRILATERAL COMMISSION: WORLD SHADOW GOVERNMENT?

The Trilateral Commission was established in 1973. Its founder and primary financial angel was international financier, David Rockefeller, longtime chairman of the Rockefeller family-controlled Chase Manhattan Bank and undisputed overlord of his family's global corporate empire. [H: Note the distinction *missing* as this says "Rockefeller" and does not use inclusive terms such as "Rothschilds". This is a major, major CLUE in discerning POWER positions. This does NOT mean these empires do not overlap, nor does it mean that they don't have joint "causes", but you have to know where the chinks in the armor are borne by the armor in place ON THE PLAYER INDIVIDUAL.]

d. & I rockefeller

Rockefeller's idea for establishing the commission emerged after he had read a book entitled *Between Two Ages* written by an Establishment scholar, Prof. Zbigniew Brzezinski [H: Not his given name.] of Columbia University.

In his book Brzezinski proposed a vast alliance between North America, Western Europe, and Japan. According to Brzezinski, changes in the modern world required it. [H: I will give you a short insert regarding Brzezinski because this is one of the most "important" men in conceptual world "order" control. If you have not studied this man's insipid book, please do so and weep, for it is more of a structure of happenings than could even compare to the insight of Orwell.]

mondale & brzezinski

"Resist as it might," Brzenzinski wrote elsewhere, "the American system is compelled gradually to accommodate itself to this emerging international context, with the U.S. government called upon to negotiate, to guarantee, and, to some extent, to protect the various arrangements that have been contrived even by private business."

In other words, it was necessary for the international upper class to band together to protect its interests, and to ensure, in the developed nations, that political leaders were brought to power who would ensure that the global financial interests (of the Rockefellers and the other ruling elites) would be protected over those of the hoi polloi.

POCANTICO HILLS CONFABS

Although the initial arrangements for the commission were laid out in a series of meetings held at the Rockefellers' famous Pocantico Hills estate outside New York City, Rockefeller first introduced the idea of the commission at an annual meeting of the Bilderberg group, this one held in Knokke, Belgium in the spring of 1972.

(The Bilderberg group is similar to the Trilateral Commission in that it is funded and heavily influenced by the Rockefeller empire, and composed of international financiers, industrialists, media magnates, union bosses, academics and political figures.

(The Trilateral Commission was unique, though, in that it brought the Japanese ruling elite into the inner councils of the global power brokers, a recognition of Japan's growing influence in the world economic and political arena...)

RULING CLASSES UNITE

[H: Please pay attention here as you watch the coalitions being formed among these Elite groups.]

"The Commission's purpose is to engineer an enduring partnership among the ruling classes of North America, Western Europe and Japan—hence the term 'Trilateral'—in order to safeguard the interests of Western capitalism in an explosive world. The private commission is attempting to mold public policy and construct a framework for international *stability* in the coming decades. [H: For THEM, that is!]

"To put it simply, Trilateralists are saying: 'The people, governments and economies of all nations must serve the needs of multinational banks and corporations.'

"In short, Trilateralism is the current attempt by ruling elites to manage both dependence and democracy—at home and abroad."

Another Trilateral critic, now retired Sen. Barry Goldwater (R-Ariz.), views the commission as a Rockefeller family operation through and through. According to Goldwater:

The Trilateral organization created by David Rockefeller was a surrogate—the members selected by Rockefeller, its purposes defined by Rockefeller, its funding supplied by Rockefeller. David Rockefeller screened and selected every individual who was invited to participate." [H: Yes indeed, even Henry Kissinger!]

PICKING POLICYMAKERS

David Rockefeller and Brzezinski then began the process of selecting from among the "Trilateral" nations the several hundred elite power brokers who would be permitted to join in Trilateral policymaking in the coming years.

One of the commission's primary goals was to place a Trilateral-influenced president in the White House in 1976, and to achieve that goal it was necessary to groom an appropriate candidate who would be willing to cooperate with Trilateral aims.

Rockefeller and Brzezinski selected a handful of well-known liberal Democrats and a scattering of Republicans (primary of the liberal-internationalist bent) to serve on the commission.

And in an effort to give regional balance to the commission Rockefeller invited the then-obscure one-term Democratic governor of Georgia, Jimmy Carter, to join the commission.

[H: I think it better to insert the information regarding Brzezinski at this point so you can see the *vision* as it would take place.]

STRANGE VIEWS OF GROUP'S FOUNDER ZBIGNIEW BRZEZINSKI

[H: Don't EVER forget the thrust this man had in favoring SOVIETISM. In this I refer to the

Khazarian Communism of the SOVIET Union as was formed through the "Jewish" element which could later become recognized as a form of Israeli Khazarianism—ANTI-GOD, ANTI-CHRIST.]

The strange views of the Trilateral Commission's founding director, Columbia University Prof. Zbigniew Brzezinski, say much about the unusual political orientation of the commission and its leadership.

Brzezinski outlined his views in his book *Between Two Ages*, published shortly before, in 1973, he set the Trilateral Commission in motion at the instruction of his patron David Rockefeller.

[H: Before we finish our series on these topics you will see WHY it was necessary to "take-out" and REPLACE all the major players in this game in order to render coalition within that ANTI-GOD NEW WORLD ORDER! We have written on the focus of Brzezinski and events surrounding the "taking-out" of the Rockefeller "brothers" and the surprise demise of one Henry Kissinger and Nancy, immediately following his giving of Nelson Rockefeller's eulogy. That is not the focus here so we will not take it up in repetition again at this time, please.]

Rockefeller had read Brzezinski's book and was impressed with its contents. It was this book that inspired Rockefeller to create the Trilateral Commission.

Here are a number of selections from the book that proved to be the genesis of the commission:

- * "Though Stalinism may have been a needless tragedy for both the Russian people and Communism as an ideal, there is the intellectually tantalizing possibility that for the world at large it was, as we shall see, a blessing in disguise."
- * "Marxism represents a further vital and creative stage in the maturing of man's universal vision. Marxism is simultaneously a victory of the external, active man over the inner, passive man and a victory of reason over belief."
- * "The Soviet Union could have emerged as the standard-bearer of this century's most influential system of thought and as the social model for resolving the key dilemmas facing modern man."
- * Marxism "supplied the best available insight into contemporary reality. Marxist theory [is] this century's most influential system of thought."
- * "The approaching 200th anniversary of the *Declaration of Independence* could justify the call for a national Constitutional Convention TO RE-EXAMINE THE NATION'S FORMAL INSTITUTIONAL FRAMEWORK."

Brzezinski, of course, went on to serve as perhaps the most powerful man in the Carter administration (1977-1981), serving as the president's national security adviser, responsible for maintaining America's national security (**despite his written views favoring world Communism**).

ROCKEFELLER CENTER—SOUTH

Rockefeller had longtime ties to the local Atlanta political and economic Establishment. In fact, much of Rockefeller's personal investment portfolio is in Atlanta real estate. (According to David Horowitz, coauthor of *The Rockefellers*, "Atlanta is Rockefeller Center South.")

And Rockefeller himself had once even invited Carter to dine with him at the Chase Manhattan Bank several years before, as early as 1971, the year Carter began serving as governor.

Carter very definitely impressed Rockefeller and Brzezinski, more so than another Southern Democrat, Florida Gov. Reuben Askew, also selected to serve on the commission and viewed, like Carter, as a possible Trilateral candidate.

In fact, according to Brzezinski, "It was a close thing between Carter and Askew, but we were impressed that Carter had opened up trade offices for the state of Georgia in Brussels and Tokyo. That seemed to fit perfectly into the concept of the Trilateral."

Carter, in fact, like Askew, did announce for the 1976 Democratic presidential nomination, but because of Rockefeller's interest, Carter had the inside shot.

So much so that in a speech at the commission's first annual meeting in Kyoto, Japan in May of 1975, Rockefeller's man Brzezinski promoted the then-still obscure Carter to his fellow Trilateralists as an ideal presidential candidate.

CUT AND DRIED

From that point on, it was all cut and dried. According to Goldwater: "Rockefeller and Brzezinski found Carter to be their ideal candidate. They helped him win the Democratic nomination and the presidency.

"To accomplish this purpose they mobilized the money-power of the Wall Street bankers, the intellectual influence of the academic community—which is subservient to the wealth of the great tax-free foundations—and the media controllers represented in the membership of the CFR and the Trilateralists."

(The aforementioned CFR—Council on Foreign Relations—is another Rockefeller-financed foreign policy pressure group similar to the Trilateralists and the Bilderberg group, although the CFR is composed solely of American citizens.)

(In his book *The Carter Presidency and Beyond*, published in 1980 by the Ramparts Press, Prof. Laurence H. Shoup devotes an entire chapter to demonstrating how the Trilateral-linked and Trilateral-controlled Establishment media promoted the presidential candidacy in 1976 of the then-obscure Georgia Gov. Jimmy Carter.) [H: Can you also NOW SEE WHY it was necessary and HOW IT COULD CHANGE THE DIRECTION OF THE WORLD to take-out and REPLACE with cloned, downloaded REPLICAS these major players? The whole game would then be manipulated by ONE SET OF REAL PLAYERS WHILE YOU WOULD BE LEFT THE PERCEPTION OF SEVERAL DIFFERING FACTIONS. NO, EVERYTHING BECAME *ONE FOCUS*, CONTROLLED AND MANIPULATED BY THAT LARGER AND MORE POWERFUL WORLD

POWER—THE BRITISH-ISRAEL COMMITTEE OF 300. SEEM TOO ABSURD? HOW ABSURD IS IT THAT KISSINGER RUNS ABOUT IN THE QUEEN'S (ENGLAND THAT IS) BUGGY WITH TOP-HAT AND TAILS AND BECAME "SIR" HENRY AND ATTENDS THE PRINCESS DIANA, GOES TO THE RACES WITH THE QUEEN, ETC.? WHO YOU SEE IS NOT WHAT WAS!]

Carter, of course, campaigned as a "populist"—as a "man of the people"—as an "outsider" with no ties to the Establishment. The fact is, however, Carter, who said he'd never lie, was an elitist, an insider, the Trilateral Commission's "man on the white horse". [H: Remember that Carter also PROMISED TO TELL YOU-THE-PEOPLE ABOUT UFOs and ALIENS, ETC. So, what happened? Well, they knew you couldn't bring yourselves to the point of believing or accepting technology already developed that could clone adults, down-load memory and brain patterns and become no more than puppets in their "master's" hands. But it is so and as you learn more and more about DNA restructuring, genetic alterations and cloning quite efficiently of cattle and pigs, tomatoes and such, it is NO LONGER "FAR-OUT" IS IT? YOU CAN NOW BE TOTALLY CONTROLLED AND MANIPULATED BY PULSE WAVES IN THE INVISIBLE RANGE AND YOU STILL SHAKE YOUR HEADS AND GIGGLE: "IMPOSSIBLE". WELL, SCIENCE FICTION HAS CAUGHT UP WITH, AND SURPASSED, ANY RECOGNIZED FAIRY TALES OF H. G. WELLS AND OTHER "SCIENCE FICTION" WRITERS. You have literally become "brain-dead" entities, manipulated by those same Masters.]

And with the power of the commission and the Rockefeller empire and its media influence behind him, Carter made his way to the presidency, establishing the first full-fledged Trilateral administration, appointing numerous Trilateralists to key policymaking positions and carrying out the Trilateral agenda to the hilt.

CARTER FILLED POSITIONS WITH TC MEMBERS

The election of Trilateralist Jimmy Carter to the presidency in 1976 marked the first formal Trilateral Commission takeover of the executive branch. Here is a lengthy (but by no means complete) overview of the Trilateralists who served under the first Trilateral administration:

vance & noriega

- * Jimmy Carter, president of the United states.
- * Walter F. Mondale, vice president of the United States.
- * Zbigniew Brzezinski, national security adviser.
- * Cyrus Vance, secretary of state.
- * Harold Brown, secretary of defense.

- * W. Michael Blumenthal, secretary of the treasury.
- * John Sawhill, federal energy administrator.
- * Robert Duncan, secretary of energy.
- * Joseph Califano, secretary of health and human services.
- * Stansfield Turner, director of central intelligence.
- * Robert R. Bowie, deputy to the director of central intelligence for national intelligence.
- * Warren Christopher, deputy secretary of state (and later secretary of state).
- * Lucy Wilson Benson, under secretary of state for security assistance.
- * Richard N. Cooper, under secretary of state for economic affairs.
- * Richard Holbrooke, assistant under secretary of state for East Asian and Pacific affairs.
- * Gerard C. Smith, U.S. ambassador at large for non-proliferation matters.
- * Anthony M. Soloman, under secretary of the treasury for monetary affairs.
- * Paul C. Warnke, director, U.S. Arms Control and Disarmament Agency.
- * Andrew Young, U.S. ambassador to the United Nations.
- * Paul Volcker, chairman of the Federal Reserve System.
- * Sol Linowitz, special negotiator for Panama Canal Treaties.

TC AGENDA CARRIED OUT

Within months of assuming office as the first member of the Trilateral Commission to be elected to the White House, President Jimmy Carter began implementing major policy measures that went hand in hand with the agenda of the commission. According to investigative reporter Craig S. Karpel, among those measures included:

- * Supporting restraints on freedom of the press.
- * Raising the price of new natural gas.
- * Refusing to place import controls on shoes.
- * Inserting a growth clause in the import regulations for textiles permitting clothing imports to rise by 6

percent annually.

- * Allowing the dollar to be devaluated against foreign currencies as a step toward its replacement in international trade with "Bancor", a worldwide paper money to be created in unlimited amounts by the International Monetary Fund.
- * Pushing through the House and Senate the largest contribution in history to the World Bank and other international lending institutions (to be disbursed as foreign aid loans without country-by-country review by Congress) to enable the less-developed countries to pay the interest on the \$70 billion owed to private banks in the United States. [H: How about this one?]

6 pict. graham, kissinger, foley, volcker, buckley, will

* Surrender of the American canal in Panama to Panamanian dictator Omar Torrijos and his right-hand man and successor, Manuel Noriega. Trilateral-linked banks (including the London branch of the Rockefeller family's Chase Manhattan Bank) had lent large sums of money to the Panamanian government and were anxious to obtain interest on their loans. The banks believed interest payment would be possible only if Panama had access to profits from the canal.

These and other measures were part and parcel of the Trilateral strategy as implemented by Jimmy Carter and his Trilateral-dominated administration.

[H: I need to interrupt here and recall to your minds the FACTS as were reported about Jimmy Carter after he had been changed out. Doesn't anyone remember the jokes about the "killer rabbits" (even done into a segment of Monty Python's farces) and other incredibly amusing things such as the day outside Camp David where it was intended to take-out the replica of Carter which was doing these stupid things like rabbits, etc. There was a foot-race to be held and for publicity Carter would come out and run with the marathon group gathered. He was to run a while and keel over dead. Well he ran, and ran, and ran and finally he was hit by a laser to stop him but he just fell over and continued "running" from flat on his back. The processors didn't know what to do so they surrounded the body, carted him back into Camp David, and later produced a nice new Jimmy Carter all refreshed from his jog. Oh people, you are so innocent in your beings.

Far fetched? Of course and that is exactly what is intended. Worse, so many of the major "players" have not the slightest idea WHAT IS REALLY TAKING PLACE! DO YOU THINK THAT EVEN SPOTLIGHT, WHO SEES ALL THE PROBLEMS CAN SEE THE TRUTH AND THE FACTS OF WHAT REALLY IS? THESE FACTS ARE SO "FAR-OUT" THAT EVEN THE INSIGHTFUL PLAYERS CAN'T SEE IT. IN OTHER WORDS, HOW COULD HENRY KISSINGER BE IN THREE PLACES AT ONCE? HOW COULD CARTER BE FISHING IN ONE PLACE AND RUNNING OUTSIDE CAMP DAVID AT THE SAME TIME? EASY!! You don't think ANYTHING about an "identical twin" showing up in one place while its "dupli-

cate twin" shows up in another and creates confusion. Well, when you DNA replicate something or somebody—you have EVEN MORE IDENTICAL AND GENETIC STRUCTURING. IT TAKES A BIT LONGER TO RECREATE SCARS AND WRINKLES, MOLES, ETC. SO, SOMETIMES A POOR COPY HAS TO BE TEMPORARILY UTILIZED.

This is WHY, HOWEVER, you can't do anything about this New World Power until you realize that it is ALL THE SAME POWER!

[END QUOTING OF PART I]

I guess, Dharma, we will consider this as PART 1 of this topic because we want to compare three major "front groups" and it is all within this overall focus, however, this particular writing is becoming too lengthy. Thank you.

I will again refer readers to WHO'S WHO OF THE ELITE, by Robert Gaylon Ross, Sr. (Ross International Enterprises, 1700-A Ranch Rd. 12, Suite 325, San Marcos, Texas 78666-2502. Sales: (512) 396-7000, (800) 410-5571. FAX: (512) 396-7000 (also) Internet E-Mail: rie@centuryinter.net.)

Just remember as this all unfolds: Ye are but players on a stage without benefit of writing your own script in most instances. How think ye that you are manipulated and "directed" so cleverly by the masters of the art? Ah, when ye grow enough to write thine own play, we shall have arrived!!

Good morning and I salute you for your ability to open your minds and come into realization of REALITY. Salu.

CHAPTER 3

REC #2 HATONN

SUN., NOV. 3, 1996 2:10 P.M. YR.10, DAY 079

SUN., NOV. 3, 1996

[QUOTING, PART II:]

THREE FRONT GROUPS COMPARED

Three distinct Rockefeller-created and Rockefeller-financed international policy power blocs are often confused by their critics.

A reason for this confusion is that, aside from the fact that each is controlled—fully or in part—by the Rockefeller empire, the groups are very similar in intent and have a largely overlapping membership, usually working in direct concert toward the same goals.

The membership in each of the groups is always composed of members of the Rockefeller family, their paid employees and consultants, allied international financiers and industrialists, academics from the major universities and tax-free foundations, high-ranking union leaders, key media personalities and controllers, and selected political figures.

But each of the three—the Council on Foreign Relations, the Bilderberg group and the Trilateral Commission—is very *different*, as you will see from the following *chart*:

THE COUNCIL ON FOREIGN RELATIONS

The Council on Foreign Relations: Based in New York and comprised solely of U.S. Citizens. [H: But these are the most notable and dangerous citizens such as Congressmen, Elitists, propagandists, etc. At one time Ross Perot was listed as a member and also as a close, close personal friend of David Rockefeller. It should be noted that there is a visible absence of Ross Perot's name shown in Gaylon Ross's book. I don't have a comment about the matter as obviously Ross Perot's business has taken him into and within the highest listed "clubs" in the world, or at the least put him WITH players of that ilk. Perhaps he simply has more goodness within him than any have chosen to see thus far. (???)]

Publishes the quarterly journal *Foreign Affairs* and conducts regular meetings and seminars. Key meetings are strictly **confidential** and **off the record**.

Created in 1921 with Rockefeller funding and emerged as the American branch of the **British Royal Institute on International Affairs** (RIIA), succeeding an earlier, less organized entity already established in that role.

The **RIIA** was the brainchild of English **financier Cecil Rhodes** (founder of the Rhodes scholarship) and devoted to the concept of reuniting the United States with the British Empire.

CFR members, beginning with the Republican Herbert Hoover administration on through the present day in administrations Democrat and Republican alike, have continuously been appointed to key policymaking posts.

David Rockefeller himself served as a longtime chairman of the CFR and remains its virtual master.

[H: Now for you who are not paying attention: CECIL RHODES DID HIS MOST HEINOUS DIRTY WORK AND WORLD ORDER PLANNING—IN SOUTH AFRICA!]

THE BILDERBERG GROUP

The Bilderberg Group takes its name from the hotel in Holland where it first met in 1954. Meets regularly (presumably on a once-a-year basis) at various locations around the world, always in extreme **secrecy**, often at resorts controlled by the Rockefeller family.

Has a revolving membership of several hundred participants composed of elites from the United States and Western Europe, primarily—almost exclusively—from the NATO countries.

The Rothschild family is the leading European force within the Bilderberg group, sharing its power with the American-based Rockefeller empire.

Maintains an extremely low profile and seldom, if ever, publishes reports or studies under its own *OFFICIAL* egis.

Bilderberg participants denied the group's very existence for decades until forced into the open by the glare of media publicity, generated largely by the *Spotlight* and its newsletter-format predecessors, "Liberty Letter" and "Liberty Lowdown" (the latter publication is now defunct).

TRILATERAL COMMISSION

Trilateral Commission was organized exclusively by David Rockefeller in 1973. Holds an official regular annual conclave closed to the independent press, but conducts seminars and other gatherings that are less exclusive.

Membership is limited *to elitists* from the United States and Canada, Western Europe and Japan, several hundred in number. (Sources report that the commission may begin extending membership to elitists from Mexico in the near future.) [H: Since they are now showing up at meetings it has to be assumed that this has taken place or will.]

Issues periodic reports known as the "Triangle Papers" and press releases and published a journal called *Trialogue* (now defunct).

David Rockefeller has continuously served, since its inception, as "North American chairman" but is acknowledged as its primary mover.

[H: I just want you to take note that the to-be "Czar" of the New World Order, whether original or duplicate: IS DAVID ROCKEFELLER. If we have time and space I will try to cover the "inner circle" currently in place and what might be their function and purpose as to world intent.

As we continue please keep in mind that this was written in 1992 and therefore what seems only "yesterday" is now several years past.]

VETS WANT INQUIRY

The members of America's major non-partisan veterans organizations, the American Legion and the Veterans of Foreign Wars, have formally called upon Congress to investigate the Trilateral Commission.

This is most appropriate considering the fact that it is America's veterans who have fought the wars and "police actions" staged by the Trilateralists and their allies in similar "one world" planning groups.

Here's the partial text of a resolution approved at the 63rd national convention of the American Legion held in Honolulu, September 1-3, 1981:

WHEREAS, the American Legion in National Convention assembled in Boston, Massachusetts, August 19-20, 1980, did adopt Resolution 773 wherein it was demanded that the Congress of the United States launch a comprehensive investigation into the Trilateral Commission (TC) and its parent organization, the Council on Foreign Relations (CFR) to determine what influence has been and is being exerted over the foreign and domestic policies of the United States; and

tucker & mcdonald

WHEREAS, the Honorable Larry McDonald, of Georgia, introduced Resolution 773 on February 4, 1981 in the House of Representatives, applauded the initiative of the American Legion, commended the text of the resolution to his colleagues and gave his strong support to this effort [H: Still have questions as to WHY McDonald was taken OUT in the so-called crash of KAL-007?]; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, by the American Legion in National Convention assembled in Honolulu, Hawaii, September 1-3, 1981, that we demand, once more, that the Congress of the United States launch a comprehensive investigation into the TC and the CFR to determine what influence has been and is being exerted over the foreign and domestic policies of the United States; and, be it further...

(Here is the slightly edited text of a similar resolution (No. 460) approved by the Veterans of Foreign

Wars in its 82nd national convention in 1981:)

WHEREAS, the New York City based Council on Foreign Relations, a private organization founded in 1921 and the Trilateral Commission (the U.S., Europe and Japan), formed in 1973, have as members, and often as overlapping members, literally scores of top U.S. officials of the executive and legislative branches of government; and

WHEREAS, the core beliefs of the CFR/TC—detente, "interdependence", muting of strongly held American nationalism, security through arms control, stable money markets, etc.—are often at variance with the uncommon sense of the American people... now, therefore

BE IT RESOLVED, by the 82nd National Convention of the Veterans of Foreign Wars of the United States, that a Joint Congressional Select Committee, drawn from the judiciary and Foreign Affairs committees of both Houses of the Congress... be called into being to assess the influence of the CFR and TC "network" upon the foreign and domestic policies of the United States and to report their findings to the American people.

Congress has yet to launch any such investigation as urged by the members of America's two largest veterans organizations.

[H: Next we offer from that same edition of *Spotlight* [November, 1992], an article by Michael Collins Piper—one of the finest investigative reporters and writers to ever grace your globe.]

SPOTLIGHTERS NOT SURPRISED AT EASTERN EUROPEAN EVENTS

World watchers who regularly read the *Spotlight* have not been surprised by Soviet dictator Mikhail Gorbachev's peace overtures, *perestroika* and *glastnost*, or by the revolutions in Eastern Europe. [H: I must again stop to remind you that Gorbachev NOW has a "Foundation" which is located tax-free in one of your oldest and most honored places, The Presidio in San Francisco, California. This is fully funded by "you-know-who". Also remember that when Gorbachev was no longer President of Russia—he BECAME PRESIDENT OF KISSINGER ASSOCIATES—IN MOSCOW!]

All of this actually stems from deals between the communist bosses and their business partners: Laurance and David Rockefeller and their allies in the highest echelons of the Trilateral Commission.

All of this was literally predicted in a front-page *Spotlight* exclusive published on April 24, 1989, describing how The *Spotlight*'s crack investigative reporter James P. Tucker Jr. infiltrated the annual meeting of the Trilateral Commission in Paris on April 8-10, 1989.

[H: I am interrupted by an inquiry as to why, if we know so much, doesn't the *Spotlight* honor us as much as we honor them? They do, they read and study *CONTACT* and then have chosen a safer approach to handling a newspaper—without the clutter of having to answer about UFOs, aliens as Hosts, and other such distracting material. It is fine, we are also working to the end

intent of allowing YOU readers to stop being distracted by those things—AND LOOKAT FACTS AS PRESENTED IN YOUR HUMAN ARENA. Once again Editorial Opinion is brought into play and it is fine with us. These people have had everything thrown at them from the Anti-Defamation League of B'nai B'rith (British Intelligence) that can be tossed. TRUTH is the point, readers, not blithering about spaced-out possibilities.]

In its exclusive, which was headlined: "Trilateral Goal Make Soviets 'Full Partners in the Global Economy'," The *Spotlight* revealed the commission's agenda, one which The *Spotlight* aptly suggested would require "some artful juggling":

- * There must be enough movement toward peace so that Americans will tolerate massive transfusions of their tax dollars into communist countries to help the internationalists economically mine the lands behind the iron Curtain; and
- * There must remain enough fear of war so that the military-industrial complex, especially the strategic defense initiative [*Star Wars*], continues to be immensely profitable.

Look for dramatic advances in the 'peace process' in Europe in months ahead—it has already started in Poland, with the world shadow government taking credit.

l. rockefeller & poland wojiech

The Trilateral goal is to make the Soviet Union and the communist East-bloc countries "full partners in the global economy", with membership in the World Bank and the international Monetary Fund (IMF), both major conduits of American tax dollars into Third World countries.

As a reward for the East-bloc countries loosening their *ties* with Moscow, Americans are to support those countries so the communists can better afford to buy the materials when the internationalists build the factories to produce them.

As The *Spotlight* noted additionally:

David Rockefeller, through direct comments and those of other members (of the commission), claimed credit for Soviet leader Mikhail Gorbachev's "peace initiative" and for the Polish government's historic accord with Solidarity.

Rockefeller led a Trilateral delegation to Moscow in January (of 1989) and had a lengthy meeting with Gorbachev. There he urged that the Soviet government become "full partners in the global economy" and offered membership in the World Bank and IMF.

In February Rockefeller led a delegation from the Council on Foreign Relations to Warsaw, where similar promises were made to Poland.

In Warsaw, Rockefeller urged the communist country to make a deal with Solidarity prior to the April 8 Trilateral Commission meeting in Paris, so strategies for achieving "global interdependence" could be achieved.

All of this, however, does not bode well for American workers. As The *Spotlight* then noted:

Exploiting the economics lying behind the Iron Curtain will be of immense benefit to the international financiers and political leaders **but to the detriment of America**.

As long ago as April 17, 1980, writing in the *Christian Science Monitor*, Trilateral watcher Jeremiah Novak described how the Trilateral Commission was working for an ultimate merger of the Trilateral nations with the USSR and the Soviet satellite nations:

"The commission hopes that within the context of a constantly evolving relationship with the Soviet Union, it will be possible, at some future date, to invite the Soviets to join."

Zbigniew Brzezinski, the commission's chief ideologist, himself wrote:

An effort must be made to forge a community of developed nations that would embrace the Atlantic states, the more advanced European communist states and Japan.

"Movement toward such a community will, in all probability, require two broad and overlapping phases. The first of these would involve the forging of community links among the United States, Western Europe and Japan. The second phase would include the extension of these links to the communist countries.

As summarized by Novak: "The essence of the Trilateral program, therefore, is to create not only a balance of power between the Soviet Union and the Trilateral democracies, but a concert of power in which the USSR and the important Third World countries could share."

Brzezinski, speaking at the Trilateral Commission meeting in Tokyo in 1988, also discussed the move to bring the Soviet Union and Eastern Europe into the global power bloc:

While it is the stabilization of the relationship with the Soviet Union over the next decade that is a reasonable objective (but not much more than that), the re-engagement of Eastern Europe—in the context of a Soviet Union preoccupied with its domestic affairs—into a larger Europe becomes increasingly timely.

As someone said this morning, Eastern Europe is becoming Central Europe. I have long subscribed to the view that the existence of just a Western Europe and an Eastern Europe is an artificial post-World War II reality; that the genuine reality of Europe is a Europe which has a Western, a Central and an Eastern component—and that Central component would be gravitating toward the West in the years ahead.

Thus the Trilateral Commission has set in place its own agenda and bears responsibility for the new

world arena that is being arranged today.

[H: Now read this next and again get your tissue out—and weep.]

TRILATERALISTS SAY: 'TOO MUCH DEMOCRACY'

The Trilateral Commission frankly states that there's too much democracy and that the American people should be **restrained from having too much say in how their nation is governed.** [H: Well, you will certainly see that in action on TUESDAY NEXT!]

This authoritarian philosophy is outlined in a major Trilateral Commission position paper (which embarrasses even many Trilateralists) entitled *THE CRISIS OF DEMOCRACY*.

In this work, published under the commission's copyright, the authors, Michael Crozier, Samuel Huntington and Joji Watanuki, conclude that popular participation by the people of the Trilateral nations in government policymaking is a bad proposition.

According to the study, the ruling elites in the United States and Western Europe are already facing grass-roots dissent from the ranks of their people—a situation that Japan also faces—and that it will be necessary "to restore a more equitable relationship between government authority and popular control".

In other words, the power of the Trilateral elites and the governments they control must be strength-ened—and the power of the people must be diminished. [H: And in doing this "diminishing" there must be total control over all information flow from, to and through all forms of media, press and wireless communications.]

According to the Trilateralists: "Al Smith once remarked that 'the only cure for the evils of democracy is more democracy.' Our analysis suggests that applying that cure at present could well be adding fuel to the flames. Needed instead is a greater degree of moderation in democracy."

How to diminish the power of the people? According to the Trilateralists: Increase restrictions on freedom of the press and limit popular participation in the political process through changes in the way public officials are elected (e.g., make it more difficult for the establishment of "third" parties), among other solutions.

[H: So what about investigations into this Trilateral Commission through Congress? Try this:]

INVESTIGATION SCARES SOLONS

library research doc

Numerous people have written their congressman and senators asking for further information about the Trilateral Commission or otherwise demanding a congressional investigation of the elitist body.

Here's the response they've gotten: The lawmakers have dispatched the Congressional Reference Division of the Library of Congress's Congressional Research Service (CRS) to look into the matter.

The CRS has prepared a compilation of Establishment newspaper articles about the commission and forwarded those materials to the members of Congress.

The members of Congress then pass that information on to their constituents.

Congress has no desire to investigate the Trilateral Commission, since more than a few of its past and present members (along with powerful campaign contributors and influential media masters) belong to the secretive body.

[H: I ask to wrap up this writing with closer-to-home observations. When you ask WHICH party should have your vote, there is no answer worthy of speculation. We have offered, as much as we were allowed, a start of a masterpiece on Dole and Buddies. But, when you check into Billy Boy's groupies you find only little thugs, cheats and criminals at the grass-roots level, but the big boys are right there AT THE TOP—STARTING, FOR ONE, WITH SECRETARY OF STATE WARREN CHRISTOPHER. PEOPLE, YOU HAVE ONE PLACE LEFT TO TURN, JUST ONE: BACK TO GOD IN TRUTH!]

TRILATERAL MEMBERS SURROUND CLINTON

THE ADMINISTRATION OF PRESIDENT BILL CLINTON IS YET ANOTHER TRIUMPH FOR THE TRILATERAL COMMISSION AND ITS STRANGLEHOLD OVER HIGH-LEVEL POLICY-MAKING POSITIONS.

[H: Continuing to give credit where due: THE SPOTLIGHT'S OWN TUCKER INFILTRATED THE BILDERBERGER MEETING WHERE IT WAS DECIDED TO MAKE CLINTON THE NEXT PRESIDENT PRIOR TO THE ELECTION IN 1992!]

The November 1992 election marked the third time that a member of the Rockefeller-controlled Trilateral Commission (TC) was installed in the White House.

woolsey pict

Arkansas Governor Bill Clinton, not only a Trilateralist, but also a member of the Council on Foreign Relations (CFR) and a participant at the 1991 Bilderberg conference in Baden-Baden Germany, defeated incumbent Trilateralist-CFR man George Bush [H: And everyone who watched the elections draw to a close—SAW GEORGE BUSH HAND OVER THE THRONE ON A SILVER PLATTER—INTENTIONALLY!] and brought a host of Establishment power brokers into his new administration.

Trilateral clique runs the show for Rockefeller empire.

There are several Trilateralists among the highest-ranking figures in the Clinton administration: Secretary of State Warren Christopher; Housing and Urban Development Secretary Henry Cisneros; Interior Secretary Bruce Babbitt; Health & Human Services Secretary Donna Shalala, and National Security Advisor, W. Anthony Lake, all of whom are also CFR members.

The administration is also rife with other CFR members including: CIA Director James Woolsey; Treasury Secretary Lloyd Bentsen (also a Bilderberger); and Laura Tyson, Chairman of the Council of Economic Advisors.

A wide-ranging array of other sub-cabinet level posts are also filled with CFR members, not to mention, most especially, the State Department, further pointing toward the claim, made by its critics, that the Clinton administration is a Rockefeller family fieldom.

Interestingly, in an earlier edition of this special report on this Trilateral Commission issued several years before Clinton was elected president, The *Spotlight* pointed out that by virtue of his connection with the commission, Clinton was an early favorite for the 1992 presidential nomination of the Democratic Party, despite the fact that—at the time—Clinton was not well-known nationally. Obviously, this prediction came to pass.

Trilateralist Clinton, interestingly, is also a former Rhodes Scholar. As noted elsewhere in this special report, the Rhodes scholarships were established by British financier Cecil Rhodes who hoped for an ultimate reunification of the United States and Britain. [H: And so—he has been successful.]

The young academics awarded Rhodes scholarships are indoctrinated with this philosophy and charged with the responsibility of promulgating its ultimate aim. Indeed, as also noted previously in this report, one leading Trilateralist has said that an "ideal" would, in fact, be the establishment of a single politico-economic entity composed of a merge of the United States and Britain. Needless to say, not only has Clinton installed Trilateralists in key policy-making positions, but he has also given high posts to fellow Rhodes Scholars.

[END QUOTING OF PART 2 AND DOCUMENT]

My, my, we have reached the end of the day and, beloved readers, there is no way to catch up centuries of work toward this New World Order so that you can be informed enough for WISE actions in a couple of days hence. I can only urge you to continue to BECOME INFORMED for it is only through TRUTH and TRUTHFUL KNOWLEDGE that you can reclaim any semblance of FREEDOM and LIBERTY. You have come to a place in your journey on the planet wherein THERE IS JUSTICE FOR NONE! May you allow God to open your minds so that you might actually SEE and HEAR and come to understand.

Salu.

CHAPTER 4

REC #2 HATONN

MON., NOV. 4, 1996 12:30 P.M. YR.10, DAY 080

MON., NOV. 4, 1996

LAST-MINUTE ELECTION THOUGHTS

I have, by agreement, waited until this afternoon to give consideration to election "druthers". I ask that this be placed onto the phone whereat people can have my opinion—not to specific candidate or Party—but behind-the-scenes "you-can-count-on-its".

Think carefully now before you choose the better or worst of two (or three) evils tomorrow. Certainly you will, either way you vote, be counted among the "ones to watch". I am quite serious—you are listed into the computer Beast and you will be noted if you vote. So much for that...

What I want to share with you, especially you who are working on funding for our projects, for we must SEE what is taking place and what WILL take place—IF DOLE WINS:

Dole is a puppet for the New World Order GEORGE BUSH network of obscene corruption. He will never allow Bush to stand hearing on any accusations AT ALL and if there should be charges—HE WILL PARDON THE CROOKS—it is all set in agreements and pre-understandings.

With Clinton, you have some of the SAME controllers—but obviously it is planned to dump Clinton or take him out.

Perot will simply insure election of Clinton, even though he is now hitting hard on Clinton's immorality and local corruption dealings.

You HAVE NO REAL CHOICES, but you of our team DO have some things to LOSE if Bush is put back into POWER—and yes, I said Bush. Note who all is out there FRANTICALLY petitioning you to vote Republican: the MOST IMMORALLY AND FINANCIALLY <u>CORRUPT</u> INDIVIDUALS IN THE WORLD!

Clinton did not bomb or raid anything in the middle East—he was asleep at the time. He was more surprised to get saddled with that maneuver than any one of you good citizens.

The hope for the NEW WORLD ORDER <u>IS</u> TO GET DOLE IN THE PUPPET SEAT BECAUSE NO PRESIDENT RUNS EVEN THE ADMINISTRATION ANY LONGER. THIS WILL SEAL YOUR FATE AS NEXT BECOMING AGAIN UNDER THE RULE OF ENGLAND-ISRAELI STATE. CLINTON IS A FOOL. DOLE AND BUSH ARE MANIPULATIVE, SHREWD AND EVIL CHARACTERS, OUT TO "GETCHA" ONCE AND FOR ALL. LOOK WHO YOU HAVE PUSHING

DOLE, I.E., FORD, CHENEY, POWELL, THE ENTIRE TEAM OF CORRUPT SHADOW GOVERNMENT POWER-BROKERS. THEY ARE THE ONES WHO STOLE THE GOLD CERTIFICATE AND USED IT FOR THEIR OWN POWERFUL ENDS. YOU WILL BE HANDING OVER EVERYTHING READIED FOR YOUR ABILITY TO REFOCUS YOUR NATION AND THIS GLOBE.

THE OTHER SIDE IN ITSELF IS NO BETTER—AND THEY ARE MANIPULATED BY THE SAME EVIL OVERSEERS—BUT THERE IS NOT AS MUCH FOR YOU-THE-PEO-PLE TO LOOSE AS WITH BUSH AND BOYS.

IF THESE MISFITS CALLING THEMSELVES REPUBLICANS GET BACK INTO A MORE POWERFUL POSITION—YOU ARE THROUGH AS A NATION UNDER GOD—FOR AS LONG OUT THERE INTO YOUR FUTURE AS YOU MIGHT CARE TO SEE AND, MUCH THE LESS, EXPERIENCE.

Clinton was put into power by the same ones who needed more TIME—but he is not the powerful player as is Bush and his band of criminals.

Think carefully about how you vote, if you vote, and which direction will each player TAKE YOU! These POWER BEASTS are neither Republican nor Democrat—they are NEW WORLD ORDER DICTATORS FROM THE HIGHEST SEATS OF EVIL THAT EXIST.

The issues they state are about proposed tax cuts which never happen, coverage for health which never happens and so on down the line on both touting poles. Forget it—for you are on your last legs to disaster. The monster is LOSE! Pay attention and stop your sillies and get on with responsible thought processes and act accordingly.

You must consider who can do the MOST DAMAGE—IN A PLACE OF HIGHER POWER—AND YOU WILL SEE THAT IT IS DOLE/BUSH—NOT SLICK WILLIE. Clinton is just a wayward cheapshot Rhodes-puppet, but it will take longer to totally take over and destroy through him than through the POWER brokers of the New World Order. Dole first sold his and Lizzie's Souls to the two-bit commercialists who paid them off through Switzerland. Then he sold it again to the big boy-crooks such as Archer, Daniels, Midland and the money tree. Then last of all he has sold out to the very misfits you voted OUT once before. THINK, AMERICA!

CHAPTER 5

REC #1 HATONN

TUE., NOV. 5, 1996 8:43 A.M. YR.10, DAY 081

TUE., NOV. 5, 1996

LIFE HAPPENS

and so, too, do elections

Thank you for inquiring about the elections today—but, they have only just begun this morning and hardly even begun in this location. Already the computers are telling you what you are going to do so why do you ask me? I would think, however, that anyone who would vote for either candidate of the Democrat or Republican Parties, after watching Perot last night, is out of your mind! You have two top criminals planning to take ALL the rest of your RIGHTS as citizens—and you don't seem to notice. But life happens...! And so too, I suppose, does addiction.

"They" tried to start a war in Iraq, day before yesterday, but "nobody came" so why don't you try that approach more often? No, it was NOT Mr. Clinton—he has more problems than he can handle on his own right—right AFTER elections, either way elections go.

HE CAN, HOWEVER, HAVE BETTER ACCESS TO COVERING HIMSELF BY DECLARING A MAJOR INTERNATIONAL EMERGENCY AND BRING INSTANT MARTIAL LAW CLAMPDOWN AND INSTALL HIMSELF AS DICTATOR. Either one elected can do this trick, voters, so who do you want as the mouth of the slave-master?

Change of subject:

EGYPT

Yesterday was a most interesting day for receiving equally as interesting "things" for Dharma. (By the way, dharma is simply a term for definition of the speaker—not a name as such. We usually treat it as a name because we want to get her attention, but it means nothing more—AT THIS TIME. It once DID and that IS WHY it has meaning to her now, as reference.)

Yesterday there was news interest in the bringing up and mapping of old Alexandria (out of Egypt) now beneath the sea for centuries. Also a friend, Jim Carroll, sent Dharma a bust of Nefretiti of Egypt—a large bronzed replica of great beauty and grace. She had already received a small, hand-painted bust of the same person. Why? Well, we go back a long, long way.

Then a newer friend and artist sent a sketch of Michaelangelo's depiction of "Hatonn" but it was not my

likeness in actuality. It is a sketch, very large indeed, of Amunhotep IV (AKHNATON), the Monotheistic Pharaoh of Egypt and the "buried" Pharaoh at that. We have to know, sometimes, who we "were" to understand what we "are" and why we might be doing some of the things we do.

Most important about this, however, is that we need to begin to set the historical records to correct and the facts are, among other things, that Akhnaton was THE PHARAOH who actually gave the Israelites FREE-DOM out of Egypt—NOT WHAT HISTORY HAS TOLD YOU. They had been in bondage for a very long time. Was this a good thing? Of course. The shame comes in what has happened since those days of realization which had to be buried for all these generations since.

By the way, this did not happen in the Thirteenth Century (B.C.) as touted, either. About all you can know about Egypt is Tony and Cleopattie. Out of the corruption and shame of Egypt came the ONE LIGHT, ATON, IN REALIZATION UNTO THE PEOPLE. My, what a foolish bunch of people who came to inhabit your planet. You are again stuffing the TRUTH away in the dungeons and rewriting all your books in hopes of changing history—but you CANNOT. You can rewrite and lie in the books—but there is no "changing" of anything. An act perpetrated is an act *forever*. And remember: a book is only a printed representation of opinion—and MOST are now questionable. Just because a thing is written does not make it SO. And, in addition, with Desktop Publishing programs it makes writing a book as easy as counting your alphabets. However, it is known that people will respond as IF things be truth, IF: it is presented by an accepted (or someone "claiming" to be an) "authority" or "expert". Next, if it is printed, especially in the NEWS paper, as fact. And, if it is published in some type of printed format.

We have just experienced that idiocy:

RUMORS AND RUMORS OF RUMORS

Within the past recent weeks (and we have to pass along the information lest we fail to cover everything as a resource), comes the most outrageous garbage foisted off onto you good "patriots" and "citizens" as I have ever witnessed—AND, YOU TAKE IT AS SOME KIND OF "INSIDER" TRUTH! It is purely nothing more than garbage in hopes of scattering terror, chaos, and incite to civil war.

When you read or hear something—ASK YOURSELF QUESTIONS! One might well be: Who is this spouter of such information? Next: Where did he/she get this information? Content of information: is it feasible? If you have someone, for instance, who has to remain private in identification, was he/she PRESENT TO KNOW THIS INFORMATION?

Let me example: One tale is that officers of the military were being arrested and taken aboard planes in shackles—and shackled to the interior walls of the plane for the transfer. Transfer to where? Langley, among other places? Now WHAT IS LANGLEY? It is an Air Force Base and CIA operation where all sorts of re-mind-ing procedures are perfected—along with a LOT OF B.S. Next: If the speaker is telling truth and not speculation, HE HAD TO HAVE BEEN PRESENT—ON SCENE, INSIDE THE AIR-CRAFT, OR HE COULD NOT KNOW WHAT WAS GOING ON. Therefore, EVERYTHING repeated is either from the "horse's mouth" OR it was pure hearsay! Which is it? NOBODY knows! However, IF YOU QUESTION, you will find so MANY flaws in the tale as to cause instant DIS-COUNTING of the information. This is too bad because sometime that information is going to be real and

you will have missed it.

We have to offer it to you because very credible people can and do follow-up and get information from three or four different resources in an effort to sort FOR YOU. But, so many things are so emergency-type in presentation that this can't always be accomplished in the time allowed for response. "Insiders" are MOST OFTEN simply repeaters of somebody else's opinion and perception. It is, however, the only way you can find out "covered" covert operations, so we will continue to offer what we get—and you just have to have wisdom enough to keep calm and consider all facets of said information.

If you do what I ask of you, you will not be subject to any of the terrible repercussions for outrageous actions. We act within all laws, do not incite to riot, are not subversive, and use only that which is within the laws of man AND, EVERY TIME, WITHIN THE LAWS OF GOD.

So, WHO WAS ARRESTED and shackled AND WHO SAID SO? The modus operandi, readers, is to simply take out the aircraft and call the crash—"pilot or human" error". "Duct tape on the outside sensors for the instruments", yet! And how is your private insane asylum these days?

Are the politicians afraid of CIVIL WAR? NO! WHO would go to war? HOW could you start a war this afternoon on such short notice? The ones who WOULD and COULD have been shackled in other ways to keep them in control. When and IF there is a major coup, it will have to be very organized and privately accomplished among VERY BIG PLAYERS. It will not come from the Ecstasy-laced drinker in the local writhe-bar. Can't you just see the Michael Jackson groupie fighting for your nation? How far would they get? That little misfit can't even get a woman pregnant in the appropriate fashion and WHAT will happen to this newsworthy child in his molesting hands? ARE YOU ALL NUTS?

While your "Rome" burns, the big NEWS is Frank Sinatra's pinched nerve and Michael Jackson's nurse announcing a pregnancy from artificial insemination yet. Is there *something* possibly wrong with this picture?

While Perot is closed out of the information loop all day by the major networks and CNN, on election eve day—there is major time given to these idiotic criminals and misfits every half-hour around the clock. And today? Well, there will be feeding frenzies over the election returns which have no value at all. Do you see how it will be that you will *go to your doom* and never know what hit you? You in the Western U.S. won't make a whit of difference in the national elections because it will be decided before your polls even think of closing for the day. There may, however, be some worthy attention given to local issues. Those issues are also so confused and cloudy that you can't figure out what the heck is taking place or intended. The higher "players" in the games are usually all set into cement long before election day. You see, "they" don't even leave you with an understanding of what or for whom you need to pray.

I find that you don't even seem to realize that as soon as Billy is re-elected you are in for some real roller-coaster riding and Ark.-gate. If it be Dole—it is NEW WORLD ORDER UNDER BUSH—INSTANTLY. If it would be Perot—you might have a chance at "time" to sequence in some changes, for Perot is a goodly man. And THAT is why you won't elect him, in all probability! The amusing thing is that the WEST could actually ELECT the man after the Eastern Polls close—IF YOU WANTED TO DO SO! There is one cog in that wheel, however, and that is ELECTORAL VOTES! You can't win in your stupid system

by popular vote, can you? Oh well!

I am going back to the topic of George Bush and "Out of Africa" because if you think you need to know about Clinton's escapades—you REALLY need to know more about Georgie-Boy's.

We will just take up, with a Part 3, where we left off, in the *EIR Special Report*. No, you won't fine a single NEW thing in these writings for we have given it to you over and over again—but every time the resources confirm a story-line, you can begin to realize TRUTH and importance. It takes a long time to absorb and digest ALL the information and fit the pieces together in a generalized focus on the WHOLE. Everything is connected to everything else, and when you find the same players popping up again and again—BEWARE!

GEORGE BUSH AND THE 12333 SERIAL MURDER RING

October 1996 EIR Special Report

We are only using excerpts so, if you can do so, please get the report as this series of special reports is truly revealing. My need is to get this information to our South Africa friends.

[QUOTING, PART 3:]

PROPAGANDA TWO

(P-2: Illegal Freemasonic Lodge)

When the Italian Banco Ambrosiano went bust in the early 1980s, and the bank's president, Roberto Calvi, was discovered hanging from Blackfriars Bridge in London, the apparent victim of a Freemasonic ritualistic murder, an international scandal erupted, exposing the role of the illegal Italian Freemasonic Lodge, P-2, in a wide range of criminal activities, including a rash of right-wing bombings and assassinations all across Europe during the late 1970s and early 1980s. When the membership list of the P-2 Lodge was leaked to the press, many of Europe's most prominent politicians, military officers, and intelligence chiefs were driven from office. In Italy alone, 47 Army generals and six Navy admirals resigned, following the May 20, 1981 public exposé of the lodge. Not coincidentally, the public exposure of P-2 came just seven days after the unsuccessful assassination attempt against Pope John Paul II, by Mehmet Ali Agca. Many in the Vatican, and in the Italian security services, felt that the P-2 Lodge had played some kind of role in the attempt on the pontiff's life.

The chief of SISMI, Italian military counterintelligence, for whom Pazienza worked, was also identified as a lodge member. P-2 Grand Master Licio Gelli, a wartime Nazi collaborator, later suspected of ties to Soviet bloc intelligence, could also boast of strong ties to several people in the Reagan-Bush administration in Washington. [H: One of the more attention-getting items of the Ambrosiano downfall as well as many other banks is directly due to the USE OF THE BONUS CONTRACT STOLEN FROM OWNERS RUSSELL HERMAN AND V.K. DURHAM. Yes indeed, the same VALID contract based on the Bonus Gold Certificate of which we so frequently speak. I find it truly amazing that

Bush's comrades have allowed him to live so long as they have while covering their own tragically slimy ass-ettes.]

One of the most prominent of the Reagan-Bush Administration National Security Council, and a close associate of President Reagan's FIRST SECRETARY OF STATE, HAIG (a former secretary general of NATO), Ledeen, although officially listed merely as a White House "consultant", was the liaison to Manucher Gorbanifar, the Israeli Mossad-linked Iranian "businessman" who brokered the original armsfor-hostage deals, through which the United States and Israel funnelled tons of weapons to the Ayatollah's regime, throughout the Iran-Iraq War.

At his 1987 trial in Bologna, Italy, Francesco Pazienza confirmed Ledeen's links to the P-2 member Gen. Giuseppe Santovito.

"The Supersismi was not a structure, but a kind of organization. I was called to collaborate with SISMI in January 1980. I had met General Santovito in November-December 1979... and since the end of 1970, Santovito proposed to me to become SISMI station chief in Paris... I cannot name the names of my collaborators, but given that one name has already come out, I have no problem in saying that among them was Michael Ledeen, who was there even before I arrived, and continues to collaborate with the service—so much so that I came to know with absolute certainty that, in 1985, he was receiving all the investigative-judicial material concerning the investigation for the attempt against the pope."

The final report of the magistrates assigned to investigate the crimes of the P-2 Lodge identified Pazienza as a Ledeen recruit, "essentially the representative of an intelligence structure of the U.S. Republican Party, that came to influence profoundly our counterespionage service". Through the Ledeen channel, both Pazienza and P-2 Grand Master Gelli were, in fact, invited to **attend the Reagan-Bush inauguration in January 1981, in Washington, D.C.** While in Washington, they held behind-closed-doors meetings at the Republican National Committee headquarters, with Philip Guarino.

Ledeen had inserted himself into the Reagan administration, courtesy of his P-2 friends. In October 1980, on the eve of the U.S. Presidential elections, Ledeen and Arnaud de Borchgrave had co-authored a series of front-page stories in the *Washington Times*, a newspaper owned by South Korean Rev. Sun Myung-Moon and his Unification Church. The stories revealed that Billy Carter, the brother of President Jimmy Carter, had been involved in secret business deals with Italian "businessman" Michele Papa (later exposed as a P-2 member), and Libyan dictator Muammar Qadaffi. The scandal had little impact on election day, because Ronald Reagan was to defeat Carter easily. It did, however, boost the credibility of Ledeen and Haig, his close associate, helping to land both men important posts in the newly elected Reagan-Bush administration.

Italian investigative magistrate Palermo, during his own investigations of P-2, found that, in addition to Billy Carter, Michele Papa's Libya dealings had involved another P-2-linked financier, Giovanni Mario Ricci, of the Seychelles.

[H: Please do not "just" skim this information for you are going to find the major PLAYERS and criminal structures in the world in this information.]

The Ricci links to Qadaffi were further explored by Africa Confidential in the April 1987 issue that

highlighted the Ricci-Pazienza-Williamson-Marc Rich embargo-busting collusion. "The Seychelles International Bank continues to fascinate, by reason of its association with various exotic financiers, including some involved in such interesting escapades as the collapse of the Italian Banco Ambrosiano, the Italian bank which went under in 1982, leaving a huge hole in its accounts," Stephen Ellis wrote.

"Ricci's interests certainly included the SIB, at least until recently, although it is not clear whether he still remains a director. Currently, lots of SIB shares are held by unidentified interests in Hong Kong, and Australia. But the largest single known holder of SIB shares is the Luxembourg-based company Transmarine. [H: No thank you, inquiring minds, I am NOT going to go into more detail but there is a whole bunch of information buried within these seemingly OPEN lines of print. It is also WHY you will not find me (or us) taking careless actions—we only offer public information and keep OUT of the intrigue as much as can be possible in all instances. However, if you don't know the players, how can you play in the game without shooting down your own team?]

"So in order to assert who owns the SIB [H: Lest we forget, SIB stands for Seychelles International Bank. All these alphabet soup labels get confusing which, of course, is the full intent of using them.] it is necessary to know who owns Transmarine. The controlling interest in Transmarine is in fact held by the powerful Italian entrepreneur Giancarlo Parretti, who has excellent contact in French and Italian socialist circles... But perhaps the most intriguing Transmarine shareholder is Florio Fiorini, a financial technician of legendary skill. He resigned a former post as financial director of the Italian State Oil Company, ENI, in 1982, after making unauthorized payments to the Banco Ambrosiano. [H: Hummmnn... unauthorized payments? From who or what, do you suppose?] Fiorini is also among the directors of the Société Anonyme Suisse Pour les Exploitations Agricoles (SASEA), a company taken over in the 1970s by friends of the late Michele Sindona. The company is believed to have access to capital from Arab, and, especially, Libyan sources, as well as from Swiss, Italian, and Norwegian financiers, and possibly some well-known New York family... Several SASEA directors, including Fiorini and Manfredi Lefebvre d'Ovidio, have been directors of the SIB and may still hold directorships.

[H: Come to think of it, Gyeorgos, perhaps Doris is pretty "brave" after all. Would you have ever thought....?]

"It is this connection with the SASEA which is the root of the SIB's current difficulty. [H: Yes, surely, but it all goes right back to Bush's "superfund", doesn't it? And that superfund WAS FALSELY BASED ON THAT STOLEN BONUS CERTIFICATE! Do you suppose that Bush is getting closer to wanting "to deal at this time"? What a tangled web you people weave as you practice to DECEIVE—everyone, especially the innocent.] In 1986, SASEA planned to buy a block of shares of the insurance company, Assicurazione Generale, from the Lebanese businessman—and convicted fraudster—Antione Tannouri. [H: Do you see that New World Order CRIME is in every nation around the GLOBE? It is only a matter of who wants WHO to be the chief dog on the controller's ladder. Further, can't you see that "who" is of little consequence since so many are involved? Do you also see that money is not at fault—only people? It was a clever plot while it lasted and it has seemed to last very well—until of course, GOD gets into the picture and men with higher wishes, good or bad, take opportunities as they COME forth. It turns out that simply by utilizing good judgement, the laws as written, AND a bit of discernment and discretion, A WHOLE LOT OF THINGS CAN TAKE PLACE in the same arena.] SASEA paid Tannouri an

advance of \$4 million, drawn on the Seychelles International Bank. SASEA subsequently claimed Tannouri had failed to hand over the shares. Tannouri has issued a counter-claim against SIB in Monte Carlo, through his French lawyer, Jacques Verges, famous as the advocate of the old Nazi Klaus Barbie." [H: Wow, big isn't it?]

RICCI AND WILLIAMSON ON THE *GMR* (Giovanni Mario Ricci) GROUP

To hear Giovanni Mario Ricci's description, one would get the impression that GMR was an above-board, growing industrial and investment firm, expanding its operations throughout southern Africa. [H: You see, friends, there is actually an almost unlimited resource out there. You do not *BECOME* the adversary simply by being in proximity with same. This is a good lesson for all of you to learn.] A January 1987 company prospectus provided the following thumbnail history of GMR group.

"Giovanni Mario Ricci, founder of the GMR group, is descended from a Tuscan family of merchants, financiers, and entrepreneurs. He follows in the footsteps of his forebears who traditionally have promoted international trade, fostered diplomatic ties, and have been active patrons of the arts. He was born on 7th August 1929 in the Garfagnana, an exceptionally beautiful region of Tuscany, celebrated by poets such as Heine and Pascoli.

"During the 1960s, Giovanni Mario and Giuseppe Ricci, the only survivors, found the strength to combat fate and to begin the reversal of [the family's] long retreat. They reconstructed the family's fortune by streamlining and concentrating in a single international organization the vast range of mercantile, entrepreneurial, and financial actions of the widest ranging commercial activity... Today the history of the Ricci brothers is one of an international group which pursues financial profits in complete accord with the **economic development of the countries in which it operates**. This is done in the open; the group has no secrets and does not seek political power either covertly or overtly. [H: Good show! and never overlook the advantage of this stance.]

"Today the name GMR group characterizes an organization managed by the most advanced techniques, dedicated to a profound and detailed study of our times. It is staffed by dynamic and highly experienced managers who, while being acutely aware of the problems of present-day society, look to the future in the firm belief that: 'The foundations of a free and peaceful human society will be constructed only from that which they destroy by war.'

"The GMR group is a private group led and managed by a family which has its origins in a past of intense activity. All of its top officers are linked to the Ricci family by family ties, associations, and OLD FRIENDSHIPS.

[H: PAY ATTENTION.] "Our principal activities are: acquisition of those industrial and/or commercial companies which multinational corporations decide to dispose of in implementing their disinvestment policies in those countries where, due to the changed economic, political, or social circumstances, their investments have become economically or strategically unattractive... We recently extended this main activity of our group to South Africa in order to acquire South African corporations owned or controlled by those multinational companies which, due to the international political pressures, encounter serious dif-

ficulties in keeping the ownership of their South African subsidiaries and developing them; difficulties that force on the multinational corporations a disinvestment policy to preserve their image.

"Milton Friedman continually urges us to defend ourselves firmly from the ever increasing presence of the state in the life of the countries, a presence which inevitably determines the erosion of freedom: economic, political, individual, national freedom. With the same firmness we should also defend the developing countries, because only when all nations will be liberated from this interference, will mankind really be 'free to choose'." [H: Sounds good to me.]

DEALING WITH 'PROBLEMS'

In the prospectus, **Craig Michael Williamson**, who was listed as the managing director of the GMR group South Africa, added his statement about the firm's activities in the Republic of South Africa. He wrote, "I joined the GMR group in 1986 after leaving government service in South Africa. I established the GMR group (SA) (Pty) Limited and was appointed managing director in July 1986. I decided to accept the offer of the chairman of GMR to join his group and to develop GMR activities in the Republic of South Africa and in other countries of the region because of the fact that I regard the GMR group's business philosophy as an example of what **private capital** should be doing throughout the world.

"Political and economic problems, especially of Africa and South America were what I dealt with for 17 years as a government official. In all that time and throughout the world I saw too few examples of healthy cooperation between private capital and developing countries... With specific reference to southern Africa: sanctions, boycotts, threats, and violence will only serve to exacerbate existing problems and to promote political and economic policies which are an anathema to all who wish for stability in the region."

Considering that Williamson has now admitted that he spent most of "government service" organizing assassinations of African National Congress leaders, bombing anti-apartheid offices, and spying on European opponents of the South African government, it is obvious that GMR group was not exactly the benevolent venture capital firm it portrayed itself to be.

THE TELEGRAM

For years, official investigators of the Palme assassination had assiduously avoided looking into a mysterious telegram, uncovered by Italian investigators probing the P-2 scandal. The purported telegram, which has yet to be authenticated, was allegedly sent on Feb. 25, 1986—three days before the Palme assassination—by P-2 Grand Master Licio Gelli, to Republican National Committee official, and P-2 member, Philip Guarino. The text of the purported telegram read: "The Swedish tree will be felled, tell our good friend Bush." The telegram was an obvious reference to the pending **assassination of Olof Palme.**

Published accounts of the purported Gelli-Guarino telegram have all been ultimately traced to Pazienza, and there remains a great deal of skepticism about the accuracy of his account, in part because of the seriousness of the implications, were the telegram to be authenticated.

With the new "South Africa connections" revelations, and the links, via Ricci, to the Italian P-2 apparatus, the telegram may take on new significance. P-2 was certainly implicated in some of the most brazen acts of terrorism of the 1980s, beginning with the Aug. 2, 1980 bombing of the Bologna, Italy train station, in which 85 people were killed, and hundreds injured. Stefano della Chiaie, a P-2 figure personally implicated in the "Bologna massacre," would later surface in Bolivia, as a powerful behind-the-scenes figure during the "Cocaine Colonels" regime.

The Ricci-Williamson South African complex, including GMR and Longreach, now being linked to the Palme assassination, was a part of the Southern African connection of Ledeen, Gelli, P-2, et al.

[END QUOTING OF PART 3]

This is a good place to interrupt this writing. We will take up the Israeli connection first when we next write on this topic.

I know that our overseas friends will find this informative and very interesting. It is a very SMALL world, indeed, friends. Salu, and have a good election.

CHAPTER 6

REC #1 HATONN

WED., NOV. 6, 1996 7:10 A.M. YR.10, DAY 082

WED., NOV. 6, 1996

WISE OLD SAYINGS

We try to find the wisdom of the ages in some particular form which can simply profusely flow about and within—but ah, it never happens just exactly as you expect, does it?

We can KNOW that beauty MUST be harmony. We can KNOW Grace is as a melody or an allowance as is the music of the ethers. Ah, but in the wise old words of Forrest Gump's mother, and perhaps wisest of all in a world gone mad, is: "Stupid is as Stupid does!"

YOU have allowed the structuring of a system which allows for wisdom to be lost in almost every interchange. This is especially so in encounters of the most IMPORTANT KIND, your orderly workings of a society and within your Religious clubs. WITH YOUR

ELECTORAL SYSTEM

THERE IS NOT A PRAYER OF POPULAR VOTE TO WIN AND, FURTHERMORE, THE COMPUTER SYSTEMS ARE ALREADY PEGGED TO PRODUCE WHAT THEY ARE TOLD TO PRODUCE—I.E.: DATA IN, DATA OUT IN KIND. You in the United States DO NOT EVEN CELEBRATE THAT WHICH YOU TOUT—A TRUE DEMOCRACY!

Am I saying that the elections are fixed, are non-reflective, and, and, and??? Yes, all of the above—but mostly YOU settle for the, hopefully, lesser of evils. It is still settling for evil.

Once again Clinton did NOT win the popular vote and Perot was not even counted among the runners. The other candidates involved were hardly even mentioned in any spewing of the "Mouths". The most nearly correct thing that was said in the entire evening of announcing, prattling and speculating came from David Brinkley WHEN HE SPOKE, THINKING THEY WERE *OFF THE AIR*. Then, before Jennings could shut off the program, David went on to say ON THE AIR that Bill Clinton was a total *bore* and other most definitive terms. He was silenced by the desk switches turned to "off" but some of it slipped through. It may well have been David's LAST appearance after all as he had surely become inebriated from *something*. The foolish odes to Mr. Brinkley's *last election commentary* fell on deadly malfunctioning systems. Of course the man is dying and it is obvious that his condition is quite terminal. However, there were quite a few at the "bar of deliberation" who wished to help him along last evening. Even after being told them he was "on the air" he continued to accuse his brethren of teasing.

Well, the whole system is a JOKE so what else can we find NEW out of the can of worms?

SCUM-BAGS AND BLOOD-SUCKERS

There was a lot of overlooked wisdom in the reelection of Billy Clinton. He is but a foolish thug. The opposition is polished and internationally powerful professional CRIMINALS. Now if you use your brains you can begin to tear away the shields of the individuals and when you find the real manipulators and controllers you can begin to pull them down or EXPORT them. Your nation has long been run by ALIENS of the Earth-bound kind giving you "encounters" of the very worst kind. Billy is just a foolish duck trying to act like a swan. Hiliary is worse and she will rear a duplicate of herself in her child.

You avoided awakening within the NEW WORLD ORDER clampdown by a thread, yea, a hair's breadth. Now you can go get the really obnoxious culprits of your international chaos—the Bushes, the Twigs, the Committees of Doom.

DID ANY OF YOU NOTICE THE "NEW IMAGE EDITIONS" OF THE "FIRST" FAMILY(S)? Ah, but so too were the "losers"! No, it is FAR MORE than simply a bit of makeup and "upper" pills. You witnessed NEW editions and, yet, that one NEW EDITION *could* turn about your nation. I hope he stumbles into the dung-heap badly enough to have to save his 'arse by having to turn to the PEOPLE AND USE THAT CERTIFICATE WAITING TO BAIL OUT THE NATION AND ALL YOU PEOPLE.

The crowd of vandals will certainly upgrade their efforts to scoop you into WAR of the worst kinds—but, as I witness, I do believe the opposition "crowd" of equally important (to God) people of other cultures are about ready to confront you who have become the Evil Empire's FOOLS. They are "mad as hell and don't plan to take it any longer." A lot of things should begin moving into position starting this VERY DAY. Are you prepared for those things which will come about NOW? You had best get prepared. THE MANIPULATORS KNOW EXACTLY WHAT THEY ARE DOING—YESTERDAY, TODAY AND YEA, TOMORROW.

This "New World Order" crowd has no soul morals. They USE. They use any and everything, even their own, to accomplish total power and ownership of everything—especially that which is good or decent. The fools sucked into their net are but usefully greedy toys. The "masters" of deceit will let even the "tools" believe anything they choose as long as they SERVE. Just as poor fool ex-evangelist Bakker has written a book called *I Was Wrong*, so too will there be a memorializing of once great men touting "*I WAS WRONG*". You need to remember: "*Truth sits upon the lips of dying men*."

I am having to watch my own team having to look at past connections and then get over the shock of finding them so far lacking in moral fiber as to break the heart. Adm. (Ret.) YATES is a good example for our overseas friends who *thought* they knew while they certainly did WORK with him. This man was a Bush tool of the worst kind, involved in every putrid financial dealing along the way as evidenced by his position in the bank structured in Australia. This is WORLD WIDE interference in legal and morally sound business.

There is sorrow in the bedrooms of the Elite this day because they had hoped to just "walk away" with the New World Order in total control THIS MORNING!

It is obvious the election had to be again THROWN BACK to Clinton to DEFOCUS such as the Fifth Column who had already rendered the DOLES useless. Dole COULD NOT stand scrutiny. He made a deal with the DEVIL and so be it. We may actually be witnessing the confrontation of GOOD AND EVIL as presented in the TOOLS OF EACH. Since we KNOW THAT WE WIN, we shall have to assume we are in for a real ride and a lot of things can now take place which could not until some more of the puzzle pieces were "in place". Stay awake.

RAYELAN RUSSBACHER/ AND GLOBAL SCIENCES

You are going to find that I have spoken FAR MORE truth than you have been willing to see and realize and there will be more and more and more. I am going to uncover my adversaries—from Rayelan Russbacher being the NEW authority, at such as the Global Sciences Conference, on "channels" and "truth information from etherians and energy funnelling" to whoever spews MISINFORMATION AND LIES. This "lady" spews and calls forth the DARKEST ENERGIES OF ALL. She also is the *de facto* "handler" of one ex-Agent, Gunther Russbacher, who has now sacrificed, in his ignorance, the heritage of Austria. Any time you gather-in Cobal and Cebal and Atalon, etc., you have the opposite of GOD OF LIGHT. These SHE gave to Gunther as HIS PERSONAL GUIDES, and look what has happened to HIM. Hold on to your CREDIT CARDS, students. Gunther is due out of Austrian prison in December but he warns everyone: "I won't turn from my wifie." From his "what?" Is THIS loyalty or what? He stated before he went to Austria that he could hardly abide "the broad" and was "turned OFF" by her, both from her demanding ways and her "broader aspects". What is THIS?

This, along with utilizing George Green, finally discounts the entire value of the Global Sciences meetings. This is too bad for there were some really gifted participants, up to now, tucked in among the distractors.

How dare I speak these things? PROOF OF A PERSONAL AND CLOSE SOURCE. She gave so much misinformation and lies about my own presence as to bury herself in oblivion forever. She said, if you forget, that "*CONTACT* is a CIA operation, the Phoenix Institute was structured for Gunther's use as that CIA operation, and Ekkers, at the least, were operatives to facilitate her and Gunther's position to fix the nation." They are petty crooks and thieves and PROVED IT BY STEALING FROM <u>YOUR</u> CREDIT CARDS. THEY STOLE OVER \$35,000 FROM EKKERS' RESOURCES ALONE AND TRIED FOR A TOTAL OF ABOUT \$85,000. Then how many of YOU beautiful people "LOANED" TO THEM? How many of you have been REPAID??? And yet, it never stops, does it? At least there is one thing you can say for the wicked—they never seem to stop! Do we "just say these things"? NOPE—there are the PAPERS with signatures, orders from the banks, orders from American Express, and your losses to prove it. CIA indeed! And WHY do YOU cause Ekkers to bear this burden alone as to speaking out? Where is Dr. Edie? Where is Jim White? Where is Stu Webb? How is it that you who EXPERIENCED directly do not speak out? Where is Laurie, Suzie, and on and on?

Don't we fear retaliation? What retaliation? How can you further hurt those you have attempted to destroy personally? Doris wants to go sit face to face with Rayellan at that PODIUM at Global Sciences. I think it would be far more interesting for some of YOU to attend that lecture and ASK SOME QUESTIONS ABOUT THESE THINGS. ALL YOU HAVE TO DO IS ASK ABOUT OLD HATONN, ATON AND EKKERS AND *CONTACT*. It works every time as the speaker either blows it or they

make total fools of themselves—ON THE RECORD. It happened in Africa, all the way across the world in Africa, with Timothy Binder and US&P as he devoted his whole speaking time to blasting the Ekkers! We appreciate the attention—IT *MADE OUR* CASE! Surely there is ONE inquiring mind who actually READS our regular information to enjoy the position of questioner. Rayelan is too "important" to read the information. Satan's workers don't use the "information"—they play on a plane of physical-personal foolishness. It is one of the very CLUES you use to DISCERN.

How does WRONG get a foothold? Through YOU accepting such garbage foolishness from the mouths of FOOLS and allowing them to be presented as AUTHORITIES. NO ONE can make a FOOL OF **YOU**—YOU HAVE TO ACCEPT IT!

BO GRITZ

Along these same lines of thought in misrepresentations and misinformation—back to Bo Gritz. My goodness, readers, why do you continue to kick dead dogs? And yes, he is.

**I ask that *CONTACT* run Bo's version of what happened in Connecticut as presented to *New American*. If he was and is trying to do the "right" thing—he certainly is not acting WISELY—even on behalf of the children, for look what has now been accomplished for continuing the molestation of the babies in point. Can you honor the man for "trying"? Yes, but I do NOT. He has insured continuation of a rotten situation for two innocent children. And further, when a man places his badges across his breast as attestment to such as killing over 300 people in one escapade in Cambodia, or somewhere in that area—you have a killer instinct—not a Godly Angel. It simply "IS". Think of it this way: *You lost an ideal—I lost a Son*.

And then, readers, to USE JESUS CHRIST as your banner to cover your singularly warlike acts is heinous, for it will eventually backfire when you meet THAT MASTER FACE TO FACE. AND YES, YOU WILL.

So, is Texe Marrs correct in his evaluation of Gritz? Yes and no, and what difference does it make for Texe Marrs is WRONG in just about every Spiritual "fact" he presents. If you offer TAINTED material, you have offered only the LIE. Ignorance does not make it TRUTH! You are PEOPLE OF THE LIE and to perpetuate the lies is unthinkable, just to be presenting oneself as an AUTHORITY of blind homage to a book filled with lies, half-truths and yet, also great wisdom. To act as if something as widely held as a *Bible* is truth in ALL THINGS, is indeed idiotic for the VERY BOOK HE QUOTES IS BUT A REPRESENTATION AND TRANSLATION OF "*MEN*".

Does this make T.M. a "bad" man? I don't know "bad"—but I do know "Fool". But WHO pays the price for the ignorance prattlings? YOU! So, doesn't that also cause yourself to consider some of his stuff, as offered, foolish to believe? Your choice! He is certainly "correct" about some things but that is where it stops dead: "some" things but not THE important things. This is exactly what happens, and is a superb example, when a man gets "born again" suddenly and turns to the WRONG resource in the blinding and swift renewal of direction. You move from unknowing into a more selective UNKNOWING—and present yourself as a "born again authority". WOW. Even you should expect more from your seers and prophets and, much the less, from your professors in the university of LIFE.

So be it, I wish to now return to my "Bush" whacking.

Oh no, readers, this is not "unfair" for THIS MAN has earned his place in hell. Bless you, Cathy O'Brien, and bless you, Mark Phillips.

GEORGE BUSH AND THE 12333 SERIAL MURDER RING

October 1996, EIR Special Report

[QUOTING, PART 4:]

THE ISRAELI CONNECTION

The presence of Marc Rich at the 1984 meeting to plan out the sanctions-busting effort, adds a further dimension to the Ricci-Williamson-White concert. Marc Rich served, throughout the 1980s, as a liaison among Israeli, Iranian, Soviet, and American intelligence networks, engaged in vast arms-, oil-, and drugtrafficking operations in the Middle East, Africa, and South America. The story of this bizarre set of subterranean business dealings came to light following the Dec. 23, 1987 arrest of a Lithuanian-born Israeli citizen, **Shabtai Kalmanowitch**, by Israeli police, on charges that he was spying for the Soviet KGB.

Kalmanowitch was an operative for Marc Rich, who had played a pivotal role in Israeli intelligence operations in Africa. Kalmanowitch had "escaped" to Israel from Lithuania in 1971, and rapidly established himself as a sharp political operative, working, first, for the Israeli Labor Party in the office of Prime Minister Golda Meir and, later, as a political liaison officer in East Europe. In 1977, Kalmanowitch switched over to the Likud Party, at the point that Menachim Begin became prime minister. Kalmanowitch's initial Likud sponsor was notorious North African Jewish gangster Samuel Flatto-Sharon, who bought his seat in the Israeli Knesset (parliament) that same year, in order to avoid criminal prosecution in France for his smuggling activities in francophone Africa.

In the 1980s, Kalmanowitch set up a string of front companies, including B International, and LIAT, which came to dominate the economies and governments of the South African Bantustan Bophutatswana, and the West African state of Sierra Leone, following a Mossad-engineered coup d'etat there in 1985. Wherever Kalmanowitch set up shop, Marc Rich was immediately brought in as his super-partner. Rich, who launched his career as one of the world's biggest and dirtiest commodities traders, at Phillips Brothers, struck out on his own in 1973, setting up Marc Rich and Company as a strategic metals and petroleum trading house in Zug, Switzerland. Soon, Rich had established a special relationship with Iran, that survived the overthrow of the Shah and the takeover by Ayatollah Khomeini.

By the early 1980s, Rich was running his own oil-for-arms pipeline in and out of Iran; he was the leading spot market trader in Soviet oil, and precious metals; and was the leading oil supplier to the Republic of South Africa, end-running the United Nations boycott. According to *Africa Confidential*, during 1983-86, Rich delivered over 2.5 *million tons* of Iranian oil to South Africa. Among the commodities swapped for the Iranian oil were 155-millimeter howitzers and ground-to-air missiles, manufactured in

the South African factories of Gerald Bull's **Space Research Corp**.

During their initial efforts on the continent, Rich and Kalmanowitch's African operations were well-protected by the Israeli Mossad's senior officer in charge of Africa, David Kimche. Kimche, during the middle of the 1980s, became the director general of the Israeli Foreign Ministry, and the liaison to the Reagan-Bush White House secret operations. Through this Kimche connection, Kalmanowitch was able to staff every office of the LIAT firm with "retired" Mossad and Israeli Defense Force officials. Kalmanowitch also used his status as a "diplomat" for the Sierre Leone government to travel throughout the Soviet bloc, arranging joint business ventures in Africa. Sierre Leone, in the meantime, had become a favorite smuggling port for Iranian oil bound for South Africa, but "delivered" to Rich and Kalmanowitch-owned companies in the West African republic.

GUNS-FOR-IVORY

In 1995, South African journalist De Wet Potgieter published *Contraband*, an exposé of the illegal trade in African ivory and rhino horns. In the book, he provided important additional revelations about the activities of Craig Williamson, Mario Ricci, Anthony White, and a coterie of others involved in the "South African connection", now at the center of the Palme murder probe.

Potgieter documented an Africa-wide criminal infrastructure, that slaughtered much of the continent's elephant and rhinoceros herds, in order to peddle ivory and rhino horns on the global black market, especially in Asia. Among the leading poachers in this multimillion-dollar-a-year trade, were the so-called Angolan "freedom fighters" of Dr. Jonas Savimbi's UNITA rebel group, who financed a good part of their war for control of Angola through the ivory and horn trade. [H: Now doesn't this just make you proud to be a part of this human species?]

Potgieter bluntly stated: "For more than a decade, South Africa's controversial military involvement in the bush war in Angola and Namibia was a pivotal factor in the illegal trafficking of rhino horn and ivory. [H: Don't you wish someone would give these low-life criminals some other RESOURCES so they could stop the extermination of that which is left of value as life-forms? And you might ask: "Where is God to let the dumb, non choice, victims be slaughtered? Can't HE DO SOME-THING?" YES INDEED, AND YES, WE ARE CERTAINLY TRYING. YOU FORGET, READ-ERS, GOD "WILL" STEP IN WHEN IT INVOLVES HIS CREATIONS WHO ARE OF THE NON-REASONING, GIFTED SPECIES. EVIL SHALL PAY DEARLY FOR ITS INDIS-**CRETIONS.**] The draconian security laws imposed by the nationalist government of P.W. Botha and his predecessor... served as a perfect cover for the international smugglers to operate with virtually no threat of prosecution... This 'service' to South Africa had given the syndicates carte blanche to establish smuggling networks, using South Africa as the conduit. These common criminals had secured for themselves the most wonderful cover by portraying themselves as allies of the South African security forces against the evils of the Soviet Union's so-called 'total onslaught'... Since the 1970s, South African and foreign investigative journalists have, from time to time, exposed military involvement in the convoys of trucks laden with ivory and rhino horn moving from Angola to Namibia."

One such investigator, cited by Potgieter, was Craig van Note, an American who testified before the U.S. House of Representatives Merchant Marine and Fisheries Committee. He said: "Jonas Savimbi and

his UNITA rebel forces in Angola, largely supplied by South Africa, have ruthlessly liquidated perhaps 100,000 elephants to help finance the war. Most of the tusks have been carried out on South African air transports or trucks, although some moved through Zaire and Burundi. The sturdy South African four-wheel-drive trucks that carry war materiel and other supplies across the Caprivi Strip to Savimbi's forces in southern Angola return laden with ivory and valuable tropical hardwood."

These accounts of an illegal guns-for-ivory trade bank-rolling the Angolan "freedom fighters", parallels the Nicaraguan and Afghanistan cases, in which the flights bringing in weapons to the Contras and the Mujahideen were leaving full of illegal narcotics.

And, not surprisingly, Mario Ricci, Craig Williamson, and Anthony White were right in the middle of this creative "freedom fighter" funding scheme. According to Potgieter, in April 1988, White and Williamson tried to buy up the entire legal and illegal stock of ivory from Burundi—an estimated 84 tons. White and Williamson identified the prospective "buyer" as Mario Ricci. They had arranged for the Burundi ivory to be "washed" onto the world market through doctored sales permits, provided by the government of Mozambique.

TINY ROWLAND

This time, it was likely White who had provided the political connections to obtain the false Mozambique papers. In addition to his work for GMR and Longreach, White had established his own security company in Baira, Mozambique, called Flocon International, which worked with the Frelino government in the capital of Maputo. But, White's real clout in Mozambique derived from the fact that, according to one well-placed British investigator, Flocon International ran the security for Tiny Rowland's business ventures in the Baira corridor.

Tiny Rowland, the longtime head of Lonrho (London Rhodesia Company), was, during the 1980s, one of the most powerful financial and political players on the African continent, as well as a member of the London-centered European oligarchy's unofficial Club of the Isles. Rowland was also an important player in the Reagan-Bush administration's secret arms-for-hostage deals with Ayatollah Khomeini's Iran, and the "secret wars" of the 1980s. Rowland, according to U.S. Congressional investigations, was the source of the \$7.5 million, for the purchase of the initial August 1985 arms shipment to Iran. Furthermore, Tradewinds, a Lonrho subsidiary involved in arms sales, sold its entire fleet of planes to St. Lucia Airways, an obscure company which was a creation of the networks of **OLIVER NORTH and RICHARD SECORD**. St. Lucia flew arms to the Contras in Central America and to Dr. Savimbi's UNITA forces in Angola, via Zaire. [H: Still think Bush and Reagan were NICE guys?]

In fact, the Contra supply plane that was shot down on Oct. 5, 1986 over Nicaraguan air space was piloted and co-piloted by **BLANE SAWYER AND WILLIAM COOPER**, respectively.

OPERATION LOCK

Another significant covert program, in which Williamson and Ricci played a prominent role, was Operation Lock. Here the efforts of the GMR-Longreach crew most visibly tie into the highest echelons of the Club of the Isles, and the British and Dutch royal households. Operation Lock

was the brainchild of Prince Bernhard of the Netherlands, the wartime Nazi who became the royal consort. He, along with his British counterpart, Prince Philip, helped launch the World Wildlife Fund (WWF) in the 1960s. Philip and Bernhard also created the secretive 1001 Club, which recruited 1,001 of the world's wealthiest and most powerful individuals to bankroll the global environmentalist movement, beginning also in the 1960s. Among the charter members of the 1001 Club was Maj. Louis Mortimer Bloomfield, a Canadian and the head of the 1960s-era "Murder, Inc." front, Permindex.

According to Potgieter, *Africa Confidential*, and Irish investigative journalist Kevin Dowling, in 1989 Prince Bernhard dispatched a team of crack "former" British SAS commandos, headed by Col. Ian Crooke, to South Africa, ostensibly to eliminate some of the leading rhino tusk and ivory poaching syndicates, by "executive action". Operation Lock, as the WWF covert paramilitary operation was dubbed, was run through a London private security firm, KAS, initially established by Sir David Stirling, the legendary founder of British Special Air Services (SAS). Stirling created KAS at the behest of Prince Bernhard, and the Dutch monarchy put up an estimated 250,000 pounds sterling in "seed money" to launch Operation Lock. Ultimately, Operation Lock dispatched over 25 "former" SAS commandos to South Africa to run the private program.

On the ground, Colonel Crooke solicited the aid of Craig Williamson, to assemble a team of "locals" to aid in Operation Lock. Williamson, in turn, set up several private security fronts, to funnel manpower into the Operation Lock effort. One such company, Control Risk Group (CRG), was headed by Ron Reid-Daly and Tim Lewis. Reid-Daly was the founder and commander of the Rhodesian Selous Scouts, the elite commando unit that had waged a brutal terror-war to try to salvage the Ian Smith regime in Rhodesia. Lewis was a "former" British MI-6 officer. Lewis had been first sent to Africa by British intelligence in the early 1960s, and he had served with Reid-Daly in the Selous Scouts, serving at one point as the immediate commanding officer of Anthony White. In the 1980s, following the fall of Ian Smith, Reid-Daly had brought a team of Selous Scouts into Transkei, one of the first of the Republic of South Africa Bantustans, and had tried, unsuccessfully, to lead a secessionist revolt there.

Another outfit, employed by Williamson, to funnel manpower to Crooke and Operation Lock, was Executive Outcomes, headed by Eeben Barlow, a former South African military officer who had been active in Angola, providing support to Savimbi's UNITA, but who later contracted his "private" security services to the Angolan government. Barlow later was appointed head of Western European operations for the Civil Co-Operation Bureau, one of the paramilitary police units deployed to eliminate anti-apartheid activists. Executive Outcomes, one of the largest private paramilitary operations in the world, hires out battalion-strength private military teams to multinational corporations and governments. According to the Oct. 6, 1996 London *OBSERVER*, Barlow's firm has already dispatched battalions of mercenary troops to Sierra Leone, Sri Lanka, Malaysia, and to several countries in South America.

The private firm that was most tightly controlled by Williamson, and which played a prominent role in Operation Lock, was tactical Risk Control, or R & TG. R & TG was established in July 1987, ostensibly by Michael Richards, Leon Falck, and a third man named Tyrrel-Glynne, but was always actually controlled by Williamson.

While Operation Lock was ostensibly aimed at eradicating the poaching syndicates, by infiltrating them, and systematically eliminating their leaders, by extralegal means, it subsequently came to light that

Colonel Crooke and his SAS teams—in league with Williamson and his crew, who trained the notorious *Koevoet* ("Crowbar") unit, a pseudo-gang of former ANC soldiers—were actually responsible for manipulating the "Third Force" black-on-black violence that nearly triggered a civil war in South Africa between the ANC and the Inkatha Freedom Party during the run-up to the April 27, 1994, first-ever general elections in the Republic of South Africa.

Far from combatting the poaching syndicates, the Operation Lock SAS teams had actually moved in and taken over some of the black market in ivory and rhino tusks. This explains why the Operation Lock teams ostensibly "targeted" Anthony White, a well-known figure in the ivory smuggling business in Mozambique, while, at the same time, working intimately with White's partner, Craig Williamson. The whole effort was, in fact, a London, Club of the Isles-directed destabilization of all of southern Africa, with the World Wildlife Fund of Prince Philip and Prince Bernhard leading the effort.

Following the death of Sir David Stirling in 1990, the control of KAS, and Operation Lock, was passed into the hands of **SIR JAMES GOLDSMITH**, another leading Club of the Isles figure with major business holdings in Britain, the United States, and France. Goldsmith is a close personal friend of former U.S. President George Bush and former British Prime Minister Margaret Thatcher. During the Reagan-Bush-Thatcher era, Goldsmith was **deeply involved in "secret parallel government" OP-ERATIONS ALLAROUND THE GLOBE**. [H: What are you nice and faithful readers NOW thinking about Ronn Jackson's Committee of 16? DO YOU SEE HOW BLIND AND IGNO-RANT YOU CAN BE IF YOU DON'T DO YOUR HOMEWORK AND STUDY-UP ON TRUTH?]

Thus, the recently exposed "South Africa connection" to the assassination of **Prime Minister Olof Palme**, through Craig Williamson, Anthony White, Mario Ricci, and others, is, in reality, a component of the international, privatized intelligence apparatus, the asteroids, associated with the Bush-Thatcher secret wars, and with the London-based Club of the Isles.

[END QUOTING OF PART 4]

To really get the picture, however, of Palme's murder you will have to learn MORE about other connections, i.e., John Train. We don't, however, have time or space to continue that this minute.

I am quite shocked at my own team members who aren't "sure" even where the Seychelles are located. Well, they represent islands much like any other Island Groups wherein banking and corruption are PRO-TECTED. These are, however, good for the goose as well as the gander. Remember that LAWS are established for USE by 'ALLTHE PEOPLE', right AFTER they are hidden after establishment, for the use of crooks and Elite. Does this mean, then, that YOU can't use them? Of course not. Why do YOU always assume that GOD has no right to any benefits at all, on your placement? The same established TOOLS of Evil CAN BE THE VERY BEST OF TOOLS FOR GOOD. So be it.

To give you a bit of geography lesson let us consider the Seychelles. If you don't know even a general location—how can anything mean ANYTHING to you in actuality? Go then, and look up other, unknown to you, references.

THE SEYCHELLES: The same established TOOLS of Evil CAN BE THE VERY BEST OF TOOLS FOR GOOD. So be it.

THE SEYCHELLES [ISLANDS]: Aldabra, Assumption, Astove, Cerf, Cosmoledo, Farquhar, Providence and Saint Pierre. Please note that some of these places are composed of more than one land-mass.

REPUBLIC OF SEYCHELLES: Located in the Indian Ocean about 700 miles NE of Madagascar. Neighbors: Nearest are Madagascar on SW, *SOMALIA* [H: Oh my goodness....] on NW. Topography: A group of some 86 islands, about half of them composed of coral, the other half granite, predominantly mountainous. Capital: Victoria.

This is a "Republic". Head of state: Pres. France Albert René.

MAJOR INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS: UN, OAU, the Commonwealth.

Envoy from the United States: Carl B. Stokes, Amb. Envoy to the United States: Mark R. Marengo, Amb.

I give you these just in case you want to check it out. If there are changes, they have been made in 1996.

By the way, you inquiring minds continue to ask me questions which are readily available to you from many sources. However, I would like to remind all of you that the U.S. does not have "formal" diplomatic relations with the following countries: Cuba, Iran, Iraq, Libya, Lichtenstein, North Korea, and Taiwan. Note I said "formal" and it means that you as citizens cannot do business with them *directly*. With countries such as Bhutan it should be noted that the relationships are "informal" which means—only the Elite can deal with them—obviously. I just toss this last in as an indication of the government's FALSE stance in regards to their own limitations (supposedly)—not tourism. What a sick societal structure you misinformed people actually experience.

You have to understand that if a government doesn't EXCHANGE envoys—that is government mischief—not citizen anything! So, for instance, to STOP Farrakhan from accepting awards and funds from Libya is QUITE UNCONSTITUTIONAL—AS A CITIZEN. SO HOW IS IT THAT YOUR GOVERNMENT THUGS COULD STOP IT? BECAUSE "THEY" SIMPLY "HAVE FORCE AND CONTROL". My goodness, children, how long will YOU remain babes in the woods?

Thank you for your lengthy attending this. It is, of course, far more interesting to people who consider themselves "involved" but oh, dear readers, please be interested!

Good morning.

CHAPTER 7

REC #2 HATONN

THU., NOV. 7, 1996 10:08 A.M. YR.10, DAY 083

THU., NOV. 7, 1996

A WISE OLD SAYING

Sir Winston Churchill:

Never give in! Never give in! Never, never, never.

Fine for HIM TO SAY—he didn't have to go in front of bullets sent to blow him away. This is what is wrong with "leaders" who "never give in". They do it on the backs and lives of OTHERS who are innocent of the desire for world domination.

So, I think a wiser old saying might well be:

You gotta know when to hold 'em, Know when to fold 'em, and KNOW WHEN TO WALK AWAY (AND FOR HOW LONG)

THE IMPORTANT THING, HOWEVER, IS TO KNOW WHEN YOU HAVE A HAND AND ACT.

This does not "just" apply to a Poker game, good friends! But, the first thing you have to do is KNOW WHAT IS YOUR GAME and what are the stakes.

Today we are torn between taking up the topic of John Train, Wall Street's man in Bush's secret government or Goldsmith's "new" *Murder, Inc.* You are going to find a lot worse CRIMINALS than such as Michael Milken, Keating, etc. And, they will ALL go right back to the corrupt team in power, i.e., the Bush Brigade including all the "Twigs".

Since we are quite torn as to which to offer first, we will just move in order offered and mostly again give appreciation, approbations and praise to the team of investigators at *EIR*. I hope we are filling in some of that which they have been unable thus far to uncover—but it is with appreciation and honor that I serve the daring speakers who have gathered this information on the Top Dog in the crowd of criminal workers, George Bush. And remember, I offered George Bush a way OUT long ago at Camp David and he refused. He was offered first refusal of the certificate and thought us just an "annoyance". Every man has a chance to make a GREAT contribution, George Bush not withstanding.

Let us see what Clinton will do when offered! You will note, however, that Clinton is actually changing over to the New World Order gang. He is even talking about filling his cabinet posts being vacated with "Republicans"! You now HAVE a one party system—without even a veil of doubt. You actually have an "all new" ballgame. Everyone in the "big-time" wins-wins—EXCEPT YOU-THE-PEOPLE and you lose-lose.

PART 5 OF THE EIR SPECIAL REPORT [Quoting:]

JOHN TRAIN: WALL STREET'S MAN IN BUSH'S SECRET GOVERNMENT

A. TRAIN'S GLOBAL TRACKS

John Train, investment banker, writer, Anglophile, spook, is a sort of "red dye", a marker for secret government operations tied to the international killer apparatus centered on George Bush and the international explosives cartel. From Sweden to Africa, from France to Afghanistan, from London to New York, you will find the tracks of John Train.

And, naturally enough, Train played a direct and crucial role in laying the propaganda groundwork for the frame-up and prosecution of Lyndon LaRouche: It was at his New York apartment that a series of meetings were held in 1983-84 which launched and coordinated news media attacks on LaRouche; these media attacks laid the groundwork for launching federal grand jury investigations of LaRouche and his associates from 1984 through 1988. This effort was an integral part of the Bush "Ministry of Propaganda", officially designated as "Public Diplomacy" during the Reagan-Bush administration. [H: More interesting here is the fact that Henry Kissinger was the one finally able to pull off the dastardly deeds. Now, don't let it slip for even a minute that Train BECAME an almost constant companion to your LATE Mrs. John Kennedy Onassis. And yes, for you inquiring Greek minds—we will cover the lineage connections of one Onassis before we finish.]

Train's role as chief propagandist in the "Get LaRouche" drive reflected his standing as a key figure in the Wall Street wing of the official American intelligence establishment. Financial community sources describe the investment counselor as one of the "top spooks" on Wall Street; others call him "the last of the OSS 'old boys' on Wall Street", referring to the Office of Strategic Services, the U.S. branch of British Intelligence established during World War II. Train never held an official position with the CIA or any other U.S. government intelligence service—nor did he need to. [H: Yes, even our old working partner, Jack Donohue, was a member of that OSS and did in fact travel about the world with George and Barbara and was in charge of some operations in Sudan. Isn't it a small world? He also knew Kemp so politically well as to have private meetings with him. When we got crosswise he hit hard enough in conjured anger to get away with severing the agreements, and disappeared. However, it was a GOOD thing, because there was never anything political about anything we ever attempted. You think Gritz shut down the Ruby Ridge thing in Idaho? No, he did not. I, through Jack Donohue, right up through Bush, shut it down before it was a final DISASTER. I don't pick in your games or play in your political schemes but when you think that we have not had a bad go of it—think again. And still, they have only learned that I keep every commitment I make and we do nothing to cause them to damage us. I REPEAT: I DO NOT HAVE TO

BECOME MY ENEMY TO MEET MY ENEMY!

John Train was born in 1928 to Arthur Cheney Train [H: Interesting middle name?] and Helen (Costin) Train. He is a member of a second-tier blueblood family, whose grandfather was a founder of the J.P. Morgan banking group. His education was at the Groton prep school and Harvard (B.A., 1950; M.A., 1951), with post-graduate work at the Sorbonne in Paris, where Train cofounded, with Harvard classmates, the literary magazine *Paris Review*. In between serving as managing editor of *Paris Review*, roughly in 1952-54, Train served with the U.S. Army, apparently using family connections to gain a post on the staff of the assistant secretary of the Army in Washington during 1954-56.

In 1958, Train set up his own New York-based investment counseling and brokerage firm, Smith, Train Counsel. Reuters news service reported in 1985: "Some of America's wealthiest families have entrusted more than \$500 million to investment counselor John Train."

Although Train's initial source of funds and client list are shrouded in secrecy, some sources believe he might handle the family funds of the Gardner family of New York, Maurice "Hank" Greenberg of the American International Group, and Richard **Mellon** Scaife.

In 1984, Train sold a 50% interest in Smith, Train Counsel to the English Association Trust (EAT) of London. During the 1980s, EAT was a wholly owned subsidiary of the English Association Group, which, in turn, was a wholly owned subsidiary of PK Banken of Sweden, of which the Swedish government was the largest shareholder. In 1987, Erik Penser, a major shareholder in Nobel and its subsidiary, Bofors, took a 20% interest in PK Banken.

One of the two board members whom EAT placed at Smith, Train Counsel was Richard Cox-Johnson, who was formerly with N.M. Rothschild and Sons, Ltd. Before a more recent reorganization, Train sat on the boards of PK English Trust Co. of London, and PK Bank of New York.

A LONG TRAIN OF ABUSES

The Trains, who reportedly first arrived in the Massachusetts Bay Colony in 1635, barely compare with the accumulated power of the Cabots, Lowells, Bundys, and related blueblood families of the region. But they certainly do share these families' Tory hatred of the American republican system, and like them, made a fortune in the last century, by imitating the British **East India** Company [**H: Please refer to Dr. Coleman's books!**] establishing the firm of Enoch Train and Co., whose clipper ships trafficked in Chinese opium.

Train family mythology claims that "Train" originates from the nickname which Mary Queen of Scots gave the boy who carried the train of her throne dress; but if it be true, the 20th-century Trains have long forgotten any Scottish outrage at the English monarchy's trampling on their sovereignty with the execution of Queen Mary.

However, the image of carrying the Queen's train is an appropriate one, considering the services that John Train and his cousins provide for the London-centered European oligarchy today.

Train married into an old Venetian family, the Cini, in 1961. His wife, whom he divorced in 1976, was Maria Teresa Cini de Pianzano. She is the daughter of Vittorio Cini, a key figure in the fascist Italy of the 1930s, who later founded the Cini Foundation of Venice. Maria Teresa is well-connected in Sweden, and even wrote a book on "Swedish castles".

In 1976, Train was decorated "commendatore Ordine del Merito della Repubblica", and "commendatore Ordine della Solidarieta", by Italian President Giovanni Leone. (An inquirer was told a few years ago that the matter of Train's decorations was a state secret, that all the relevant documents had been sent from the president's office, the Quirinale, to the police, the Carabinieri, and were carefully hidden away, and that nothing further would be said about it!)

A few of John Train's cousins are worth noting:

Capt. Harold Cecil Train (1887-1986), was director of the U.S. Office of Naval Intelligence in 1942-43, and he reportedly introduced cousin John into U.S. intelligence circles. Captain Train was instrumental in strengthening the ties of the ONI with the British security coordinator in New York, Sir William Stephenson; with the British Central Scientific Office; and with the British Air Commission and Admiralty Delegation. Naval intelligence historian Jeffery Dorwart writes in his book *Conflict of Duty*: "The director [Captain Train] frowned upon officers who showed little enthusiasm for the Anglo-American collaboration, criticizing one who did 'not seem to have had the word about the complete and free exchange of information between the British and ourselves'." Thus started the Train family's direct connection with the Bitish Secret Intelligence Service.

Russell Train, was for many years the chairman of the World Wildlife Fund for Nature-U.S. (WWFN), headed the Environmental Protection Agency, and is a trustee emeritus of the **African** Wildlife Foundation. He is a close friend of both George Bush and the Duke of Edinburgh, Prince Philip.

Sen. Claiborne Pell (D-R.I.), the ranking member on the Senate Foreign Relations Committee, served in the U.S. Navy during World War II, then joined the U.S. State Department, which stationed him in Prague, Czechoslovakia, where he was active in Eastern European emigré matters. He next joined up with Leo Cherne, a close associate of John Train in "Public Diplomacy" circles, and served as vice president and director of the International Rescue Committee (IRC). (Pell is also a raving New Age kook.) Partisan differences aside, Pell lets his cousin John Train handle his money, as he acknowledged in his introductions to two of Train's books.

'PARIS REVIEW' AND THE GOLDSMITH BROTHERS

The roots of John Train's role as one of the Anglo-American oligarchy's leading psychological warriors goes back to Paris in the 1950s, when he was among the principal founders of the *Paris Review*, a literary journal and halfway house for some of the biggest degenerates to leave their mark on 20th-century culture. *Paris Review* not only gave new life to such discredited fascist apologists as Ezra Pound and communist fellow-travelers such as W.H. Auden, but also pioneered the "psychedelic" drug movement which blossomed a decade later as the drug-rock-sex counterculture. [H: Well, I don't really appreci-

ate dragging into this negative spew, Ezra Pound. Pound was not an apologist for any such thing as "fascist". Do you see how personal "opinion" without KNOWLEDGE can destroy the validity of an author's work and by such statements as the above we must now lessen the assumed quality of this particular author's input. It is not a big point but a very valid one. Pound was dangerous to this gang of hoods and paid dearly for his position and I think this writer might well have to answer to such as Eustace Mullins in this particular matter. Each "change" must have a chance at people who can become ENLIGHTENED and it will usually have to be through rather unorthodox methods that they begin to investigate and SEE truth. Remember, but through the GRACE OF GOD—GO THEE!]]

Paris Review was founded in 1951. Train served as managing editor in 1952-54 and 1957-59, and he has remained an advisory editor since then. *Paris Review's* publisher was Train's Harvard roommate and friend, Prince Sadruddin Agha Khan.

The Agha Khans provide one of the bridges to another tier of oligarchy associated with John Train. Not only have the Agha Khans been intimates of the British royal family since Queen Victoria, but Prince Sadruddin, who has remained John Train's friend since their Harvard days, is also a friend and adviser to President George Bush. (The Agha Khan was the UN High Commissioner for Refugees in the 1960s, and later played a major role in the relocation of Afghan refugees.)

When Train arrived in Paris in 1952 for his postgraduate study at the Sorbonne and to work on *Paris Review*, his social clique included Sir James ("Jimmy") Goldsmith and Edward ("Teddy") Goldsmith. Informed sources report that the Agha Khans, the Goldsmiths, and others in the *Paris Review* orbit remain in regular contact with John Train today.

AFGHANIS AND OTHER TRAINING

Train is active in a number of other arenas which intersect the Bush "**secret government**" apparatus, and the international killer network around British SAS and Prince Philip's **World Wide Fund for Nature.**

Train is the founder and former chairman of the **Afghanistan Relief Committee** (ARC), which he established in 1980, and which is housed in his offices. The ARC's stated purpose was to raise "seed money" for medical organizations treating mujahideen casualties; its base of operations was at Peshawar, Pakistan, near the Afghan border. Peshawar was the chief transit point for the arms pipeline into Afghanistan, and a center of the arms- and drug-trade. Train's ARC worked especially closely with the Afghan faction around Gulbuddin Hekmatyar, and anti-Western "fundamentalists" whose operations were heavily financed through drug-trafficking.

Train's ARC also worked closely with the International Rescue Committee of Cherne and **CIA DI-RECTOR WILLIAM CASEY**, which had a base of operations in Peshawar. Cherne, at the time, was the vice chairman of the President's Foreign Intelligence Advisory Board (PFIAB), and the chairman of Freedom House.

Train's ARC was very closely tied to Cherne's Freedom House, which had its own Afghanistan Infor-

mation Center, headed by Rosanne Klass, who was also the vice president of Train's ARC. Freedom House's treasurer, Walter Schloss, was a longtime business associate of Train. ARC likewise worked very closely with Prince Sadruddin Agha Khan, who was named coordinator of United Nations Humanitarian and Economic Assistance Programs for Afghanistan in 1988, and with the National Endowment for Democracy.

In 1984, Train was appointed by President Reagan to the board of the **AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT FOUNDATION**, which has been a conduit for millions of dollars to Africa from the U.S. State Department Agency for International Development. He was confirmed in this post at hearings chaired by Senator Pell, his cousin [**H: How handy can you get?**], who was then chairman of the **Senate Foreign Relations Committee**.

Other positions held by Train include:

- * Overseer, National Endowment for Democracy, International Forum for the Study of Democracy.
- * Director, International Rescue Committee.
- * Former governor, East-West Center (Hawaii).
- * Director, Bulgarian-American Enterprise Fund.
- * Honorary chairman, British Natural History Museum International Foundation (London).
- * Former trustee and director, World Monuments Fund.
- * Member, International Institute of Strategic Studies (London).
- * Director, Genesis Emerging Markets Fund (London).
- * Founder and chairman emeritus, Train, Smith Investment Counsel.

B. PUBLIC DIPLOMACY

Beginning no later than April 1983 (just weeks after President Ronald Reagan's March 23 announcement of the Strategic Defense Initiative), John Train convened the first of a series of salon sessions in his New York City townhouse, for the purpose of planning out and coordinating a news media campaign of defamation against LaRouche and his political movement. [H: Remember readers, whatever you might think of LaRouche, HE IS THE ONE WHO MADE PUBLIC THE NEW WORLD ORDER AS STRUCTURED AND NAMED THE PLAYERS. IF YOU HAD LISTENED TO LAROUCHE—YOU WOULD NOT BE HAVING TO DO WHAT YOU ARE NOW STUCK WITH DOING—OR MOVING INTO SLAVERY. I further think you should PAY ATTENTION: It took a movement in RUSSIA to get LaRouche freed because none of you in the U.S.

DARED. I wouldn't discount that connection, brethren.]

The "Train salon", as it came to be known, was a project of the Public Diplomacy operation centered in the Reagan-Bush National Security Council.

In this section, we will review the structure and background of the Public Diplomacy project, and in the next section, we shall examine the nefarious workings and output of the "Train salon" itself.

THE 'MINISTRY OF PROPAGANDA'

The Sept. 7, 1988 Staff Report on State Department and Intelligence Community Involvement in Domestic Activities Related to the Iran-Contra Affair, of the House Committee on Foreign Affairs, concluded:

"Senior CIA officials with backgrounds in covert operations, as well as military intelligence and psychological operations specialists from the Department of Defense, were deeply involved in establishing and participating in a domestic political and propaganda operation run through an obscure bureau in the Department of State which reported directly to the National Security Council rather than through normal State Department channels."

An article in the Fall 1988 issue of *Foreign Policy* magazine, entitled "Iran-Contra's Untold Story", reported that "the White House [had] created a sophisticated apparatus that mixed propaganda with intimidation, consciously misleading the American people and at times trampling on the right to dissent." [H: Remember that the term "Iran-Contra" was conjured to make the U.S., et al., THINK the problem had to do with some humanitarian matter and TO COVER the REAL criminal dealings taking place around the globe, and YOU-THE-PEOPLE not only accepted the tale—but continue to foster the LIE. Iran NOR "contra" anything has anything to do with the mess, even in Central and South America—it was ALL money and drugs, arms and more money—AND POWER with the power-brokers developing their usual cover of confusion and meaningless drivel.]

"Congressional investigators did draft a chapter about the domestic side of the scandal for the Iran-Contra report," the *Foreign Policy* article continued, "but it was blocked by House and Senate Republicans. Kept from the public domain, therefore, was the draft chapter's explosive conclusion: that... senior CIA covert operatives were assigned to the White House to establish and manage a covert domestic operation designed to manipulate the Congress and the American public."

EIR has put together the most comprehensive picture of how the "secret government" apparatus of the 1980s was created, and has shown that it functioned under the direct **control of Vice President George Bush**, operating through the National Security Council—and not the CIA (see EIR Special Report, "Would a President Bob Dole Prosecute Drug Super-Kingpin George Bush," September 1996, Chapter 2).

"Crisis management" is the key to understanding how George Bush became the covert operation "tsar" of the Reagan administration. Step by step, it worked like this:

1. In the early months of the Reagan-Bush administration in 1981, there was a brawl between George

Bush and Secretary of State Al "I'm-in-charge-here" Haig over the control of crisis management. On March 22, 1981, a leak to the *Washington Post*, headlined "Bush to Head Crisis Management", said that Vice President Bush would be placed in charge of a new crisis management structure, amounting to "an unprecedented role for a vice president". Haig protested, but Bush won out. The article noted that Bush "was chosen to chair meetings in the Situation Room in times of crisis", although it also noted that the Presidential directive formalizing this had not yet been written. This was a reference to the Special Situation Group (SSG), the status of which was formalized in December of that year.

2. On Dec. 4, 1981, President Reagan signed Executive Order 12333 (note title of this Special Report), which designated the National Security Council (NSC) as "the highest Executive branch entity" for review, guidance, and direction of ALL foreign intelligence, counterintelligence, and "special activities" (i.e., covert operations). This effectively put the NSC in charge of the CIA, military intelligence, special operations, and so on. This did not mean that the President's national security adviser would assume this charge, but the NSC staff structure—which is not a staff for the cabinet-level National Security Council, but for the White House—over which Bush increasingly assumed control.

A little-noticed provision of E.O. 12333 gave the CIA the **exclusive** conduct of "special activities" (**covert operations**), "unless the president determines that another agency is more likely to achieve a particular objective". [H: This was not likely to happen, was it? Reagan was now all involved with the Bush MONARCH insipid activities with the helpless and hapless victims of their insidious evil, such as Cathy O'Brien, and had been for long enough to render him useless other than a puppet on the blackmail string. He willingly got into those strings, however.] This, for the first time, officially opened the door for assigning covert operations to the NSC staff.

Furthermore, in a provision which was almost the "character" for Bush's secret government, Section 2.7 of E.O. 12333 permitted U.S. intelligence agencies to enter into secret contracts for services with "private companies or institutions". [H: Are you people REALLY reading this stuff? My gosh, people—they used the system to even lawfully become a SECRET ritualistic takeover.]

- 3. On Jan. 12, 1982, National Security Decision Directive Number 2 (NSDD-2) was Issued, which formalized the National Security Council structure. It confirmed the existence of a series of Senior Interagency Groups (ISGS) for foreign policy, defense policy, and intelligence—thus reducing the power of the Secretary of State and other department heads.
- 4. A month earlier, on Dec. 14, 1981, NSDD-3 had *already* been signed. Entitled "Crisis Management", it affirmed the existence of the Special Situation Group, which, it was said, would be "chaired by the vice president", and assigned to the SSG responsibility for crisis management. "Crisis Management" was defined as encompassing "a national security matter for which Presidential decisions and implementing instructions are required more rapidly than routine interdepartmental NSC staff support provides." This formalized George Bush's control over intelligence and covert operations. [H: Now, how many of you who continue to say Bush "couldn't have stolen the gold certificate and made it a valid and unlimited value", still think this man couldn't PULL IT OFF? THIS MAN AND HIS THUGS HAVE TAKEN A WORLD AND "PULLED IT OFF"—SO FAR. So your next question should be "Why didn't we know?" and "Why weren't we told?" Well, LaRouche WAS TELLING YOU—AND THEY SLAMMED HIM AND ALL HIS WORKERS INTO PRISON—ONE CLERK

FOR SOME 64 YEARS JUST FOR BEING A PART OF THE LAROUCHE GROUP. No, I am NOT HERE to talk about LaRouche—I am here to tell you the truth about Bush and GANG. LaRouche will deserve his own outlay at the proper time.]

5. On May 14, 1982, the first phase of the Bush takeover was completed, with the issuance of an extraordinary memorandum entitled "Crisis Pre-Planning", by the national security adviser. Citing the authority of NSDD-3, this memorandum established an interagency, standing Crisis Pre-Planning Group (CPPG) subordinate to the SSG. The CPPG was created as a *standing* body, which would meet regularly, and develop plans and policies for the SSG.

The SSG-CPPG, under the direct control of the vice president, was given control over ANY area in which a POTENTIAL crisis *COULD* emerge, and was to develop *preemptive policy options* for dealing with it. "Crisis management" was no longer **just for crises**.

This SSG-CPPG structure, according to a chart later thrown at Secretary of State George Shultz during the debate over "Public Diplomacy", operated on the same level as the National Security Council, and was *above* the Secretary of State. In reality, it superseded the National Security Council. It was this to which Secretary of State Shultz vigorously objected in May 1983, but he was overridden. [H: Now, again, you might want to ask what power this Bush had over such as Shultz, et al. Well, he had hauled them off to such as the Bohemian Grove with Kissinger where, at the very least, they were totally morally compromised and couldn't very well tattle on themselves. Blackmail is a very deadly thing in the world of Politicians for it is all there really IS. Once discounted in any manner—the hope of surviving in your own world of deceit and greed is brought to a sudden stop. Bush was clever and shrewd and well-trained by Satan to never let a little thing like "getting free" of his shackles get in his way of top-dog. Of course the ones such as Shultz COULD have done something—but they CHOSE to not do so.]

Incidentally, the May 12, 1982 memorandum directed each participating agency to provide the name of its CPPG representative to the CPPG *COORDINATOR—QLIVER NORTH*.

6. On April 10, 1982, President Reagan was induced to sign NSDD-30, on "Managing Terrorist Incidents". This directive said that if a terrorist situation warranted it, the President's national security adviser could convene the SSG "at the direction of **vice president**"—i.e., GEORGE BUSH. NSDD-30 created the "Terrorist Incident Working Group" (TIWG, or "Tee-Wig"), to support the SSG. TIWG was composed of representatives of the State Department, CIA, Defense Department, Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), and the NSC staff, and was to be chaired by a representative of the NSC staff, which, before too long was—OLIVER NORTH. [H: Perhaps it now becomes CLEAR AS TO WHY REAGAN HAD TO CONTRACT ALZHEIMER'S? HE COULD NOT BE LEFT AROUND TO BOTCH THE COVER-UPS!]

7. Another, closely related, area under Bush's control beginning in 1981, was the "Continuity of Government" program for "emergency preparedness". The *Miami Herald*, in 1987, called the Continuity of Government "a virtual parallel government", and reported that it included a plan "to suspend the *Constitution* in the event of a national crisis". [H: Hold this one UPPERMOST IN YOUR HEARTS!]

A New York Times article, on April 18, 1994, described the "Doomsday Project" as involving more than 20 highly classified "black programs", in military and intelligence agencies; it also involved private companies run by retired military and intelligence personnel. The Times reported that, during the Reagan administration, "the project was supervised by Vice President George Bush". [H: Oh yes we DID tell you about this and had already written about the entire program of "Doomsday" long before this popped forth.] Oliver North wrote in his autobiography Under Fire that this was his first major project at the NSC, and that this was where he came to know Vice President Bush. FEMA was the public side of this program. [H: By the way—OLIVER NORTH DID NOT WRITE HIS AUTO-BIOGRA-PHY! Even that, for all of these notables—IS A BIGGER LIE. THEY DON'T WRITE ANY-THING—THEY ARE WRITTEN "FOR" SO THAT THERE ARE FEW "ERRORS IN JUDGE-MENT" PRESENTED. IF A POLITICIAN OR CO-WORKER IN THESE SHENANIGANS WROTE THEIR OWN—THEY WOULD BE DEADED IMMEDIATELY.]

It was thus that, during the Reagan administration, all intelligence and foreign policy "crisis management" was consolidated, as much as possible, under the operational control of the Vice President of the United States, George Bush.

[END QUOTING OF PART 5]

We have to interrupt this saggy for a commercial break. I have to have Dharma colloidalize over 80 gallons of solution for enhancing the Spelta seed that needs to be planted this afternoon or tomorrow and it has to be done 2 liters at a time. And some of you thought we didn't do anything else except blow your minds! If we work this correctly, friends, George Bush will have "outsmarted" himself. Certainly he will have established something, through his "superfund" theft: OUR WAY OF WORKING LONGER. If it was LEGAL for "him"—then surely it is "legal" for us! He MADE IT LEGAL. We don't need much—never did need much relative to the loot already taken, George. Wouldn't it be easier for EVERYBODY involved to simply help a bit, God's cause? Oh well... another day, another task. So be it.

CHAPTER 8

REC #1 HATONN

FRI., NOV. 8, 1996 7:23 A.M. YR.10, DAY 084

FRI., NOV. 8, 1996

YOU ARE NOW "IN" THE NEW WORLD ORDER

As we walk the pathways and byways of life we sometimes find wondrous things tucked away and out of the ordinary things of a day, a journey, a song, or, in just being in experience for a moment.

In those moments there is consciousness of that which is present without having to "figure it out" or without consideration as to whether it be a gift or a "getcha". Most often, however, we pass these things by in the attempt to push on to the seeming purpose of any particular moment. Can't we smell those roses, enjoy the peace within for a moment—and allow things to flow past as they will? All things pass and change—it is the ONLY way.

I warn you, however, to not get lazy in your attention and, especially to you who would be targets, still, for assaults—take the care I have demanded of you. We had a near miss in the wee hours of this morning. It was not lost on Dharma, and yet E.J. noted it not.

At about 2:26 a.m. the house was jolted by what seemed must be an earthquake. No, it was a pulse against the house just as has been experienced before. This one was indeed serious and alerted a lot of us because it is unacceptable. Dharma, however, jumped out of bed and went to the "news"—to find nothing. We were "busy as the proverbial bees" and I suspect that Dr. Young got a full blast as well. [He did indeed, and on into the rest of the day.] I did not make a roll-call because I, quite frankly, had my hands full. I know, dear ones, it never seems to end—either from the adversary unknown or known. What did you, or do you, do wrong? Nothing—it is the way of evil in its efforts to destroy that which is good. The pace of their antics will quicken for a while so just roll with it, please. But do take care and keep your feet firmly ON THE GROUND and do not go out of your way to help them.

The "non-elections" came off EXACTLY as the New World Order planned them and you will see yourselves merging into a one-Party world headed by the same nasty players as have been controlling up to this minute. You have "new" entities—Clinton doesn't even look like his predecessor and the difference has been reported all the way from France, Australia and Africa.

Will this be the "kinder and gentler" offered a few years back by Bush? NO, but it may, for a while, appear to be so until you are all sucked in again.

By the way, readers, when I mentioned that Jackie had a companion—don't read anything into that message. Mrs. Kennedy/Onnasis was not given to love-affairs and loose moral attitudes and it is wrong to

make such assumptions. She was respected and gathered many powerful friends about her, one of the notable at the time of her death was a Maurice Strong, I believe the name is. This was a lovely and "single" lady and a lot of promises were made for both her demise and her attendance. I do not wish to leave an incorrect assumption. The lady was known about the world and certainly made "contacts" all over the globe. Obviously, her associations would come from the world of movers and shakers—good or bad. If you didn't know the "bad" or "good" things, or even the people to whom we refer—how expect ye that she would know of their habits and attitudes? This is true with each person upon whom we focus, so I ask that you not jump to conclusions BEFORE you even know the evidence. Remember, she experienced the MURDER of her partner and was never able to bring TRUTH or closure to that trauma. She was going to try to do so—and therefore, her demise.

It is a strange phenomenon, truth. If that lady told the truth—people would pay attention for many reasons. However, we and other truth-bringers are ignored, buried, and few listen at all. This is, however, why (and I repeat again and again), we do not bring "revelation", we bring that which is known and CAN BE PROVEN. Gossip is for seers and fortune tellers. However, you should hear and see it all if you can do so—because therein lies the ability to finally discern, judge and function—IN KNOWING RECOGNITION.

Pity the man who acts stupidly in deliberate attempt to accomplish wrong deeds, for he deserves no compassion and certainly will experience his own gift of return upon himself. Oh yes, I could give you thousands of examples which would reflect in recognition upon your minds—but we will save it for a while longer and then, perhaps, we shall ask the legal people if some of the ongoing (now at the U.S. Supreme Court involving the Green Brigade) debacles can be shared. That court now finds 8 different tales from Green's own mouth as to "how" and "why" he had Overton's gold buried in his yard. Have his attorneys, Abbott and Horton, done Mr. and Mrs. Green great service? Of course not, and when will all of you being used by these misfits come against THEM? They are your rightful targets—not the ones from whom you or your buddies stole and damaged.

These people could have made things RIGHT and yet they have now pushed to the point that the entire world will know of their transgressions and misappropriations. Still they come against the ones who have done NOTHING to them. I find it quite remarkable and have come to believe that the limits of the patience of the courts may well have been reached. Will a man actually sell his soul for a bit of gold? OH INDEED! MOREOVER, IF IN WRONG BEFORE GOD, THE MAN SHALL LOSE BOTH THE GOLD AND REPUTATION—AS IT "JUSTLY" SHOULD COME TO PASS.

Will there be an Armageddon? Yes. I see no way that change can come fully, to reverse itself from that which is taking place. It is still POSSIBLE. It is NOT PROBABLE. As long as the would-be-KINGS own the world—it cannot be changed into the Constitutional hands of THE PEOPLE. And, mostly, look around, do you WANT the "masses" to rule? What has happened to you-the-people? Do you want clowns like Michael Jackson and Spielberg to rule instead? They may make interesting movies but are they JUST controllers? They help mold SICK MINDS, not sound government, and yet more people WORSHIP at the feet of a fallen football player than bend in reverence to GOD! Few want to hear the word and truth of GOD because it brings pain and self realization of responsibility long ago dumped and avoided. The population of Earth Human Mankind will get exactly what it has earned and deserves; no more, no less.

Will the "GOOD" go with the "BAD"? No, for the transition is the dividing line. The evil-mongers want you to believe so, but NO, it is NOT SO. GOODNESS PREVAILS EVEN WHEN THERE IS NO APPEARANCE OF IT SO BEING.

"THE" TEACHER SAID... REGARDING LAWS

If man is faint of heart in spirit, so are his laws faint-hearted and are like heresy. If man is presumptuous and disregards the Commandments and Laws of The Creation and of God, he is forced to bring forth his own laws which are full of mistakes and lead him astray. Laws and commandments made according to men produce murder and evil, and evil will spread and gain control, and man no longer has any power over it. Commandments and laws are valid only if they are derived from wisdom and logic. But logic requires wisdom and perception."

In this same line of reasoning: Take my hand for YOU are the "stranger" in Paradise, and you remember not, your way!

God honors and protects you who honor and protect selves, for it is the way of God in the wondrous reflection of His own radiance. Any being who commits, knowingly, crimes, reflects the guilt and emptiness of his SELF. And always KNOW that when Satan is THROUGH with the "tool" he always throws it away like an empty lemon peel. Satan will squeeze the goodness and light from your being and then abandon you to whatever fate is pending for your carcass. For every pain or unrighteous act perpetrated against those of Truth, so shall come back a hundred fold *IN KIND*. THAT *IS JUSTICE*. God is "just", not necessarily "*fair*". Life is not a game of accomplished "fairness"—but the intent is always toward JUSTICE, if attended properly.

I realize that Truth is very difficult to comprehend in all its wonder and seeming detail. However, again I warn you that you must come to know the players on the opponent's team lest you straggle into their pit and become one with them. The taking is so subtle and so silent in upstart that it often is reflected in seemingly small events. Once in the TRAP, however, extrication is all but impossible. Then, when you get evil-spirited legal reptiles after your assets—you have surely met Satan in full bloom.

Readers continue to ask if "Desireé knows all about this mess perpetuated on and on by George?" NO! But "consequences" are interesting cycles. When one CHOOSES to remain with "the beast", they go down with the beast. And this man, Green, STILL says he hears from, and speaks with, ME. Do you really think so? Even with his eight tales about the gold he hid, NOT EVEN ONE IS RIGHT! When a man's tale "changes" over and over in the presentation from one to another—you can know that all but one and perhaps ALL are lies.

When Judges and Magistrates FACE THE REALIZATION that "they" have been made the Fool—the lying dancers may be caused to STOP. And people, is it not about time? On the other hand, it sometimes falls that the Magistrate or the Judge will cover his own misdeeds and therein comes the demise of the entire judicial system as a balance of right vs. wrong. Mostly you-the-victim are caused to have no alternative but to wait and see—or withdraw from the game. The latter is what is worked toward in great

diligence but there will always be a few who SHALL prevail no matter how long it takes.

GOVERNMENT POST RESIGNATIONS <u>Christopher</u>

The most revealing resignation from the "new" government hierarchy with Clinton is, of course, Waren Christopher, Secretary of State. DO YOU SUPPOSE HE *KNOWS SOMETHING* YOU DON'T? Well, HE DOES AND IT IS NOT GOOD NEWS.

Let us return to our ongoing outlay from *EIR* in the Bush Special Report of October 1996.

We were speaking of connections with John Train, et al:

[QUOTING, PART 6:]

DONALD GREGG AND WALTER RAYMOND

Donald P. Gregg, a CIA officer since 1951, was detailed to the Carter administration NSC staff in 1979, and was regarded by some as a Reagan-Bush "mole" during the 1980 election campaign, keeping an eye out for any sort of "October Surprise". The new administration requested that Gregg remain at the NSC, and he headed the NSC's Intelligence Directorate until 1982. In August 1982, he formally resigned from the CIA to become Bush's national security adviser, and he remained in that position until 1989.

In July 1982, Gregg recommended that Walter Raymond, a CIA officer experienced in the CIA's clandestine overseas media program, who had been seconded by the NSC to the U.S. Army for much of his career, be posted to the NSC to replace Gregg. One of Raymond's two deputies in the NSC Intelligence Directorate was Kenneth DeGraffenreid (who succeeded him in this position in 1983).

Raymond later testified that his responsibilities included reviewing intelligence community programs for the Senior Interagency Group/Intelligence (SIG/I, created by NSDD-2), including covert operations and counterintelligence programs. But Raymond had a particular specialty: He was regarded by some as the CIA's leading propaganda expert.

In June or July 1983, Raymond was made international director of communications for the NSC, with the concurrent title of special assistant to the president. As he later explained it, he had been urging this reorganization upon then-National Security Adviser Bill Clark for months, to help "fight the war of ideas". Shortly before this, Raymond resigned from the CIA to avoid "contamination" (his word) of the Public Diplomacy effort by overt ties to the CIA.

Under E.O. 12333, the definition of permitted covert operations *excluded* those activities intended "to influence United States political processes, public opinion, policies, or media". Either Bush, Gregg, and Co. conveniently interpreted this prohibition as not covering the NSC staff, or else they simply chose to ignore it.

The "Public Diplomacy" effort was part of the broader "Project Democracy" announced by President

Reagan in a speech to the British Parliament on June 8, 1982. In January 1983, Reagan signed NSDD-77, entitled "Management of Public Diplomacy Relative to National Security". Authored by Raymond, among others, NSDD-77 called for strengthening "the organization, planning, and coordination of the various aspects of the public diplomacy of the United States". Under NSDD-77, a cabinet-level "Special Planning Group" was created, with an executive committee composed of representatives from the Defense Department, State Department, and U.S. Information Agency. (One of the DOD representatives to the Public Diplomacy SPG was Craig Alderman, also a top DOD representative to FEMA and the "Continuity of Government" apparatus.)

Raymond also headed the interagency Central American Public Diplomacy Task Force, even before he assumed his new position in July 1983. Out of this came the creation of the office of Public Diplomacy for Latin America and the Caribbean in the state Department (S/LPD). This office was created over the opposition of Secretary of State Shultz. Shultz's concerns were obviously well founded: Although it was located in the State Department, S/LPD reported to Walter Raymond at the NSC.

SHULTZ PROTESTS

Shultz wrote a memorandum to President Reagan on May 25, 1983, in which, according to the staff report cited at the beginning of this section, he tried to head off the creation of S/LPD. Shultz asked Reagan for a structure in which he would be Reagan's "sole delegate in carrying out your policies".

A memorandum was sent back to Shultz in the name of the President—although unsigned—which stated: "Success in Central America will require the cooperative effort of several Departments and agencies. No single agency can do it alone nor should it." Attached was a chart, entitled "NSDD-2 Structure for Central America", which put the NSC between the president and the secretary of state, and which placed **Bush's** Special Situation Group on the same level as the NSC. This, as we identified above in the discussion of NSDD-2 and 3, marked the consolidation of Vice President Bush's control over covert operations policy.

S/LPD was headed by Otto Reich, a former Democrat who had become a "neo-con" Republican. Reich contracted out most of his work, particularly to International Business Communications (IBC), which became a subject of much examination during the "Iran-Contra" investigations. IBC then got busy placing op-ed pieces, feature articles, and letters-to-the-editor in major newspapers and magazines, without ever identifying that they originated in an official U.S. government agency.

IBC also facilitated the transfer of funds raised by North and company (including by Roy Godson and Richard Mellon Scaife) to Swiss and offshore banks accounts.

MILITARY PSY-OPS

Important insight into how the NSC Public Diplomacy operation worked is provided by a January 1986 memorandum from Reich to Raymond. Reich says that during 1985 five personnel from the 4th Psychological Operations Group of the U.S. Army had been detailed to S/LPD. Then Reich complained to Raymond that the Department of Defense had turned down his request for four more psy-ops personnel. At that time, the 4th Psy Ops Group, stationed at Fort Bragg, functioned under the Army Special

Operations Command, which in turn, was subordinate to the Joint Chiefs of Staff J-3 Joint Special Operations Agency—a favored and primary instrumentality for Bush's secret government apparatus. (The 4th Psy Ops Group was a regular recipient of military intelligence communications reporting on activities of the LaRouche movement in Europe and elsewhere.) Air Force intelligence personnel were also detailed to S/LPD.

The House Foreign Affairs Committee staff report stated that "Donald Gregg... presently national security adviser to Vice President Bush, initiated the recommendation which led to the assignment of the senior CIA covert operative [Raymond] to the NSC." The staff report then states that Raymond "was instrumental in facilitating the assignment of intelligence personnel from the Department of Defense to S/LPD and the expansion of State Department resources available to S/LPD despite objections to, and initial denials of, such requests by senior officials at the Departments of Defense and State."

Raymond's Public Diplomacy group also worked closely with Faith Whittlesey, later ambassador to Switzerland, who at that time was in the office of Public Liaison in the White House, which was also engaged in trying to mobilize support for the administration's Central American policies.

When Raymond's deposition was taken by the Congressional Iran-Contra committee in 1987, Raymond was asked about his 1983 recommendation to hire Michael Ledeen. Ledeen had left the State Department in 1982 along with Haig, and Raymond wanted him back. Why? "He is a good writer," was Raymond's answer.

PUBLIC DIPLOMACY TARGETS EUROPE

In a revealing, Jan. 25, 1983 memorandum, Raymond wrote that the President had signed NSDD-77, "solidly endorsing our course of action". He called the Public Diplomacy program "a new art form", and declared: "Programs such as Central American, European strategic debate, Yellow Rain and even Afghanistan have foundered by a failure to orchestrate sufficient resources & forces to these efforts." Raymond proposed that the public-private effort needed to be supplemented with "private funds", and he said that preparation was under way for a meeting of "potential donors" with the President. A broader donors' group was needed, Raymond wrote: "We can not, forever, rely on one or two good souls, such as Smith-Richardson or Mellon-Scaife."

The priority areas of concern listed in Raymond's memorandum were: European security and the Intermediate Nuclear Forces (INF) treaty, Central America, Afghanistan, and Yellow Rain. Although the Congressional investigations focussed most of their attention on Central America, the fact is that Europe, not Central America, was the primary focus of the Public Diplomacy project at its inception. This sheds significant light on the targeting of LaRouche by this same group, which occurred simultaneously with the efforts documented in the records of congressional investigations.

On March 3, 1983, Raymond sent a classified memorandum to National Security Adviser William Clark proposing that the President meet with a group of potential funders of "public diplomacy" efforts. Raymond described two meetings that had already been held with "private sector" people. The group

which Raymond described, just happened to include a number of individuals who were also directly involved in efforts against LaRouche, such as a representative of the Smith-Richardson Foundation (which later financed the Dennis King book slandering LaRouche), Leonard Sussman and Leo Cherne of Freedom House, and Roy Godson.

The meeting with President Reagan was held on March 21, 1983, and included Jimmy Goldsmith, Carl Linder, Joachim Maitre (representing the German publisher Axel Springer), Rupert Murdoch, John Kluge (Metromedia), George Gallup, and Peter Dailey, then the U.S. ambassador to Ireland. The specific, stated purpose of this meeting was European security and arms-reduction issues—hence the heavy European composition of the meetings. Archer Daniels Midland [H: DOLE'S MAJOR MONEY RESOURCE.], chairman Dwayne Andreas and David Rockefeller were described as already being "on board".

Raymond also submitted to National Security Adviser Clark a set of "talking points" for the President to use at the March 21 meeting. The talking points draft stresses the need to meet the Soviet challenge in Europe: "The Soviets—through their campaign of disinformation and propaganda—seek to convince the peoples of Western Europe that friendship with the United States increases rather than reduces the threat to their security." The document, presumably drafted by Raymond's office, says that the Soviets "are fighting on the ideological battlefields of Europe", and, "We must counter our adversaries." The next point recalls Reagan's speech to the British Parliament in June 1982, proposing to build the "infrastructure of democracy" with a combined government and private sector effort.

OTHER PRIORITIES

During the weeks following the March 21 donors' meeting, Raymond reported that Godson and Cherne had a number of follow-up meetings with the "private donors" executive committee. Meanwhile, Raymond also turned to the second major focus of the Public Diplomacy project, which was Central America—i.e., support for the Contras.

A third, major focus of Public Diplomacy was Afghanistan, an area which intersected the Afghanistan Relief Committee of John Train and Leo Cherne. In 1985, Raymond initiated the creation of the Afghan Media Resource Center at Boston University, under the direction of the Dean of the School of Journalism, Joachim Maitre—a participant in the original March 21, 1983 donors' meeting. This became an item of great controversy at Boston University, and in Pakistan, in 1987. The NSC-U.S. Information Agency Public Diplomacy offices had frequent dealings with Train's ARC, according to USIA documents.

Another focus was **Africa**, in particular, support for the CIA-supported "freedom fighters" in Angola around Jonas Savimbi. In a number of memoranda written in May 1985, Raymond expressed his hope that a "Freedom Fighters International" movement could be formed, which would include the Contras, the Afghan resistance, Savimbi's forces in Angola, and so on. One memorandum, from Raymond and North, to National Security Adviser Robert McFarlane, expressed their hopes for the formation of this international coalition, which would be called the "Alliance for Liberation and Democracy."

The Raymond-North memo said that one Jack Wheeler "has been actively helping with the organizational work". During the Clinton administration, Wheeler surfaced as a regular writer for the *Strategic*

Investment Newsletter of Lord William Rees-Mogg and James Dale Davidson. Wheeler put out the line in March 1995 that a brutal U.S. government assault on militia groups was being planned as a prelude to a declaration of martial law; Wheeler's fantastic prediction of a bloody "Waco 2" attack spread like wildfire among anti-government militia and separatist groups. In the summer of 1996, Wheeler accused President Clinton of responsibility for a string of murders in Arkansas and elsewhere, and suggested that Clinton deserved the electric chair.

[H: You-the-people have just now been run through the knotholes of these same types of "rumors" deliberately set to distract and bring you into order through disorder. We have no alternative, in good journalistic fashion, save to offer those rumors and mutterings. However, it behooves you to ALL have KNOWLEDGE when it comes to these things—FOR NONE OF THE THINGS TOUTED TO SCARE THE DAYLIGHTS OUT OF YOU, HAPPENED—AS USUAL! I am continually amazed at you who come rushing to me with "what do we do?". I am not your "keeper" or "handler", chelas. I offer what I can in TRUTH so that you can discern and act in wisdom. I am asked to comment and verify, yea endorse, this "channel" or that one, etc. I am not interested in those "mouths". If they offer truth, accept it, and if they offer garbage, I suggest you NOT accept it. I am asked about Tuella and Ramtha and on and on. Goodness, when are you going to learn? Tuella got sucked-IN to a pronouncement of the arrival of Ashtar's bastard-son, Vegan, in about 1989-90 and the ONLY place you could have the blessings of Vegan's truth was through paying for it through her resource. Now, I don't think that is so good for you misguided people. It is worse, in my own opinion, than what the government is doing to you through its lies. NO THANK YOU—I no longer am going to get entangled in "channel" arguments. TRUTH IS TRUTH AND WHEN YOU LEARN TO DISCERN AND KNOW TRUTH— YOU WON'T HAVE TO WORRY ABOUT SORTING SPEAKERS.1

C. THE 'TRAIN SALON'

No later than April 23, 1983, the first meeting of the nascent "Get LaRouche" task force was held at John Train's Manhattan townhouse. This group of government officials, private journalists, financiers, and others became the coordinating center for the news media propaganda and slander campaign against Lyndon LaRouche. Known attendees or participants included:

- * Richard Mellon Scaife, primary funder of Public Diplomacy, and of the Heritage Foundation; currently a major financial backer of anti-Clinton articles and tracts.
- *Roy Godson, consultant to: NSC (Public Diplomacy), the President's Foreign Intelligence Advisory Board (PFIAB), CIA Director William Casey, and the U.S. Information Agency and its Director Charles Z. Wick; expert on "Soviet disinformation" and "active measures"; and longtime spy and informant against LaRouche. Godson's National Strategy Information Center (NSIC) is funded by the Richard Mellon Scaife and by the Smith-Richardson Foundation, among others; Prescott Bush is on the NSIC board.
- * Mira Lansky Boland, ADL Fact-Finding Division, former DOD and CIA employee; worked closely with federal and state prosecutors against LaRouche and associates; she was later forced to testify about her attendance at the Train meetings in one of the Virginia LaRouche cases.

[H: Do you see WHY I ask you to not form groups nor attend groups of this type—even to just witness? A journalist might well be able to be unofficially uninvolved, but if you don't attend these things—YOU ARE NOT CAUGHT UP IN THE ASSUMPTION OF YOUR ATTACHMENTS. LONELY? Perhaps, but it saves a lot of explaining and denials of participation of some sort or another. Dharma lives for and from the letters and loving cards from you-the-readers because she doesn't participate in ANYTHING save occasionally one sewing class with friends. We cannot function and do our work if we are caught up into the same morass as are the Adversaries. It is certainly not difficult to do this in order to bring about freedom and recognition of GOD. All priorities simply have to be measured carefully against those abilities of the enemy to pin something on YOU that does not belong in any manner whatsoever. He then traps himself within his own lies—if there is nothing to remotely indicate otherwise. And yes, we all DO learn the hard way.]

- * Leonard Sussman, executive director of Freedom House; member of the national board of directors of the ADL; Public Diplomacy activist.
- * Pat Lynch, NBC-TV producer; helped recruit government witnesses for prosecution against LaRouche.
 - * Sol Sanders, former editor of *Business Week*.
 - * Virginia Armat, former editor of *Reader's Digest*, personal editor to John Train.
 - * Dennis King, author of numerous articles and a book attacking Lyndon LaRouche.

[H: Why am I running the LaRouche material and references? Because the man TRIED HIS BEST to inform you and tell you how it is. He still tries! Was he wrong about anything? Of course! But he is not wrong about the political corruption and taking of a world. If you recognize these names, you will NOT be so gullible of their "expert" status other than in the hoped-for NEW WORLD ORDER of THE ELITE.]

- * Michael Hudson, former consultant to Chase Manhattan Bank.
- * Ellen Hume, freelance writer for the Wall Street Journal and other publications.
- * Chip Berlet, associate of Dennis King; researcher and "expert" on Lyndon LaRouche and on various right-wing groups.
- * John Rees, British subject, publisher of *Information Digest*; FBI informant and source; spoke to Nathan Hale Institute in 1985 about LaRouche, utilizing **confidential** grand jury information; testified against LaRouche to U.S. Commission on Civil Rights in May 1986.
 - * Rael Jean Isaac.
 - * Cleo Patrius.

*A number of individuals identifying themselves as "government connected". [H: Doesn't this sound something like: "We are the Pleiadians...?]

The purpose of the campaign launched by the Train salon was TWOfold: (1) to break LaRouche's channels to the Reagan White House and U.S. military and intelligence circles; and (2) to lay the groundwork for the prosecution and imprisonment, if not the assassination, of LaRouche. [H: These bad boys play dastardly games, readers, and but for the Grace of God goes THEE.]

The timing of the April 23, 1983, session of the Train salon is significant. On March 23, two days after the Public Diplomacy private donors' meeting described above, President Reagan stunned the world—and much of his own administration—by announcing the Strategic Defense Initiative, a global ballistic missile defense system based on new physical principles, which would make offensive nuclear weapons obsolete. The President's speech was the subject of an intensive battle within the White House, up to the last minute. The final version, with its offer of cooperation to the Soviet Union, and its rejection of the Kissingerian doctrine of "Mutual and Assured Destruction (MAD) [H: "INSANE" would be more appropriate.], signified that LaRouche's 1982 proposal had won out over the "High Frontier" school of Gen. Danny Graham and others who wanted a ballistic missile defense system limited to off-the-shelf technology, and absolutely without the offer of cooperation with the Soviets.

The Soviets quickly came to blame LaRouche for Reagan's SDI proposal.

The President's adoption of many features of LaRouche's proposal added urgency to a project against LaRouche which was already under way in 1982, particularly at the instigation of **Henry Kissinger**.

[H: Why am I pouring on personal "stuff" about some all-but-insignificant person? Because the modus operandi is the SAME when the Adversarial teams go to work on Truth in order to shut down the possibilities OF GETTING A PUBLIC AWAKE AND INFORMED. THE TACTICS ARE ALWAYS THE SAME, AS YOU WILL SEE.]

'GET LA ROUCHE'

In August 1982, Kissinger wrote a personal note to FBI Director William Webster referencing LaRouche, followed up by a more formal letter from Kissinger's lawyer to Webster, asking the FBI to look into the LaRouche group. This was followed up by a much longer letter to Webster from Kissinger, dated Nov. 25, 1982, which demanded that the FBI take action against LaRouche. Kissinger argued that the LaRouche group may be a "disinformation campaign supported by some foreign intelligence service". Kissinger's letter was forwarded to Assistant FBI Director Oliver "Buck" Revell.

Meanwhile, a memorandum captioned "Lyndon LaRouche and the *Executive Intelligence Review*", drafted by the FBI head of counterintelligence, James E. Nolan, was being circulated. This memo, dated Sept. 24, 1982, stated that many of the activities of the LaRouche organization and the *EIR* "are often propitious to Soviet disinformation and proganda interests." This was precisely the line being put out by

Roy Godson and others in his circle. In a 1981 publication of Godson's NSIC, *EIR* was discussed in a chapter on "Soviet Covert Action".

At a Jan. 12, 1983, meeting of the President's Foreign Intelligence Advisory Board—of which Leo Cherne was the vice chairman, and Roy Godson a consultant—the issue of LaRouche was raised. (PFIAB is a White House agency established under Executive Order 12331.) David Abshire, a close associate of Kissinger, asked if there was any basis for investigating the activities of LaRouche's organization "under the guidelines or otherwise". The next day, FBI Director Webster asked Buck Revell for an update on LaRouche. Revell asked the FBI Intelligence Division for a report, which was provided to Revell on Feb. 1. The memo to Revell described LaRouche's views as the type which are normally associated "with the extreme 'right wing' of the political spectrum". It lifted sections directly from the Sept. 24, 1982 FBI memorandum described above, saying:

While many of the statements and policy positions of LaRouche's organization dovetail nicely with Soviet propaganda and disinformation objectives, we have no firm evidence that they are being inspired, directed or funded by the Soviet Union or other foreign groups....

In addition to its many publications, the LaRouche organization sponsors numerous seminars, conducts research and consulting services, and operates an expensive communications center. This has led critics to speculate that there is a secret source of funds behind LaRouche. We have no information to support this speculation, although it cannot be entirely discounted.

[H: You might find it interesting that through every false accuser of Ekker-Ekker, there has been NOTHING found out of place or handling misinformation or subversive ANYTHING. The Green Brigade, after Kissinger finished, had the FBI, CIA, Postmaster, Welfare, and every OTHER thing they could conjure, even to USING THE LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT TEAMS—against the Ekkers. It is further interesting to note that there IS A LETTER between Jason Brent, ex-Judge, and George Green, outlining the WAYS TO DESTROY THE EKKERS. Ah, perhaps that will look good in court after George took "Attorney-Client privilege" in failure to respond to interrogatory questions—while Jason said he did NOT work for Green but only spoke with him. In that letter it includes getting the FBI onto investigation of the Ekkers, among other dirty-tricks. IF YOU ARE GUILTY OF NO WRONGDOING OR SUBVERSIVE SUBTER-FUGE, READERS, THERE IS NOTHING TO FIND SAVE THE REFLECTION OF THE REAL CULPRITS AT WORK. Perhaps the harassment even serves to keep everybody a bit more careful. Please read on because the old saw "anti-Semitic" rears its ugly head as is usual when there is NOTHING ELSE to find. And these, readers, are the people who get into POWER through YOUR efforts in their behalf.]

Out of the January 1983 PFIAB inquiry, two courses of action clearly emerged. One was a secret FBI investigation and countermeasures under the provisions of Executive Order 12333. The second was the program of "private" countermeasures and black propaganda organized out of the Train salon meetings. The reader should recall that this was precisely the period in which Raymond and Godson were putting together the Public Diplomacy operations, and writing "talking points" for President Reagan about the need to counteract what they called Soviet "disinformation and propaganda".

It is thus of note that, according to one participant, Train insisted that LaRouche and his organization be characterized as "KGB", and that any indications of contacts between LaRouche and CIA officials be ignored. [H: This is just ONE of the ways you get rid of opposing candidates in your nice political world.]

THE FIGHT IN THE NSC

During the early years of the Reagan administration and the tenure of William Clark as national security adviser, LaRouche and his associates had numerous contacts and meetings with administration officials, including many in the NSC. One official with whom a number of such meetings took place was Richard Morris, Clark's executive assistant. Meetings with Morris and other NSC officials occurred in 1982 and 1983 on an almost weekly basis, and included discussions about anti-ballistic missile defense, Soviet relations, economics, the Contra issue, the national debt, bank indebtedness of countries in Central America, and South Africa.

(Years later, in 1988 and 1990, Morris was called as a defense witness in the trials of LaRouche and associates of LaRouche. Morris testified as to the existence of a vociferous opposition group with the NSC staff which opposed anyone having meetings with LaRouche and his associates. [H: Now remember something, readers: LaRouche was running as a candidate for President of the United States. Dirty pool? I guess you could call this kind of mischief a bit "dirty". And what do you think might be the reason that Mr. Perot did not suffer the same bashing? Ah—indeed.] Morris testified that the most vocal opponents of LaRouche in the NSC staff were Walter Raymond, Kenneth DeGraffenreid, and Roy Godson. Morris characterized Godson as the most persistent critic, and testified that Godson had characterized Lyndon LaRouche as "a socialist, as a communist, as a member of the KGB, as a fascist, and always he was an extremist.")

As a direct outgrowth of the Train salon meetings, in the following months, NBC-TV, the *New Republic*, the *Wall Street Journal*, *The Washington Post*, and *Reader's Digest* all ran lengthy ID-format slanders libelling LaRouche variously as a "neo-Nazi", a "KGB agent", and an "anti-Semite", and a "political extremist". [H: All that for simply TRYING TO TELL YOU-THE-PEOPLE THE TRUTH!] Behind the scenes, an immense pressure campaign was launched to shut down all of LaRouche's pipelines into the Reagan administration. The September 1983 resignation of National Security Adviser William Clark from his White House post was the first major public signal that the "Get LaRouche" effort had drawn blood.

In 1989, the New York publishing house of Doubleday issued a compendium of all the slanders in a nearly incomprehensible, book-length "unauthorized biography" of LaRouche, compiled by Dennis King, an active, low-level participant in the Train salon. King's book was financed by the Smith-Richardson Foundation—which, along with the Mellon Scaife Foundation, was the original sugar-daddy of Walter Raymond's Public Diplomacy operation.

[H: Why don't they do more to Dharma? Because she doesn't threaten them in any way. She wouldn't take the office of political anything, if it were crammed down her throat. The assumption becomes such that it is not considered worth the risk of actually taking her OUT. It was not always like that and mavericks come along, like last night, and think it would be better to silence

the TRUTH—but the facts are that it would be a fool's folly to succeed at such antics. LaRouche, remember, was and recently in this election was, trying to win a Presidential election. THAT has to take top priority because it is assumed the *CONTACT* and journals can't reach many readers—a public campaign from a STRONG AND INTERNATIONALLY KNOWN PERSON—can destroy the gangsters.]

King's list of acknowledgements is a virtual "Who's Who" of the Train salon. The list includes NBC-TV's Pat Lynch, who "first cracked the story of LaRouche's White House connection"; the blue-blood Wall Street law firm of Cravath, Swaine and Moore; and, of course, John Train himself—the only time the Wall Street spook has allowed his name to be publicly cited in connection with the "Get LaRouche" campaign.

Train's apparatus also surfaced in anti-LaRouche operations in 1994, when *Worth* magazine, in its July-August issue, printed an eight-page libel of LaRouche. Train is a financial columnist for the glossy monthly.

[END QUOTING OF PART 6]

Enough for today on this particular focus. There is a lot of legal documentation to all of this so do NOT think it is mere GOSSIP. This is truth, readers, and you had best begin to get the records set to correct.

We will next turn our focus to the good old "Goldsmiths", Sirs and all. This is THE "new 'MURDER, INC.'".

Yes indeed, I DO know the disappointment you feel for, after all, Sir James Goldsmith wrote one of the better books of this decade and somehow it just seems disappointing to realize he heads "Murder, Inc.". Well, it is often a hard and jolting time in coming into realization of Truth.

Salu and good morning.

CHAPTER 9

REC #2 HATONN

SAT., NOV. 9, 1996 8:42 A.M. YR.10, DAY 085

SAT., NOV. 9, 1996

NEVER MIND "E.T.s"

I am continually amused, and yes, annoyed at the continuing arguments among readers and especially among non-readers over the "E.T." issue of our work. Forget it, everybody, for this is fully-fledged human physical interchange and experience in business activities. There is no old "phone home, E.T., and Daddy will fix something" attitudes. This is the REAL WORLD and some of you are caught in the Real Stuff. If you people don't move on past the sillies, we can't get to the business because of the wrong perceptions and misdirected attitudes. Until all of you stop draping all your misinterpretations into a lump and hanging it onto New Age invisible mystics—we aren't going to get anywhere at all. I am a Spiritual Being, not a mystical old E.T. needing a 64,000-year attitude adjustment. If you want to play in those absurd games just go right ahead but please do so with Ramtha or somebody else. We have a job to attend.

Since our day began at 3:30 this morning and the body and soul are a bit weary, we will move right into the promised writing about Murder, Inc. and the Goldsmiths.

[QUOTING, PART 7:]

THE GOLDSMITHS AND THE NEW 'MURDER, INC.'

In late 1990, at a European conference of leading ecology activists, Edward "Teddy" Goldsmith, according to an eye-witness, was asked why his brother, Sir James "Jimmy" Goldsmith, was not also in attendance. Teddy replied that Jimmy had been planning to be there but at the last minute had been called off to Washington by his "close friend", George Bush, then the President of the United States. Indeed, the Goldsmith brothers have been intimately involved in some of the nastiest of the secret intelligence programs, under Bush's direction, since the early 1980s, including the Public Diplomacy operation in the United States, and Operation Lock in South Africa.

Jimmy Goldsmith was well-prepared for his participation in the Public Diplomacy operation, which was linked to John Train: Already, in the late 1970s, Sir Jimmy was spreading the line that Lyndon LaRouche's wife, Helga Zepp LaRouche, was "KGB". CIA Counterintelligence chief James Jesus Angleton claimed that he had first picked up this disinformation line from Goldsmith.

Sir James Goldsmith (born Feb. 26, 1933) and Teddy Goldsmith (born Jan. 16, 1928) were the sons of Col. Frank B. Goldsmith (Order of the British Empire; Territorial Efficiency Decoration; Member of Parliament, Conservative, for Stowmarket, Suffolk) and Marcelle Mouillier. One of the reasons they are

so well-suited for building the British-French "Entente Bestiale", is that they had a British father and a French mother.

In 1928, while on the board of the exclusive London hotel Claridges, Col. Frank Goldsmith founded Hotels Reunis, a company which eventually owned 48 hotels in France. These included some of the most important hotels in Paris and Monte Carlo. When, in the 1940s, the Nazis were poised to take over France, the Goldsmith family left France on the same freighter as did Evelyn de Rothschild, their cousin who now heads N.M. Rothschild & Sons, Ltd. They ultimately arrived in the Bahamas, to which the Duke of Windsor had just been shanghaied by the British government and made governor general, in order to keep him from further intrigue with Adolf Hitler. Colonel Goldsmith and his French wife became part of the Duke and Duchess of Windsor's "set". While the family had its wartime base in the Bahamas, the boys were kept in St. Andrews College, in Ontario, Canada.

Teddy then attended Magdalen College, Oxford. Jimmy never went beyond Eton. Their close friend at the time was John Aspinall, a professional gambler with whom Jimmy especially, used to gamble. By unknown means, Aspinall launched a posh casino in London. According to a knowledgeable former member of the British Secret Intelligence Service, Aspinall had ties to Meyer Lansky. He later used some of the casino profits to fund Teddy's run for Parliament in 1974 on the Ecology Party ticket, and for the European Parliamentary elections in 1979. Aspinall also helped fund some of Teddy's pocket zoos and game preserves, before Jimmy turned over much of his fortune to the Goldsmith Foundation to do the same.

A BIGGER CROOK THAN MICHAEL MILKEN

Jimmy Goldsmith made most of his multibillion-dollar fortune in the United States using the same kinds of leveraged buyout, junk bond, and "greenmail" schemes identified with Michael Milken, with whom he often worked in tandem. Jimmy entered the United States in 1973, with the assistance of Wall Street financier and British SIS station chief Arthur Ross—who, only a few years later, would become involved in political intellignce operations against Lyndon LaRouche. In 1973, Jimmy bought 51% of the Grand Union supermarket chain in the United States through his Caveham Ltd. company, which had a subsidiary in France. Grand Union was purchased by Jimmy for only \$62 million, with the assistance of Ross.

Ironically, in 1985, before he went to work with his brother Teddy almost full-time on ecology schemes, Jimmy had taken over Crown Zellerbach Corp., an American forest products company with vast timber reserves. Jimmy was then the sixth-largest exploiter of timber lands in Washington, Oregon, Louisiana, and Mississippi. He swapped these timber holdings for Lord Hanson's gold shares in Newmont Corp.

Jimmy announced his "retirement" from business in the early 1990s, after he and Jacob Rothschild failed in their \$20-billion-plus attempt at a leveraged buyout of the British American Tobacco company.

With his retirement from business, Jimmy started selling off his shares of Newmont, such that, as of 1990, his holding had dwindled to 17%; international speculator George Soros acquired 20%. [H: Small little world, isn't it?] The other holders in Newmont included an associate of Jimmy's and Soros's, Lord Jacob Rothschild, and Lee Kai Shing (often spelled Li), the narcotics-trafficking "Red Fat Cat" of Hongkong

who recently retired from the board of the Hongkong Shanghai Bank. (He was replaced there by one of his sons, who owns 10%.) Lee Kai Shing is allegedly the piggy-banker through whom Conrad Black's Hollinger Corporation was able to afford the purchase of the *Telegraph* PLC and the *Jerusalem Post*. Jimmy is still an advisory board member of Hollinger.

Jimmy remains on the board of Jacob Rothschild Holdings, which gives him several significant connections. First, a fellow board member is Lord William Rees-Mogg, the former editor of the London *Times* and current publisher of numerous newsletters and newspaper columns; Rees-Mogg is the British SIS point man for the Club of the Isles efforts to destroy the U.S. Presidency and president Clinton, through slander and innuendo.

Second, Jacob Rothschild Holdings is the holding company for St. James Capital, whose top executives include Nils Taube, a longtime partner in crime with Soros and a board member of Soros' multibillion-dollar Quantum Fund NV, based in the Netherlands Antilles. Jacob Rothschild is the son of Lord Victor Rothschild, who had been affiliated with, and protector of, the British "triple agent" network of H.A.R. "Kim" Philby et al., and particularly of Anthony Blunt, who worked as Surveyor of Queen's pictures. Lord Jacob Rothschild's sister Emma had been Swedish Prime Minister Palme's mistress at the time of his assassination. Some members of SAPO, the Swedish intelligence agency, thought that this liaison represented a national security danger because, whether or not Emma was a party to the murder, her trysts with Palme put the prime minister at risk, especially because Emma could be easily surveilled. But, Swedish authorities refused to allow SAPO to interview Emma Rothschild.

THE GAIA MYTH AND ECO-FASCISM

The Goldsmith brothers have both formed delphic anti-united-Europe political parties in France and in the British Empire, which have created a Jacobin movement by ostensibly opposing the economic austerity of the Maastricht Treaty. The French party, *L'Autre Europe*, founded with Jimmy's money, peddles an eco-fascist belief structure, based on brother Teddy's Gaia (Earth Mother) "spirituality", which Teddy started peddling with his *The Blueprint for Survival* in 1972. *L'Autre Europe* helped stir up near-riots during the recent elections in France.

Jimmy has just founded a Referendum party in the U.K., which is calling for a referendum on whether Britain should be part of Maastricht; his party is lambasting Prime Minister John Major, and helping to bring the corporatist fascist Labour Party of Tony Blair into power.

Although the Goldsmith brothers appear to be offering an alternative by their opposition to Maastricht, the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade, and the North American Free Trade Agreement (on ecological, rather than anti-free-trade, grounds), they also oppose a "Marshall Plan" approach for massive infrastructure-building in Eastern Europe, on the basis that the people there are too corrupt and stupid. Teddy published a book in 1992 arguing against large infrastructure projects, on the grounds that they destroy the environment.

In 1972, Teddy wrote *The Blueprint for Survival*, which, along with the *The Triple Revolution*, became one of the bibles of the eco-fascist counterculture. Teddy talked about eliminating cities in favor of small, "self-sustainable" villages, and various other schemes related to what Jimmy later used in his *L'Autre*

Europe campaign against Maastricht. Since Jimmy went "green", circa 1990, he not only expanded his Goldsmith Foundation to finance his and his brother's ecological projects, but he has been using ecology arguments for his political activities, as in his book *Le Piege* (*THE TRAP*).

Teddy has been one of the main promoters of the Gaia "religions", in order to spread eco-terrorism. According to a source at the Gaia Foundation Jimmy is now one of their leading funders. The Gaia Foundation works directly with Prince Philip and Charles, Prince of Wales.

Teddy is publisher and editor of *The Ecologist*, which is influential among the ecological movement. Already in 1983, Teddy had devoted the major space in *The Ecologist* to an article entitled "Gaia: An Ancient View of Our Planet". It stresses how Gaia will crush in the most brutal manner anyone who interferes with nature.

Except for the Goldsmith brothers' current aversion to nuclear energy, there is little difference between the arguments of Teddy in *The Blueprint for Survival* and Jimmy in *The Trap*. In the latter, Jimmy proposes "a society flush with villages, small artisans, a multitude of small and medium-size enterprises opening up a wide spectrum of activities". He advocates "non-intensive agriculture", together with a society "based on local development rather than urban concentration", which he says will engender a rebirth of spirituality and holiness. He claims that the future must rely upon "renewable resources", and calls for a "reduction in electricity consumption". For example, he prescribes a 55% reduction of energy use in the United States. [H: Again I find it most interesting that everybody attends everybody else's business. Why would Goldsmith have ANYTHING to say about the use of anything in the U.S.? People, you have to see this tiny trap already sprung on you. The facts are that to survive NOW, you are going to have to do exactly what he suggests in many instances—just to stay in the game. You are not now a global "community", you are a global slave-labor camp serving the likes of these people of which we write. And some of you would simply extend that grouping to include yourselves as among the masters in the game.]

Since his "retirement" from business, Jimmy Goldsmith's main residence has been a hacienda with thousands of acres in eastern Mexico, which he calls an environmental preserve. [H: Sure, it makes it tax-free.]

[H: Let us now leave the Goldsmith arena and refocus on Olof Palme and his assassination and cover-up of same.

THE OLOF PALME ASSASSINATION AND COVER-UP, REVISITED

Swedish Prime Minister Olof Palme may very well have signed his own death warrant, when, on Sept. 29, 1985, Swedish Customs officials raided the Malmo offices of arms broker Karl-Erik Schmitz, and seized thousands of pages of documents, detailing the activities of a global arms and munitions cartel, operating on both sides of the Iron Curtain, that was responsible for, among other things, funnelling billions of dollars of war materiel to Iran and Iraq, to the Nicaraguan Contras, and to terrorist groups all over the globe.

The raid occurred more than a year before the unraveling of the misnomered "Iran-Contra" scandal, at the peak of the Reagan-Bush administration's arms-for-hostages dealings with the Khomeini regime in Iran, and its violations of the Boland amendments, forbidding the administration from arming the Nicaraguan Contras.

And, while the raid on Schmitz's offices did not grab global headlines, as did the Oct. 5, 1986 crash of a Contra supply plane over Nicaragua, it nevertheless sent shockwaves throughout the highly insulated world of the "munitions cartel", the inner circles of the George Bush-led White House "secret parallel government", and allied Western and Eastern European governments and private financier factions—the self-described "Club of the Isles".

The Malmo raid broke the hermetic seal that had, up until that moment, protected a multibillion-dollar underground economy, trafficking in weapons, drugs, precious metals, and other commodities across the East-West divide. And, while Palme was himself a part of that structure, and was personally committed to assuring that the Swedish branch of the "explosives cartel" was not deprived of its share of the action, the raid placed Palme in the untenable position of having to square his public identity as the chief enforcer of the United Nations' arms embargo on the Iran-Iraq War belligerents with his insider role in the global arms bazaar.

Businessman Karl-Erik Schmitz put it succinctly, in a press statement he issued in November 1987: "Everyone has kept this secret until the Swedish Customs went in like an elephant in a porcelain shop and destroyed it." Olof Palme was held personally responsible for that raid, regardless of whether it was a willful act on his part, or merely a blunder.

Perhaps most damning—for Palme, George Bush, Margaret Thatcher, and the Club of the Isles—the raid turned up extensive evidence that at least one high-ranking official of the East German communist party (SED), Alexander Schalck-Golodkowski, was an integral part of the Western "munitions cartel", and a prime distributor of weapons to both sides in the Iran-Iraq War, and to the U.S.-backed Contra forces, battling against one of the Soviet bloc's most strategically situated client states, Sandinista Nicaragua.

Schalck-Golodkowski, known among his SED colleagues as "Big Alex", had been deputy foreign trade minister in the dictatorship of Eric Honecker since 1967, heading a unit called the Department of Commercial Coordination (CoCo). Schalck reported personally to Honecker and to the Central Committee of the SED. He was a recipient of two of the highest awards given by the East German state, the Order of Karl Marx (1982) and the Great Star of People's Friendship (1984).

At the heart of Schalck's empire was IMES Import-Export GmbH, based at the International Trade Center of Fredrichstrasse in East Berlin. The firm ran the lion's share of East Germany's trade with the West, and accounted for over 50% of East Germany's hard-currency earnings.

As the documents seized in the Malmo raid first revealed, Schalck's IMES warehouses near the East German port city of Rostock were a crucial way-station on the underground railroad of weapons and explosives into the Persian Gulf, southern Africa, and Central America.

In a typical transaction, revealed in the documents seized at Schmitz's Scandinavian Commodities AB

offices, during the Sept. 29, 1985 raid, the Swedish explosives company, Bofors-Nobel, would deliver a shipment of military gunpowder, falsely labeled as "industrial chemicals", to the Austrian firm Dynamit Nobel Wien GmbH. Often, these shipments were handled by a Finnish company, Sevico Oy, which had specifically hired a Bofors-Nobel executive, Thorbjorn Evardsen, in 1981, to handle these "special deliveries". Once the powder arrived in Austria, it would immediately be reexported, across the East German border to Furstenburg, and then on to the IMES depot outside of Rostock. For a large fee, IMES would then re-label the Swedish gunpowder as an East German product, and ship it to Iran.

In addition to the Rostock route, Bofors-Nobel had, during the 1980s, established other smuggling routes into Iran, via Singapore, and through other European countries, including Italy and Yugoslavia. Often, the Italy route involved the use of phony end-user certificates, showing that the gunpowder was actually destined for African countries. This brings us full-circle, back to the Ricci networks in the Seychelles Islands and in the Republic of South Africa, with its ties to the Italian underworld and the Propaganda-2 (P-2) lodge.

Karl-Erik Schmitz had first gone into the explosives business as a by-product of his long-standing ties to Iran, in the oil business. Schmitz had been involved in oil-for-munitions deals involving Iran and South Africa, even prior to his dealings with Bofors-Nobel.

SAFE TO DO BUSINESS AGAIN

The assassination of Olof Palme apparently relieved a certain amount of anxiety over the danger of further unwanted revelations about the activities of the arms and munitions cartel and its East German and Soviet "business partners". The raid on Schmitz's Malmo offices had come at a particularly bad moment, when the Reagan administration had formally approved covert arms shipments to Iran, and when the activities of the Bush-North apparatus were at their zenith.

On April 28, 1986, two months to the day after the Palme killing, two prominent Bush-North operatives, Albert Hakim and Tom Clines, traveled to Copenhagen, Denmark, to set up a new series of front companies, to manage both the Iranian arms deals, and the continued supply of weapons to the Contras, the Afghan mujahideen, and so on. Clines, a former CIA officer who had worked closely with Theodore G. Shackley, the CIA's one-time deputy director of operations, and was now a major player in the Bush-North "Enterprise" of off-shore "private" front companies, had arranged the Scandinavia trip, to reactivate a longtime asset, Tom Erik Parlow, a Norwegian by birth, who was an expert in shipping sensitive cargos of arms and explosives. Parlow and his Danish partner, Svend Andersen, ran a string of Copenhagen-based shipping companies which chartered small cargo ships to make international arms deliveries, especially to the Middle East and the Persian Gulf.

A week after the Clines-Hakim visit, on May 6, 1986, a Danish vessel, the *Pia Vesta*, which had been chartered by Parlow and Andersen's company, S.A. Shipping, was loaded with tons of weapons and other heavy military equipment at the port of Rostock. The arms had come from the IMES warehouses. Final destination: the Contras.

During the same visit to Copenhagen in late April 1986, Clines and Hakim had also arranged, through Parlow and Andersen, to purchase their own ship, the *Erria*, via one of the Panama-based "Enterprise"

front companies, Dolmy Business, Inc. Both the *Pia Vesta* and *Erria* stories were probed by Iran-Contra special prosecutor Lawrence Walsh, and were linked to the illegal Bush-North supply operations.

According to the 1993 Final Report of the Iran-Contra Independent Counsel (the "Walsh Report"), Clines "had developed significant contacts with arms dealers in Western Europe and behind the Iron Curtain." Clines "oversaw the logistics of purchasing weapons from private suppliers in Europe and arranging for their delivery to Central America."

But, the question of the assassination of Olof Palme, and the linkage between the East-West arms pipeline and that murder, was far afield from Walsh's narrow mandate.

[END QUOTING OF PART 7]

We need to interrupt this writing for we are too weary to continue without a rest break.

I am pushing all of us because you who are dealing in the line of fire need this information—badly and urgently. We can only handle our own negotiations from a position of strength and information offers that strength.

I realize that to most this simply reads like a good James Bond escapade but there is massive importance riding on this proper outlay of information. I would guess, for instance, that Capt. Smith and Ret. Adm. Yates HAVE NO IDEA OF ALL THIS INTRIGUE AND TO THE EXTENT TO WHICH OTHERS WERE INVOLVED IN THE ENTIRE MANIPULATION OF A WORLD.

I repeat here, directly and bluntly, that I expect nothing more than an agreement KEPT and that agreement was made by the highest ranking players in this game—TO ME. I expect these gentlemen in point TO KEEP THAT AGREEMENT. We can negotiate some of the assets in exchange for some working relationship, BUT IT IS FULLY EXPECTED THAT THE AGREEMENTS BE KEPT—STARTING IMMEDIATELY. THIS IS A COMPUTER MESSAGE WHICH MIGHT WELL PRECEDE TRAVELERS ON THEIR WAY TO DEAL WITH THIS, IN EUROPE. Welcome to the circle, Edwards AFB.

Mr. Salinger is presenting a very daring piece of information this week. We already had the information but thank you for having the guts to come public, sir. The downing of Flight 800 off New York was of your own doing—and that too was buried with the dead while those who KNEW were parked out to sea in the Atlantic. Boy, readers, this has turned into a nasty, dirty, little world of sops.

When we will next write I would like to move on in this outlay to the decade of deception as it has been called, dating the Palme assassination period. This is going to involve the Stasi, the KGB, the Anti-Defamation League of B'nai B'rith (ADL), NBC-TV, and elements of the European social democracy as well as others.

Dharma, we have other attentions upon which to focus so thank you and please take respite wisely for we want all this in the next edition of *Contact*. Public information insures some modicum of protection and security. Salu.

CHAPTER 10

<u>PART VI</u> MORE FROM: FIRE FROM THE SKY

Editor's note: Refer to the 10/15/96 CONTACT, p.30 for Part 39 of this well-researched series. We have recently run the series called "Blackout" which Mr. Burgin has chosen to call his Part VII. We continue here with his Part VI (which is an entire volume available from Mary Snell; (P.O. Box 6708, Texarkana, TX 75505-6708) and is CONTACT's Part 40.

[QUOTING, Part 40:]

FIRE FROM THE SKY, PART VI THE KILLING CONTINUES by Calvin Burgin

THE OKLAHOMA BOMBINGS AND THE RADIOACTIVE COVER-UP

Conspiracy Nation—Vol. 7, Num. 40, by Sherman H. Skolnick

It is now an accepted fact that the federal government has covered up various past radioactive events. Soldiers were exposed to the deadly rays, as tests, starting in the 1950s. An entire town in Utah—roughly a third of its inhabitants—became deathly sick or died from radioactive fall-out from Nevada atomic testing. The government denied the dangers for some three decades.

These and dozens of other events, white-washed or suppressed, all under the umbrella of so-called "national security". Are not the health and security of the people "national security"?

After the bombings in Oklahoma City, rescue teams were quickly flown in, such as from Maryland. (Bombings, in the plural, is used, because experts on explosives contend one so-called "fertilizer bomb" did not and could not do the damage as seen in pictures.)

A team of sniffing dogs were brought in. Thereafter, one of the dogs died. Another took mysteriously ill. Some observers became suspicious. So the carcass of the deceased dog was dug up and scientists examining the carcass stated the dog's lungs were very radioactive. They warned those who had buried the dog to now quickly cremate the remains using safety precautions as with any highly radioactive materials.

Some of the rescue team members continue their regular work—but are having extreme health problems. They can barely drag themselves to work, coming home mysteriously exhausted. A woman rescue team member can no longer do her regular work. She stays at home, wasting away. She is afraid to talk except in cryptic remarks and whispers. Apparently she is fearful the government doctors will cut her off from all medical attention if she goes public with what she knows about the bombsites and the aftermath.

She apparently is dying from a deadly dose of radioactivity, from having been in the bombsites on a mission of mercy. Government bureaucrats, of various kinds, insult her, saying, "Get out of bed. You're just a malingerer."

This is just a small snapshot of a broader happening. The federal government is doing this like they have done for decades: lying about radioactivity in the name of "national security".

One special team—a very special team—had a portable Geiger counter; it went berserk in the bombsites. A member of that team whispered into the ear of a very knowledgeable investigative journalist, "Tritium", a radioactive material that reacts somehow with water (such as in the lungs of the sniffing dog).

Some try to explain away the cementing over of the bombsites after quickly demolishing the building. Supposedly done to prevent people from falling into the excavation. Why was the federal government in such a hurry to flatten the federal office building? (End quote)

SHERMAN H. SKOLNICK

Skolnick has a reputation among some as being "too far out"; I've heard it said that "he's Jewish, you can't trust him" or "he's a front for the ADL". I don't know—all I know about him, I like. He tries to bring out the truth, without censorship. He has investigated Federal judges and had them put in jail, in spite of their threats to get him. He says he has been put in jail ten times, not for crimes but for "contempt of court", by judges who later ended up in jail for bribery. It takes a remarkable person to do something like that!

There is a Satanist involved in some of this (documented in court cases, written about in *Time*, etc.) named Michael Aquino, and a Mossad/ADL asset named Chip Berlet. Chip Berlet threatened Skolnick, but Skolnick does not scare easily. For now, I will merely quote what Skolnick said in response to Berlet, from *Conspiracy Nation*, Vol. 5, Num. 70, (quoting:)

[....]One last point: there was this guy, Michael Aquino, who was very upset that I had posted some material by Dave Emory in which Emory said some unflattering things about Mr. Aquino. You may know that Mr. Aquino reportedly claims to be "The Devil". Anyway, Mr. Aquino was all upset. So what did the mighty, so-called "Devil" do? Did he send his fiendish imps from Hell to torment me with hot pitchforks? No. The alleged "Devil" made noises (as are you [Berlet]) of libel, etc. So I thought to myself, "What kind of puny 'Devil' is this, that goes running to lawyers when he gets in a jam?" (And I also thought, "How can you defame someone who is supposedly going around saying that they are 'The Devil'?" If you've got someone that, allegedly, has claimed to be "The Devil", it seems to me that they have already pretty much "defamed" themselves as much as is possible.)

So you [Berlet] may wonder—"But what does that have to do with me?" Answer: I have locked horns with "The Devil", buddy boy, and compared to him, you ain't sh**. (End quote)

You may be interested to know that Skolnick is a paraplegic, confined to a wheelchair (CN 5-39). I think he stands up very well.

I hear people say something like "There cannot be a conspiracy, why, everybody would have to be in on it!" For instance, in the Oklahoma City bombing, the military or federal agents might keep secrets, but what about all the Red Cross volunteers who worked the disaster? If there were a coverup, surely these civilians would not be in on it!

Q: Who is the head of the Red Cross?

A: The President of the Red Cross is Elizabeth Dole, wife of soon-to-be United States President (he hopes), Senator Bob Dole (now ex-Senator, he wanted to spend more time with his family after being visited by "The Angel of Doom") ("Dole will be President over my dead body," says Clinton, figuratively of course).

Q: Who else is in charge of the Red Cross?

A: The Chairman of the Board of the Red Cross is Norman Augustine.

Q: What other hats does Augustine wear?

A: Norman Augustine is also Chief Executive Officer of Lockheed Martin Corp., formerly Martin-Marietta and Lockheed Missile Corporations, now the largest defense contractor in the world. He is also Vice-Chairman along with Bernard L. Schwartz, who is chairman/CEO of Loral Space And Communications. (*Aviation Week & Space Technology*, May 6, 1996, p. 8.)

Q: Who is the biggest donor to the Red Cross?

A: Probably the biggest donor is Dwayne Andreas, head of Archer Daniels Midland. He gave nothing at all to the Red Cross until Elizabeth Dole took over, and since then has given over \$3 million. He has also given over \$200,000 to Bob Dole's election campaign. Archer Daniels Midland is the largest single backer of the Jewish ADL. Andreas is also on the advisory board of the Hollinger Corporation, whose international advisors are Margaret Thatcher, Lord Carrington and Henry Kissinger and which owns the *Jerusalem Post*. Also on the board are other names you might know: David Brinkley (*ABC News*), Zbigniew Brzezinski, William Buckley, Lord Rothschild, Paul Volker, Sir James Goldsmith, Richard Perle, and George Will (*Newsweek* and *Washington Post*). Andreas is a good friend of Gorbachev. The ADM cartel is THE group through which American grain is sent to the Soviets, who in turn are creating a drought in the U.S. (some say) with their "woodpecker" transmissions. The Canadian Prime Minister Mulroney was also head of ADM. *Newsweek* magazine called Andreas one of "Gorbachev's prairie pals".

Q: Let's see, when there is a major earthquake or plane crash or bombing, among the first people to arrive to "secure the scene" are the personal representatives of Bob Dole, Lockheed Martin Corp. and Archer Daniels Midland. I don't see any conspiracy there, do you?

A: Nah, of course not. "Psst, hey, wanna' buy a bridge? I'll make you a good deal." (Some information taken from "Politics, charity mix for Red Cross donor," *Austin American Statesman*, May 2, 1996, p. A4.)

Among the CEO's dying lately was CEO of Texas Instruments, Jerry R. Jenkins who died Wednesday,

May 29, 1996, of a heart attack at age 58. The announcement in the *Austin American Statesman* (May 30, 1996, p. D8.) on May 30 was: "'He has had an enormous impact not only on our industry, but on all of those of us who have known him,' said Norman Augustine, chief executive of Lockheed Martin, a friend of 25 years."

An article called "Spy Finance and the Black Budget" by Robert Dreyfuss, in the *American Prospect*, no. 25 (March-April 1996), said: "Making the case for Lockheed Martin [affectionately called Lock-Mart] was Norm Augustine, a longtime Washington insider. A confidant of CIA directors, Secretaries of Defense, and other officials, Augustine was actually mentioned as a possible successor to former CIA Director James Woolsey (himself an ex-director of Martin Marietta) who resigned in 1994. That move never panned out, but **Augustine remains close with Deutch** who, like Augustine, began his career working for McNamara in the 1960s Pentagon."

If you want to understand what is going on in our country, you'd better pay attention to these people!

This article also states: "Since the earliest days of his career, [Newt] Gingrich has had a close relationship with Lockheed Martin—so close, in fact, that Lockheed Martin officials say they are worried his ties to the company may become a liability." Other quotes: "According to HPSCI [House Permanent Select Committee on Intelligence] staffers, Gingrich was not a passive player during 1995, often involving himself in the intricate details of the intelligence-community authorization process. Not only that, but since the HPSCI is a select committee, all of its members were handpicked by Gingrich, and they serve at his pleasure."

"Over the years, Gingrich has benefitted from the financial support of Lockheed Martin. During the 1993-94 election cycle, Lockheed gave Gingrich the \$10,000 maximum allowed, and Martin Marietta kicked in another \$2,000. In addition, Lockheed contributed \$10,000 to the Progress and Freedom Foundation, the think tank that is closely identified with Gingrich....All of this conferred upon Augustine and Lockheed Martin tremendous clout in the satellite debate." Newton Gingrich, by the way, was born Newton McPherson.

This article mentions that John Deutch, a chemist from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and now head of the CIA, and Secretary of Defense William Perry, had such conflicts of interest with Lockheed and other companies that they "...had to receive a special conflict-of-interest waiver from then-Defense Secretary Les Aspin." Perry, a mathematician, built a company called ESL Inc. and Perry along with Deutch and Paul Kaminski, the undersecretary of defense for acquisitions and technology, own part of Cambridge Research Associates of McLean, Virginia, a company in which they make money by selling technology to themselves in the government at taxpayers' expense ("the troika denies any conflict of interest", then admits conflict of interest by issuing themselves special exemptions!).

Charles R. Smith wrote: "PowerScene, a three-dimensional mapping program used by DOD and the CIA, is built by Cambridge Research Associates based in McLean, Virginia. CRA, however, is owned by DOD Secretary William Perry, CIA Director John Deutch and DOD under secretary for acquisition and technology Paul Kaminski. It is odd that the Defense Department and the CIA are buying software from companies owned by the heads of the Defense Department and the CIA."

[&]quot;...However, the ethical question of selling something as a contractor to the very same government organi-

zation you are an employee in is not in play for anyone else. It is illegal for Federal employees to do so. It is illegal for military folks to do so. Yet, these three have waivers."

The 16 members of the HPSCI supervise the National Reconnaissance Agency, the National Security Agency, and other U.S. intelligence agencies, although there is a smokescreen covering who is really supervising who.

Augustine, after graduation from Princeton, became program manager and chief engineer at Douglas Aircraft. Douglas Aircraft was parent to the RAND Corporation. Augustine joined Martin Marietta in 1977, was Undersecretary of the Army for two years, and is on the board of directors of companies such as Proctor & Gamble, Riggs National Corp. (Paul Cushman, CEO of Riggs, died in the Ron Brown plane crash), and the New American Schools Development Corp. He is also chairman of the Red Cross and executive vice president of the Boy Scouts of America.

Speaking of the Red Cross, remember that the Red Cross is in charge of the nation's blood supply (for instance, they have exclusive rights to conduct blood drives at military installations). Is that bit of information important? You bet it is.

WILLIAM JAMES PERRY

Many people are beginning to "wake up" and have started taking a closer look at our politicians, judges, and other crooks in high places. Overlooked, however, have been our scientists. I strongly suggest you begin to take a look at the scientists, the people, the names, the education, the specialties, and so on of the people who develop our weapons, our spy satellites, and other modern technology. We hear that "scientists" have developed this or that, but those scientists have names. They have educations, backgrounds, specialities, and they like to brag about their projects. If you want to learn about a project, check out the people involved.

Recently, it was revealed that the National Reconnaissance Office had "lost" over \$2 billion (the exact amount is classified—now why would they do that?). Congress was so upset that they asked Secretary of Defense William Perry and CIA head John Deutch to do something. So Perry and Deutch fired the head of the NRO, Jeffrey Harris, and replaced him with Keith Hall, one of their own.

Solved that problem, didn't they. Now let's see, Janice Shields wrote an article about Corporate Welfare called "Marietta-Lockheed Subsidies" (25 April 1996) which said: "Defense Secretary William Perry and his deputy, John Deutch, were employed as consultants by Martin Marietta before joining the Pentagon and have close personal relationships with Martin Marietta Chairman Norman Augustine....Last year, Perry and Deutch, reacting to an appeal by Augustine, secretly reversed the Pentagon's 40-year ban on reimbursing expenses related to defense company acquisitions and mergers so that Martin Marietta could get \$330 million in federal payments in connection with the acquisitions of defense subsidiaries...."

Hmm. What are these secret reimbursements? She also wrote: "U. S. taxpayers (via the Defense Dept.) will pay \$31 million of the \$92 million in bonuses for top officials of Martin Marietta Corp. and Lockheed Corp." By "top officials" she means Perry and Augustine, right?

Didn't we just read above that "Making the case for Lockheed Martin [affectionately called Lock-Mart] was Norm Augustine, a longtime Washington insider. A confident of CIA directors, secretaries of defense, and other officials, Augustine was actually mentioned as a possible successor to former CIA Director James Woolsey (himself an ex-director of Martin Marietta) who resigned in 1994. That move never panned out, but **Augustine remains close with Deutch** who, like Augustine, began his career working for McNamara in the 1960s Pentagon." This same article said: "Builder of billion-dollar spy satellites and launchers, the Bethesda-based Lockheed Martin is by far the nation's largest intelligence manufacturer, absorbing all by itself more than half of the estimated \$7 billion budget for the National Reconnaissance Office, according to a former senior intelligence official."

Let's see, I'm trying to understand this. The NRO has an unaccounted for \$2 billion surplus (the \$6 billion figure is supposed to be secret). Half of what the NRO gets goes to Perry's and Augustine's companies. So Congress gets upset and tells Perry to do something, so he fires the head of the NRO and puts his own man in charge. He re-arranges the companies, and charges for it. Shields wrote: "Pentagon spokesperson Ken Bacon claims that, under existing law, companies can apply for reimbursement of certain costs for consolidation. He denies that the government is paying a \$1 billion 'subsidy'." Oh, brother. Oh, Big Brother.

William Perry is one person who needs to be watched very closely. He is, after all, our Secretary of War, now called Secretary of Defense. *The New High Ground*, p. 125, tells of Perry praising the new Global Positioning System (GPS) and telling of trials where craft could land or drop bombs with precision, even at night and flying totally blind, relying only on the GPS. Perry was Under Secretary of Defense for Research and *this was in 1980*, just before the helicopters were defeated by a "dust storm" when they invaded Iran to rescue the embassy hostages (Operation Eagle Claw). The first NAVSTAR GPS satellite was launched in 1978, although we already had navigation satellites. Five NAVSTAR GPS satellites were in orbit by 1980. Yet the Operation Eagle Claw assault helicopters got lost in a desert dust storm. Rockwell International, the maker of the NAVSTARs, said the satellites would be used to guide missiles to their targets. The NAVSTAR GPS control center is at USAF Space Command at Falcon Air Force Base, Colorado Springs, Colorado. The city of Dallas, Texas, currently uses GPS to keep track of its city buses, yet we hear of military planes and helicopters getting lost and accidentally straying across borders and such, not to mention all the civilian craft that lose track of where they are. We are told the Air Force cannot afford GPS equipment in all its planes, yet Dallas busses can afford them. They must charge a horrendous bus fare.

In the late 1970s when General George Keegan was warning of the advances the Russians had made, Perry was at the Pentagon working to arrange the nuclear first strike against Russia, what Dr. Beter called NUCLEAR WAR ONE. Earlier *Fire From The Sky* and Dr. Beter writings told of the American Bolshevik socialist Zionists, working with their Soviet counterparts, who did their best to get us into a nuclear war. Names mentioned included Kissinger, Harold Brown, Brzezinski and such. The co-chairman of the American Security Council was Senator Bob Dole, who appears to be part of the Bolshevik socialists. The Secretary of Defense in the mid-1970's was James Schlesinger and the head of the CIA was William Colby. A name from that period, right-hand man to Harold Brown, that is now prominent is our Secretary of Defense, William Perry.

About this time the Undersecretary of the Air Force and former head of NASA's Ames Research Center was Hans Mark, who was born in Germany. Perry was Undersecretary of Defense for research, engi-

neering, and acquisition. One of his assistants was Seymour L. Zeiberg, who was in charge of space systems research and development. Perry became "right-hand man for research and development" to Harold Brown. Remember that Harold Brown's father was born in Russia. "Brown and Perry, in conjunction with all the military services, were preparing to embark on a crash effort to come up with newer, much smarter, one-shot, one-kill PGMs (Precision-Guided Munitions) that indeed held promise for revolutionizing warfare." (*War In Space* by James Canan, Harper & Row, 1982, p. 58.)

Working with Perry to develop PGMs was the chairman of the Defense Science Board and vice president for technical operations of Martin Marietta Corp., Norman R. Augustine. Augustine's group developed the Copperhead and other PGMs. Augustine and Perry supervised the development of stealth aircraft and "In August 1980, the Pentagon went public with some details of new technologies that presumably will permit penetrating bombers to remain 'invisible' to enemy antiaircraft radars until too late for the radar-controlled missiles to strike them. Such aircraft armed with PGMs would be devastating" (*War In Space*, p. 71).

Perry's job at the Pentagon was to decide who got the money, which meant he decided which weapons and systems were funded and which were not. This gave him tremendous power. War In Space says: "He [Perry] was a product of the 'black', the secret, side of the business, which means, in the main, electronics, OPTICS, and PHOTONICS, all threaded into the space connection and the weapons that shoot from afar" (emphasis mine). When you think lasers, holograms, and related technology, think Perry.

When President Carter canceled the B-1 bomber production program on June 30, 1977, he specified the cruise missile as his preferred alternative. For cruise missiles to work, they have to have very accurate and up-to-date maps. This became one of Perry's specialties, as he was in charge of the Defense Mapping Agency (DMA). He began projects of taking high-resolution photographs by reconnaissance satellites and encoding them in digital form. The key satellite at that time for this purpose was the Keyhole 11, a super-secret program until information about it was given to the Soviets in 1978 by William Kampiles (see earlier information in *Fire From The Sky*). The KH-11 had the ability to take detailed photographs, encode them digitally (and "doctor" them if necessary) and transmit them back in digitized, encoded form. Some may be interested in knowing that this same technology was used on NASA's *Voyager 2* encounters with Saturn and Jupiter.

Perry also began projects to develop the SA-X-10 surface-to-air radar-guided missile, with a goal of deploying it by mid to late 1980s. The X-10 is still in the news lately, disguised as a one-step-into-space missile to replace the Space Shuttle.

In 1979, the Defense Science Board under Harold Brown and William Perry formed a task force of fifty-three scientists to determine the situation with particle beam weapons. "The scientists agreed that the Russians were indeed weaponeering particle beams, and were probably five to seven years ahead of the United States in their workings." (*War In Space*, James Canan, p. 158.)

Dr. Peter David Beter tried to warn the American public and leadership about what was going on, but only a few listened. One who did listen to Beter was Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, Air Force General George S. Brown.

GENERAL GEORGE S. BROWN

On August 19, 1976, after President Gerald Ford made his nomination acceptance speech, he invited Ronald Reagan to come to the speaker's platform and say a few words. Reagan said: "We live in a world in which the great powers have poised and aimed at each other horrible missiles of destruction—nuclear weapons that can in a matter of minutes arrive in each other's country and destroy virtually the civilized world we live in. And suddenly it dawned on me: Those who would read this letter a hundred years from now will know whether those missiles were fired."

Dr. Beter, in one of his audio letters (#16) said of this speech, QUOTE (emphasis mine):

It is no coincidence that nuclear missiles came to Ronald Reagan's mind as he looked at the waters off the California coast. We had been in telephone contact with one another since August 11, and he knew all about the Soviet underwater missiles when he said those words of warning I just quoted. But most of his audience never realized what he was driving at, thanks to the total absence of any other clues about the Soviet threat from the Government or the major media. So the fate of our beloved nation, and therefore of the whole world, rested during the month of August 1976 in the hands of those who heard my charges and acted on them.

Here is what happened: During August the United States Government came under steadily mounting pressure from people like yourself all over the world who sent copies of my tapes, relayed my charges, and demanded action. The first sign that this was beginning to take effect came on August 14, 1976. On that date I learned that a secret code name had been assigned to the Soviet Underwater Missile program. However, action to remove the missiles still had not been approved, and was not going to be approved unless such action was forced by public opinion. Meanwhile the first concrete action in the August Missile Crisis of 1976 was taken—not by the United States, but by Canada.

On August 17, 1976 the Canadian Navy had found the Crescent Beach missile near Vancouver, B.C., but lacked the capability to retrieve it. Prime Minister Trudeau, receiving no cooperation from the United States Government at that time, called Soviet Charge d'Affaires Nikolai Makarov in Ottawa and demanded that the Soviet Union itself come and remove the missile. And remove it they did. On August 25 the Vancouver area was visited by three Soviet ships—two destroyers, the *Sposobny* and the *Gnevny*; and a tanker called the *Ilim*. Rear Admiral Vladimir Varganov arrived aboard one of the ships, using this 'good will' visit as a cover. By the following afternoon, Canadian divers confirmed that the missile was gone.

Meanwhile Great Britain had also begun taking serious action in order to rid herself of the 12 underwater missiles and bombs ringing the British Isles. On August 18, 1976, Prime Minister Callaghan called a special Cabinet meeting at 11:00 A.M. London time. Present were the First Lord of the Admiralty, the First Sea Lord of the Admiralty, and several Fleet Commanders. The purpose of the meeting was to listen to my monthly AUDIO LETTERS Nos. 14 and 15 which had gone to England by diplomatic pouch. They already knew that my information was accurate because of the Soviet missile discovered the previous day in the waters near Vancouver, so the Royal Navy wasted no time in taking action. By August 27, 1976, all but one of the missiles had been removed; and that one, too, was retrieved shortly thereafter.

By late August the United States was at last taking action too, prodded into it by still-building public

pressure. For once President Gerald Ford acted on his own, over-ruled Rockefeller agent Henry Kissinger and gave the go-ahead for the Soviet bombs and missiles surrounding the United States to be removed.

Having been unleashed at last, the United States Navy worked fast, acting on the information in my monthly AUDIO LETTER No. 15. By the evening of August 26, 1976, seven of the Soviet weapons in our waters—six missiles and one hydrogen bomb—had been removed; and by August 31, 1976, the waters along the American coastline had all been cleared. At this point the threat to the United States that I had spelled out last month had been eliminated at last, using the very information I had made public. But the Government in general, and the Military in particular, were still under heavy public pressure; and under the assumption that the Soviet threat was now over and done with, they chose a technique which has become standard practice in Washington today. It's called "plausible denial"—a particular type of bureaucratic double talk. The Joint Chiefs of Staff and the United States Navy had just completed an operation to remove the missiles around our country, a job potentially so hazardous as to defy imagination. In short, they had done their duty; and the Navy especially deserves our thanks for accomplishing their task without anyone being hurt.

They should be acclaimed as heroes, and our whole nation should be rallying behind them with justified pride. But, my friends, in the nightmare world of step-by-step surrender to the Soviets called "Detente", it doesn't work that way. Even our Military leaders are so thoroughly hemmed in by the "One-World" web that the only way that they can do their duty in the face of such a Soviet threat is to hide the fact that they are doing it. And so, as soon as the missile removal operation had been completed around our shores, "plausible denials" of my charges began being issued by the United States Military. This began on August 31, 1976, when Vice Admiral B. R. [Bobby] Inman, Acting Director of the Defense Intelligence Agency, answered an inquiry sent to the Secretary of Defense Rumsfeld weeks before by Senator Harry F. Byrd, Jr. of Virginia. Admiral Inman's letter gives a number of arguments as to why any prudent government, including the U.S.S.R., would presumably refrain from planting such missiles and bombs in our waters. But the real crux of his plausible denial letter is the following sentence, quote:

"There is currently no evidence indicating the Soviets have placed underwater nuclear devices, including missiles with multiple warheads, within the territorial waters of the United States." Technically, Admiral Inman was telling the truth, because as of August 31, 1976, when he wrote this letter, all of the evidence—the missiles and bombs—had been removed from our waters; but the impact of his letter, if read casually, would seem to be that my charges never had been true!

By the same token, General George S. Brown, Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, wrote me the following day on September 1, 1976. His letter has been photocopied and sent all over the world by the Pentagon. I will now read it in its entirety:

"Dear Dr. Beter:

Your recent tape report alleging that Soviet nuclear warheads and hydrogen bombs have been planted in the coastal waters of the United States has been brought to my attention. I have investigated these assertions and find not a shred of truth to any of your statements in this regard. Let me assure you of this country's capability to detect any such aggressive actions by the Soviet Union or any other world power.

We stand ready to evaluate and comment in advance on any such information you may acquire in the future which impinges upon the vital issue of our national security.

Sincerely, George S. Brown General, U.S.A.F."

The seeming impact of General Brown's letter, read casually, is that my whole story about the missiles was a fake. But the real key, once again, is the word "find" (present tense). Furthermore, in the last sentence, General Brown actually signaled me that the door would be open if I acquired more such information; and by the time his letter reached me, I had more such information because as I said before, the Soviet Union is not giving up.

Topic #2—On the afternoon of September 7, 1976, I received General Brown's letter of September 1, which I just read you. Ironically, I also learned on the same day, September 7, that "round two" of the Soviet Underwater Missile Crisis was just beginning. Three underwater missiles were now threatening Los Angeles, and San Diego was once again targeted by an underwater missile close by. Accordingly I answered General Brown's letter as follows:

"Dear General Brown:

Today I received your letter of September 1. I fully understand the position you are taking at this time; however other governments have not taken your position. They know the truth, I know the truth, and so does President Ford; and the truth is that during the month of August 1976 a surprise Soviet nuclear attack of world-wide proportions has been partially averted.

Make no mistake, the huge build-up of Soviet nuclear missiles on land and in the sea world-wide, continues to be a clear and present signal for an imminent surprise attack of immense proportions. In 1962 we had a Soviet Missile Crisis in Cuba; in 1971 we had the Soviet Missile Crisis in Canadian and United States territorial waters which was kept from the American people; and now once again, in 1976, the world is experiencing yet another Soviet missile crisis. The world must know of the courage of President Ford as Commander in Chief in moving aside unbelievable obstacles in order to begin to meet the Soviet challenge last month.

In your letter you state that, quote:

'We stand ready to evaluate and comment in advance on any such information you may acquire in the future which impinges upon the vital issue of our national security.'

In view of this and the urgency of the situation, I respectfully request to meet with you privately in your offices within the next ten (10) days. At that time I will present evidence of the validity of all my charges, and under specific conditions I will advise you of other strategic locations of Soviet nuclear missiles planted in our coastal waters and elsewhere of which you may not be aware and which constitute a clear and present danger to our national security.

Sincerely yours,

Peter Beter"

Shortly after my registered letter reached the Pentagon, Navy Captain Sidney V. Wright, Jr. called on behalf of General Brown to arrange a meeting with the General. We agreed on meeting in General Brown's offices at 3:00 P.M., Thursday, September 16. An associate accompanied me to the meeting as a witness; and promptly at 3:00 P.M. the meeting began with General Brown and Captain Wright, who tape-recorded the meeting with my consent. In spite of the public posture which he has so far had to maintain, General Brown told me that he had overruled his staff in order to meet with me; and although he couched many of his comments with considerable care, our discussion lasted for well over an hour without interruptions, without telephone calls, and without any cutoff because of time.

I gave General Brown a special tape for his ears only, revealing the locations of 48 new missiles threatening the United States, and within two days the United States Navy was already at work removing them. In addition, General Brown made three commitments to me, and I made one to him.

To fulfill my own commitment, I sent the following registered letter to him on September 17, 1976:

"Dear General Brown:

Thank you for affording me the opportunity to meet with you in your offices yesterday for over an hour. During our conversation I mentioned that the Soviet nuclear device which was removed from Seal Harbor, Maine, had been taken to a location near Otis Air Force Base on Cape Cod, Massachusetts, and that it was still there as of the time of my meeting with you yesterday afternoon. You requested that I provide you with details about its location.

The facts are that the Seal Harbor nuclear device was in the process of being retrieved by the United States Navy late Saturday, 28 August 1976, and was on the beach at Seal Harbor waiting transportation by the afternoon of 29 August. That evening it left Seal Harbor by truck, which took it to an airport at Augusta, Maine. On the afternoon of 30 August the nuclear device was flown from Augusta, Maine, to Otis Air Force Base, Cape Cod, where the airplane touched down at 17:13 EDT, 30 August 1976. From Otis Air Force Base this nuclear device was transported to a remote location on the west side of Buzzards Bay. For over two weeks the device stayed in that location, which is between one and two miles east of the small town of Marion, Massachusetts, on a small peninsula, the tip of which is known as Butler's Point. The coordinates are: 41-42-0 North, 70-43-30 West.

The Seal Harbor weapon remained there until about 2200 EDT last night, 16 September 1976; but then less than six (6) hours after my meeting with you yesterday afternoon, it left this location. As of today, this weapon is in a new location about 24 miles west of New London, Connecticut, with the approximate coordinates: 41-19-0 North, 72-31-0 West.

If I had not known about this latest move, the result would have been an echo of your letter to me of 1 September 1976, in which you state that you, quote 'find' no evidence to support my charges. Your letter of 1 September 1976, of course, was written 43 days after I first made my charges and only hours after the Soviet missiles had all been removed by the United States Navy.

Sincerely, Peter Beter"

My friends, General Brown is laboring under the handicap of an Intelligence gap created by none other than Secretary of State Henry Kissinger. Allied Intelligence sources inform me that they have become gunshy in sharing some of the information they give me with the official Intelligence community of the United States because **invariably Kissinger betrays it immediately into the hands of the Soviet Union.** Large segments of the United States Intelligence establishment are so independent that they do not consider themselves accountable even to the President. Instead they work under the direction of Henry Kissinger, who owes his power to the four Rockefeller brothers and who also works in the interest of the Soviet Union.

Of course many of our Intelligence people are still patriotic and loyal to our country and they are doing everything they possibly can to protect our nation. Through their efforts the Joint Chiefs of Staff first learned about 90 days ago that missiles and bombs had been planted in American waters by the Soviet Union; but due to the Intelligence gap, they were unable to obtain complete information about them. Only when I publicly revealed this information last month, did they obtain it; and even then had I related to them privately instead of making it a public issue, Kissinger would still have been able to block any action to remove them.

The signs of our growing Intelligence gap are all around us. A few years ago the United States was believed to be far, far ahead in multiple warhead technology for missiles; yet as far back as 1971, as I revealed in monthly AUDIO LETTER No. 14, short-range Soviet missiles with multiple nuclear warheads were found in our own waters.

A few years ago no real threat in naval aviation was anticipated from Russia, but two months ago, July 1976, the first Soviet Aircraft Carrier *Kiev* entered the Mediterranean through the Bosporus Straits, boldly violating the 1936 Montreux Convention as it did so; and instead of the stubby little aircraft the Pentagon had expected, the *Kiev* carries sleek advanced aircraft comparable to the American F-4 Phantom with the additional capability of vertical take-off! And the Soviets are building at least four more carriers like the Kiev. It is now in the North Sea to bolster Soviet air power, which is a weak spot in that area for them.

The military philosophy of detente as expressed to me by a very high military official is, and I quote: "We watch what they're doing, and they watch what we're doing, and that's good. It prevents miscalculations." But, my friends, this means we are in a perpetual war game with all of our lives at stake; and because of the Intelligence gap that now exists, a miscalculation cannot be prevented. Instead, it becomes inevitable; and with it THERMONUCLEAR WAR.

Topic #3—Yesterday, September 24, 1976, Secretary of the Navy J. William Middendorf II delivered a very important briefing at the News Media luncheon of the **American Security Council** [co-chaired by Sen. **Robert Dole**] held at the Army-Navy Club here in Washington. He spoke of things that every American should be alerted about, but the major news media treated it as a non-event. The *Baltimore Sun* and the *Washington Star* carried stories which dealt with splinters from Secretary Middendorf's speech but missed the basic thrust of his comments. The *Washington Post* and the *New York Times* and the rest of our major media said nothing at all. Here at home another attempt to warn the American people

has so far been muffled and silenced!

But half a world away, Radio Australia did give Secretary Middendorf's speech the attention it deserves—and they did not miss the point. Here is what Radio Australia had to say at 8:00 o'clock this morning EDT, quote:

"A warning that the growing strength of the Soviet Navy has created an emergency situation for the United States has been sounded in Washington by the Secretary of the Navy, Mr. William Middendorf. He also said that the emphasis being placed by the Soviet Union on Civil Defense has another ominous trend.

Mr. Middendorf said the Soviet Union now has 345 submarines, many of them nuclear-powered and armed with missiles capable of hitting every city in the United States. In contrast, the United States has only 169 submarines. Mr. Middendorf said that it is evidence by the Soviet Union that the 40,000-ton Kiev-class Aircraft Carriers, with four more believed to be under construction, was another ominous change for the near future. Mr. Middendorf said that while the Soviet Union was producing submarines and warships by leaps and bounds, the United States Navy had been almost cut in half to 474 ships over the past six years."

Is the Secretary of the Navy crying "Wolf"? I submit he is not, knowing what we know. In International Law, mining the harbors of another country is an act of war. The Soviet Union has already invaded our territorial waters, not merely with mines but with hydrogen bombs and multiple-warhead nuclear missiles. By contrast, we have placed no such weapons around the Soviet Union—so the actions already taken by the Soviets are acts of war and pure aggression.

As I say these words, an undeclared submarine war is going on between the Soviet Union and the United States in the waters surrounding our country. So far it is still at the stage of maneuvering for attack on the part of the Soviets, who now have nearly half of their submarine force surrounding the United States. The challenge before us now is to prevent this from escalating into all-out war, as planned by the Soviet Union. To do this, we must all understand what we are up against.

As I explained several months ago in monthly AUDIO LETTER No. 13, WAR DOES NOT JUST HAP-PEN! It is planned and triggered deliberately by those whose lust for power is more important to them than the lives of their fellow men. Conspiracy and double-cross are standard practice in such things. The threat of nuclear attack by the Soviet Union that hangs over us right now is tied directly to a three-way power struggle involving the Rockefellers on one side, the Soviet Union on the other, and in the middle Henry Kissinger who serves both sides! (END QUOTE FROM BETER.)

Later, Beter wrote, (quoting:)

On September 16 I gave General Brown a list of 48 new sites around the United States where missiles and bombs have been planted during the first two weeks of September. Two days later the United States Navy was fast at work picking them up, and by now has removed practically all of them; but we pick up one and the Soviets lay down another.

Using their missile-laying submarines, the Soviets have planted seven more missiles in new locations around the United States since my meeting with General Brown. As of yesterday afternoon, the United States

Navy had already found and removed two of these new ones—one northeast of Vero Beach, Florida; the other southeast of Jacksonville, Florida.

As of today, four of the other five are still in place in the following locations: Near Miami, Florida, at: 25-19-0 North, 80-12-50 West.

In the southwest end of Pamlico Sound, North Carolina, at: 35-4-20 North, 76-30-20 West.

In the northeast end of Pamlico Sound about 20 miles south of Kitty Hawk, North Carolina, at: 35-40-0 North, 75-38-50 West.

And near Valdez, Alaska, at: 60-51-50 North, 147-5-0 West.

The other new missile was planted Sunday night, September 20, 1976, near Bloodsworth Island in Chesapeake Bay at: 38-12-25 North, 76-11-55 West, but is now being removed.

The Bloodsworth Island missile is a special case, and I will have more to say about it in a moment. Before I do that, though, it is important to mention a diabolical new trick the Soviet Union is now trying in an effort to confuse the United States Navy long enough to replant enough missiles in our waters for an attack. Some sites which have been cleared by the United States Navy are now being used to replant new underwater missiles very close to the exact location used before. The Soviets anticipate that when these locations are given to the United States Navy they will be entered on the Master Plot in use by our Navy, and at that point it will of course be noticed that the new report corresponds to a location where a missile has been removed. The natural assumption would be, therefore, that such a new report was simply a repetition of an earlier report and was now out-of-date. If this happens, the new missile will be overlooked and will not be removed. Just to make sure, however, the Soviet Union is placing the new missiles just far enough from the previous location to prevent our Navy from discovering them by anything less than a complete new search of the area.

As of approximately noon yesterday, I can confirm two new missiles which have been newly planted at old locations this way. One is near Gulfport, Mississippi, at: Latitude 30-17-20 North, Longitude 89-18-25 West.

The other is near Mobile, Alabama, at: Latitude 30-38-40 North, Longitude 87-59-0 West. Both of these sites are almost identical to the ones which I gave to General Brown on September 16 and which had been cleared by September 21.

A moment ago I mentioned a new underwater missile that was planted last Sunday night, September 20, in Chesapeake Bay near Bloodsworth Island, which is about midway between Baltimore, Maryland, and Norfolk, Virginia. The small missile-laying submarine installed the Bloodsworth Island missile at 10:30 PM EDT, and then headed back south toward Norfolk, Virginia. As of 10:00 AM the following morning, Monday September 21, this small submarine with at least one more thermonuclear weapon on board, was close to the mouth of Chesapeake Bay, but had stopped and was playing possum on the bottom. Its location was about 10 miles northeast of Norfolk, Virginia, at: Latitude 37-6-20 North, Longitude 76-7-10 West.

Upon receiving this information, I immediately called General Brown's office and relayed this information to Captain Sidney V. Wright, Jr.

Here was a chance for the United States Navy to catch one of the Soviet missile-laying submarines red-handed. By the time you hear this, the Bloodsworth Island missile planted last Sunday night by this submarine will be gone, thanks to the action now in progress by the United States Navy; but as of now, the submarine is still there. This Soviet missile-laying submarine will stay there, complete with its cargo of mass destruction, until our Navy pulls it up and takes it away because, my friends, the small Soviet submarine now resting on the bottom of the Chesapeake Bay has become a tomb for its crew. Something went wrong with its power plant, and now the Soviet crew is dead. The sub itself, still loaded with nuclear weapons, has now become a gigantic mine in the waters near the biggest Naval concentration in the United States, and so it will remain unless and until it is removed by the United States Navy.

My friends, the threat of war from the Soviet Union has never before been as great nor as imminent as it is now. But I remain firmly convinced that, even now, a shooting war can still be prevented. Our fate remains in YOUR hands; but now I believe more than ever that the American people, when told the truth, are equal to the task. Congressmen and Senators write letters to President Ford or Henry Kissinger and get no satisfactory response; but YOU, you opened the door for communication between General George S. Brown, who heads our country's military establishment, and myself, and I thank you from the very bottom of my heart.

Now I ask you to get behind General Brown in the same way. This is more important than I can express, because General Brown, handicapped by the Intelligence gap created by Henry Kissinger, is confronted by many opposing forces within the federal government who, unlike General Brown, are not loyal to the United States.

As soon as you finish listening to this tape, I ask you, PLEASE, to send a letter, telegram, or Mailgram to General Brown expressing your support. It took great courage from the standpoint of his own career for General Brown to see me at all, yet he overruled his staff in insisting upon doing so. And under General Brown's command, with the approval of President Ford as Commander in Chief, the United States Navy has acted and has so far been able to fend off the intended surprise nuclear attack by the Soviet Navy.

Send your letters and telegrams to: General George S. Brown, Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, Washington, D.C. 20301.

Thank him for seeing me, thank him for taking action, and tell him you are behind him. By doing this, my friends, YOU can help strengthen Gen. Brown's hand against those who would rather see inaction or outright surrender to the Soviet Union. Remember: YOUR VOICE COUNTS.

If God will grant us the time and the wisdom to do so, I believe the war which is now so close can still be averted; but I would not be honest if I did not urge you to take such precautions as you can for your own protection in the event war does come. The Soviet Union has a massive Civil Defense program to enable it to survive nuclear war. No such preparations have been made in the United States except for the so-called "Federal Relocation Arc", a network of 96 virtually bomb-proof underground cities in which many of the Government officials, who have betrayed us into war, will be able to ride it out in safety and comfort.

So the rest of us, who are considered expendable, are left to fend for ourselves. [End quoting of this tape]

In a later audio letter, Beter said, (quoting:)

Here are my topics for today: Topic #1—RED FRIDAY AND THE CAMPAIGN TO DESTROY GENERAL GEORGE S. BROWN. Topic #2—THE SWINE FLU COVER-UP FOR CHEMICAL WARFARE NOW UNDER WAY. Topic #3—THE PHANTOM ELECTION OF 1976.

Topic #1—Last month, in monthly AUDIO LETTER No. 16, I reviewed for you the events that had taken place in the Soviet Underwater Missile Crisis since recording AUDIO LETTER No. 15 in early August. As I pointed out, Air Force General George S. Brown, Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, had so far played a crucial role in preventing a Soviet surprise attack on the United States, thanks to the actions taken by American Armed Forces under his command. In August he had obtained the go-ahead from President Ford, as Commander in Chief, to seek out and remove the Soviet underwater missiles in our coastal waters. A remarkable achievement, because Ford had to overrule Rockefeller agent Henry Kissinger in giving this order!

Using the navigational coordinates I revealed in my August tape, the United States Navy was able to remove all the Soviet missiles in our territorial waters during the latter part of August. On September 1, 1976, with the threat presumed to be over, General Brown wrote me a letter, which was widely publicized, seemingly dismissing my charges, but actually opening the door for communication between us.

On September 7, I had information about a new round of missiles that were being planted by the Soviets. I wrote General Brown to request a meeting, and on September 16, 1976, I met with him at the Pentagon in his office for well over an hour. During that meeting I gave him the navigational coordinates for 48 new Soviet missiles threatening the United States and Canada from locations in our territorial waters—and again he ordered prompt action by the United States Navy to start removing them. But as I warned last month, the Soviet Union is not giving up; and on top of that, General Brown confronts terrible opposition WITHIN the federal government! So I asked you to express your support for General Brown to strengthen his hand for our country's benefit.

Now you can begin to see why. On October 17, 1976, selected excerpts from an interview with General Brown were leaked to the press a week prior to publication. These comments, taken out of context, made it appear that General Brown was disparaging certain of our allies; and instantly General Brown was at the center of a storm of controversy. General Brown is being criticized now for remarks in a six-month-old interview which was rejected for publication then, yet has magically surfaced now! Certain individuals have arranged for the story to be made public at this time as an indirect means of attack that obscures the facts. The real reason for efforts to get rid of him is his dedication to our country's defense.

What is happening now to General Brown is standard practice in Washington today. The idea is to get something on someone, anything, that can be made to look bad by the media, and put it in his dossier for future use. Thus a dark cloud is always handy later on in case it is needed to blackmail, or destroy, or intimidate someone.

In General Brown's case, he was set up with this particular cloud by none other than his boss, Secretary of

Defense Donald Rumsfeld, who was the CIA contact man in the White House and is still a CIA operative now.

Last spring a political writer and cartoonist drew a cartoon of Rumsfeld, and Rumsfeld called him to ask if he could have the original. The political writer agreed, and it was also agreed between them that Rumsfeld would get Brown to give the political writer an interview. The interview was not used at that time, six months ago. Even when General Brown was questioned intensively by the Senate two months later when his confirmation for a second two-year term as Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff was being decided upon, the interview still did not emerge. But now, after helping prevent thermonuclear war for over two months, by doing his duty Brown is in hot water.

The Rockefeller Brothers are making a desperate effort to put things right back on track with the Soviet Union, and they have decided that Brown must go, as part of the price of reinstating so-called detente. The controversy now surrounding Brown is intended to build up until he resigns, is dismissed, or loses his influence and credibility. This is totally unrelated to the election, contrary to appearances.

In this situation, it is more important than ever that you show your support for General Brown. His enemies are trying to bring him down by means of a battle he must fight with both hands tied behind his back. If he were to publicly reveal one word about the Soviet missile crisis and his role in combatting it—in other words, the real reasons for his present troubles—General Brown could be instantly dismissed, court-martialed, and imprisoned! And speaking out, he would be rewarded with personal disaster; and the major media, under the thumb of the gang of the Four Brothers, would then pull out all the stops in a campaign to discredit whatever he said so that no one would believe it. By the same token, if Senate Bill No. 1, promoted by Attorney General Levi, had passed earlier this year, I, too, could be imprisoned for telling you the truth about the Soviet missiles aimed at you because, my friends, this information is classified "Top Secret", not because the Government wants to keep anything from the Soviets, they know all about their own offensive weapons planted in our waters—it is YOU that the Government wants to keep in the dark for their own protection, not yours!

Even if you have already written to General Brown to express your support, I urge you to do so again by letter, telegram, or Mailgram. My good friend Mr. Edward Durell, an industrialist who lives in Berryville, Virginia, is urging his associates to write their Congressmen showing their support for General Brown, and to send a copy of each letter to:

General George S. Brown Chairman, Joint Chiefs of Staff Grant Avenue, Fort Myer Arlington, Virginia 22211

I think this is an excellent suggestion, and I urge you to do the same. You may want to write to both of your Senators too, and send copies to General Brown as well. Just address your letter to:

Congressman (or Senator) so-and-so House (or Senate) Office Building Washington, D.C... The zip is: 20515 for the House Office Bldg. 20510 for the Senate Office Bldg.

The controversy over General Brown, my friends, is only the most visible part of a terrible reversal in our country's fortunes that has occurred this month. The turning point came on October 1, 1976, a "RED Friday" for the United States of America. That was the day that President Gerald Ford caved in to pressure from the Rockefeller-Soviet-Kissinger team.

Two closely related events took place on October 1, 1976: One was the appearance in the *Washington Post* of a story by Woodward and Bernstein, no less, that the Watergate Special Prosecutor's investigation of President Ford was (quote) "serious". The story, complete with big headlines, shook the Stock Market, where rumors circulated that Ford was about to step down. But, most importantly, Ford himself was given a clear signal that swift political destruction awaited him if he did not play ball with the Rockefellers. Originally, Nelson Rockefeller had arranged for the Watergate-related investigation of Ford as a means of forcing Ford from office and in putting himself in position as "Acting President" under the *25th Amendment* to the *Constitution*; but due to the Soviet Missile Crisis, that scenario has been scrapped because the Watergate Prosecutor's investigation was used instead to apply pressure for a different purpose.

That different purpose had to do with the second major event that took place on Red Friday, October 1—the visit to the White House by Soviet Foreign Minister Andrei Gromyko! It was reported that Gromyko's reception at the White House was the coolest it had ever been since Ford became President—and no wonder. When Gromyko told reporters afterward that he and Ford, quote: "spoke of the most cardinal issues", he was deadly serious. He was referring not to SALT talks or the Middle East but to the threat of war between the Soviet Union and the United States.

When I recorded monthly AUDIO LETTER No. 16 last month on September 25, the second round of Soviet underwater missiles, whose locations I had given to General Brown during our meeting on September 16, had practically all been removed by our Navy. But the Soviets were already beginning to plant a third round of these missiles, using the missile-laying mini-subs I described last month, which are specially designed to elude detection by our coastal sonar defenses.

As of September 25, one of these Soviet mini-subs was resting on the bottom of Chesapeake Bay near Norfolk, Virginia. A mishap had killed the crew, so the mini-sub was resting there like a giant nuclear mine in American waters waiting for the Navy to recover it. Meanwhile over 142 Soviet submarines were deployed in attack positions along the East, West, and Gulf Coasts of the United States. During those last few days of September there were growing indications that the Soviet missile crisis might actually break out into the open for all to see, just as it must do if the Soviet plans for nuclear attack world-wide are to be stopped.

For example, a speech which I mentioned last month delivered on September 24 by Navy Secretary William Middendorf used the word "emergency" three times to describe our present naval plight, and concluded his speech in the words, and I quote:

"Our concern today is the future. The ominous words of Admiral Gorshkov and the cold steel of his ships tell us that we are in an emergency situation right now. Something must be done. The threat is real, and the choice is ours. We must make the right decisions now while we have these few precious moments of

freedom left, or be willing to suffer the consequences."

Then on September 27, 1976, the Norfolk, Virginia *Ledger-Star* newspaper published an article by reporters Garland Bradshaw and Jack Kestner who had flown to Washington on September 23 to interview me about my charges of Soviet underwater missiles. The article did exactly what honest journalism is supposed to do. It exposed the readers of the Ledger-Star to the fact that I have charged the Soviet Union with planting offensive nuclear weapons in our territorial waters, and did so in a fair, objective way. They did not try to convince their readers either to believe or disbelieve my charges, but included background information on both sides as available from their own sources. The important thing is that the *Ledger-Star* reported fairly about my charges to a readership that can be considered an expert audience about such things, since the Norfolk area is the biggest naval concentration in the United States.

Yes, things were beginning to break into the open—but then came Red Friday, October 1. President Ford and White House aide William Hyland met with Gromyko, Henry Kissinger, and Kissinger's State Department Counselor, Helmut Sonnenfeldt. Gromyko demanded that the Soviet Union be permitted to sneak into Chesapeake Bay to recover their dead missile-laying mini-sub near Norfolk. In return for that, Gromyko said the Soviet submarines deployed at battle stations along our coasts would disperse. Kissinger and Sonnenfeldt counseled Ford to agree to this offer by Gromyko as a reasonable and sound compromise. As always, Ford was confronted with the standard Kissinger option: "Do you want peace? Or war?" And on top of that, Ford knew that the Watergate-related political time bomb was all set to go off if he resisted, and so he caved in and agreed. Blackmail and threats won the day for the Soviet Union!

The same day, Henry Kissinger pressed his advantage and also induced Ford to issue a secret Presidential Order to the Military: from that day onward to flatly deny all my charges when asked about them. In other words, they are now under presidential orders to lie in order to keep the truth about the Soviet missiles from the public. This blackout on the Soviet missile story is not for the purpose of avoiding a confrontation with the Soviets, because that has already occurred; and it is not for the purpose of buying time while we get into a better military posture. Since Red Friday, October 1, the third round of Soviet missiles, which have been newly planted around our country, are still there! The blackout, my friends, is only to keep YOU in the dark.

This situation here stands out even more boldly when compared with the behavior of some of our allies who are now alerted to Soviet plans. Ironically October 1, 1976, the day President Ford caved in to the Soviet Union, was the same day that the Irish Navy successfully concluded a naval confrontation with the Soviets on the high seas. A huge Soviet fishing trawler, so called, was caught operating illegally inside the Irish 12-mile limit near Cork Harbor the previous day, and the Irish fishery protection vessel, *L. E. Grenay*, went after the trawler to make an arrest. The trawler fled into international waters, but the Irish vessel gave chase, brought the trawler to a halt by firing warning shots across her bow, and sent a boarding party aboard. The Soviet Captain was totally uncooperative, but the Irish sent reinforcements, and ultimately had more than 50 men aboard the Soviet ship. The Soviet trawler entered Cork Harbor under arrest with the Irish boarding party still aboard, and accompanied by two Irish naval vessels. It was correctly reported by the *Cork Examiner* newspaper for Friday October 1, 1976, that, quote:

"The confrontation was regarded as the biggest and potentially most dangerous that the naval service has faced in its history of fishery protection."

The Irish were prepared to apply whatever force proved to be necessary to arrest the intruding Soviet ship. And why? Because Cork Harbor itself is one of the locations from which a Soviet underwater nuclear weapon was removed by the Royal Navy in August, using information in my monthly AUDIO LETTER No. 15. The Irish now know, quite simply, that no intruding Soviet ship is to be trusted.

But here in the United States the Soviet Navy was allowed to intrude into our waters Monday night, October 4, under the RED FRIDAY AGREEMENT reached between Ford and Gromyko in the White House. At approximately 10:00 PM local time the Soviets retrieved the dead mini-sub from its position on the bottom of Chesapeake Bay outside Norfolk, operating under cover of darkness. The missile-laying mini-sub left the Norfolk area that night in Soviet hands—and with it went what may have been our only chance to learn the details of the technology of the mini-subs and their sonar-defeating system so that we could begin defending ourselves against them. At the same time we lost a golden opportunity to galvanize the whole world into standing with us against an all-out common foe, the Soviet Union, by announcing the capture of the mini-sub, displaying it on television, and revealing what the Soviets had been doing with these subs.

If our country were run today by civilians of integrity, honor, and courage who were trying to serve the people of the United States of America instead of trying to merge our lives with that of the Soviet Union, such a thing could have been done. Swift action could have been taken to do this after I first notified the Pentagon of the presence of the mini-sub near Norfolk on Monday, September 20; but NO, that's not the way it works today. All opportunities for the United States to act sensibly for the good of its people must be suppressed, sabotaged, thrown away. Only in this way can we be ground down to such a low level of life that the goal of the *White House Merge Directive* can finally be achieved. That Directive, in existence for decades, is to the effect that our lives are to be so altered that they can be comfortably merged with life in the Soviet Union.

By the following day, the Soviet submarines at battle stations along our shores had dispersed, as agreed; but within a few more days they were back again—and they are there now. They are not, at this time, deployed in the precise patterns that they were in a month ago, which indicated readiness for an immediate attack, but they are present in international waters just off our shores in great numbers. As of October 11, 1976, 164 Soviet submarines were on station in the waters near Canada and the United States, including Hawaii; and the situation has not changed significantly since then.

Since Red Friday, October 1, I have been cut off from contact with General Brown, and none of the Soviet underwater missiles in Canadian and American waters have been removed since that day. As of now, 50 Soviet nuclear missiles and bombs are planted in American territorial waters plus the three (3) missiles in the Gulf of Panama whose coordinates I gave last month. In addition, seven (7) missiles are now planted in Canadian waters, whose coordinates I have already given to Canadian Intelligence.

My friends, there will be no effort by the United States Navy to remove the nuclear missiles in our waters unless it is forced by a new surge of public awareness and demand for action, because Nelson Rockefeller's wife arrived in Moscow and on October 12 delivered a personal letter from Nelson Rockefeller to the Kremlin. In this hand-delivered letter Nelson Rockefeller made the following pledges to the Kremlin on behalf of the "Gang of Four", quote:

"There will be no further harassment of your submarines, nor will your underwater missiles and bombs be taken up. The credit squeeze by banking circles will be lifted. You will not be required to sell gold. We will send gold for products delivered. American know-how, grains, and food stuffs will continue to be provided. You must reinstate the 'NUCLEAR SAFE ZONE' agreement."

The coordinates of all the Soviet weapons now in American territorial waters have been transmitted to a number of reliable men in the United States Intelligence community, except for the newest missile, which was planted three days ago in Delaware Bay, at: 39-39-35 North, 75-32-20 West. Action will therefore be possible if the Military can once again be free to do its job.

At least Great Britain, which had 29 new Soviet nuclear weapons in her waters as of October 11, 1976, is taking action once again to get rid of them. By October 22, four days ago, the Royal Navy had removed all but 10 of them, and is still fast at work. As for Latin America, all the missiles I revealed last month are still there with two exceptions—British Honduras and Guatemala were targeted by one missile each, but these have now been removed.

Our controlled major media tell us nothing at all about the Soviet missile threat that is ready to engulf us in thermonuclear war, but instead divert our attention to the case of the Navy F-14 fighter that plunged off a carrier deck into the North Sea six weeks ago on September 14, 1976. Great attention is being given to the F-14, and we are being fed all sorts of lies that the Soviet MiG-25 Foxbat flown to Japan by a defecting pilot is hopelessly inferior to the F-14. But the Soviet Navy hasn't even bothered to try to retrieve the plane. They already know all about the F-14, and it doesn't worry them.

As for the Phoenix Missile which separated from the F-14 when it hit the water, the Soviets know where it is too, but have not yet picked it up. The Phoenix Missile is resting on an underwater plateau far to the south-southeast of the point where the F-14 was found. The coordinates of the Phoenix Missile are: 61-26-6 North, 1-23-16 West.

And so, my friends, the great war game continues. Our Armed Services are allowed to participate in NATO and other training exercises, but are forbidden by Rockefeller hired hands from doing anything about the real life-and-death threat now lurking within our own territorial waters. We are being made sitting ducks for attack; and, in fact, we have already been attacked by the Soviet Navy because on October 3, two days after Red Friday, the Soviet submarines along our East, West, and Gulf Coasts performed an experiment in radioactive chemical warfare with all of us as the guinea pigs.

Topic #2—On October 5, 1976, just as the so-called "SWINE FLU" inoculation program was getting under way, news reports suddenly told us that we were experiencing fallout from an alleged Chinese atmospheric nuclear blast on September 26. Oddly enough, the initial reports about this came from the East Coast, especially Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Delaware, and Connecticut; but certain areas of the Pacific Northwest were soon mentioned as being affected too. We were told that radioactive iodine-131 was showing up in milk at various locations; but we were also assured, as we invariably are whenever any radioactive hazard appears, that there was really no danger.

In the days that followed we continued to hear about the supposed Chinese fallout, but other things probably seemed even more worrisome. For example, elderly people began dying of heart attacks shortly after taking swine flu shots, causing widespread alarm at first. But the Government quickly assured us that

their deaths didn't really matter at all, that they would have died anyway; and the swine flu inoculation program went right back into high gear.

And then there were the strange outbreaks of an unknown "mystery illness" at electronics plants in western Pennsylvania, Ohio, and Oregon. The employees, most of them women, experienced headaches, nausea, stomach pains, difficulty in breathing, a feeling of being intoxicated in some cases, and even fainting spells. This time the swine flu vaccine could not be the culprit because the victims had not received it. Instead, some were worried that the swine flu itself had struck. Others remembered, with a shiver, the equally mysterious "Legionnaires' Disease" that had sickened nearly 200 people in Philadelphia and killed more than two dozen of them two months earlier.

My friends, there is actually no mystery at all behind these developments and more like them that you can expect to see. All of these cases I have mentioned are man-made and deliberate, but those who are responsible for them are neither telling you about them nor leaving clues that will be found in normal medical investigations of these episodes. We in the United States are now under attack in a campaign of experimental testing of chemical warfare weapons so that they can be employed later on with precision and devastating effect against us in full scale war—that is, if we let it happen.

For years all the major countries of the world have been in a continuing race against time to discover ever more sophisticated forms of bacterial and chemical weapons, some of them amounting to doomsday weapons capable of destroying all life on this planet. Only mad men would even consider using such weapons, but only mad men deliberately cause wars for their own greedy purposes, too—and war is very near at hand right now.

A few years ago a nerve gas called sarin was perfected in a facility in Colorado. [Update: this is the gas that was supposedly used by the Tokyo "cult." See more below.] A tiny amount escaped, and two shepherds and their 7000 sheep were killed. In response to the public outcry that resulted, a statement was issued that the Chemical Warfare Service had destroyed the sarin gas and was no longer doing such research—but that was a lie. Experimentation still continues today on all kinds of such poisons, and at a furious pace.

As of right now, many hideous lethal ailments can be inflicted on whole populations as operational weapons. These include black plague, smallpox, meningitis, dysentery, gangrene, yellow fever, tetanus, botulism, typhus, hepatitis, Bang's disease, and Q fever. Thirty grams of Q fever is sufficient to infect over 150-million people, and it is considered especially convenient since any individuals who are to be saved in such an attack can first be immunized against it! Such selective immunization could easily be done, for example, under the cover of a mass inoculation program like the swine flu program.

Q fever, though, is mild by comparison to a nuclear gas called AP-7 which is being manufactured in Uruguay and Argentina by American and European subsidiaries of Rockefeller-controlled conglomerate corporations. Two thimblefuls properly distributed could kill 180-million people; and one pound, all life on the face of the Earth. Unless and until these hideous weapons are unleashed on the Earth, they remain in a condition in which they can be destroyed and neutralized; and it is essential that they be destroyed instead of just being handed around from one agency to another, as Senator Frank Church permitted last year in his shellfish toxin shell game. But other types of chemical and biological weapons are also of great interest

to weapons researchers which can be used in more selective ways or to produce lower-order effects than the poisons I have just described.

The Soviet KGB, which works hand in hand with the Rockefeller-controlled CIA, now has access to whole families of such chemical weapons which can be adjusted in exact dosage and formula to produce a variety of effects on victims. These were and are intended for use as part of the program to eliminate effective opposition by the people of the United States to the planned Rockefeller dictatorship here in America and our conversion into the most valuable of all slave nations for the Soviet Union.

Before these new weapons can be used with confidence though, they must be tested, and that testing is going on now. As a cover for the periodic episodes of strange illnesses that will occur here and there around the United States while this testing is going on, the trumped-up swine flu threat was developed.

On March 24, 1976, President Ford announced his proposal for the unprecedented nation-wide inoculation program supposedly to fend off the strange swine flu virus. To this very day not a single case of swine flu has been confirmed anywhere in the United States since President Ford's announcement. [End quoting of this tape]

Later, Beter said, (quoting:)

Because the plan now underway requires that military support be arranged for the new Dictatorship, it was essential that General George S. Brown, Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, be neutralized as I said he would be in monthly AUDIO LETTER No. 17. General Brown played a pivotal role in preventing a Soviet nuclear surprise attack on the United States during August and September 1976; but that will not happen again, my friends. The campaign which began in October 1976 to render General Brown ineffective in his efforts to protect America has now succeeded. He is no longer able to influence events to any significant extent. That is why when Carter demanded on January 12, 1977, that studies be performed toward eliminating 75% to 80% of our Intercontinental Missiles, General Brown simply agreed to have the studies done. Can you imagine?

My friends, now that we have lost General Brown, there is no one left in the entire United States Government to help us. There are still many patriotic individuals in the Government, of course, but they are not the ones in positions of power. Only massive public pressure—informed, angry, and determined—now has any chance of stopping the carefully-planned war to kill millions of us and enslave the rest. Every one of us must work to bring about public awareness and pressure in whatever time we have left. But suppose we do not succeed—then what?! I believe the time has come to face that question squarely and honestly. (End quoting)

What happened was that the press dug up a quote from an old speech Brown made at Duke University in 1974 in which he said that the Israeli lobby had too much influence in the American government. Israel ordered the ADL to go to work on Brown, and the media began a smear campaign. He was relieved of his command, and General Jones, a boot-licker, was brought in to replace him.

Here is more from Beter, (quoting:)

Now I must tell you what has happened to General Brown as a result. For many months now I have been cut off from direct contact with General Brown; and in recent months General Brown has seemed like a completely different person than in the past whenever he appears in public. In place of the outgoing personality which has been General Brown's trademark in the past, there is nothing but resignation and acceptance of the dictates of his civilian superiors. The change has been so dramatic that it has even been commented upon by syndicated columnists, who are mystified. What has happened to General Brown, my friends, is known to very few. I myself have been able to confirm it only within the past few days. General George S. Brown, the nation's top military officer, is now virtually under house arrest. This is exactly the same kind of confinement that was meted out, for example, to Army Lieutenant William Calley during his court martial for the My Lai massacre in Vietnam. But there are two differences in General Brown's case. First, there has been no court martial. Instead, he is living under the threat of a court martial, for its twisted evidence and perjuring witnesses have already been assembled. Second, General Brown's isolation at the Pentagon and confinement to his Fort Myer residence are not absolute. Instead, they are interspersed with very carefully controlled appearances at official functions, since his absence from these would quickly arouse suspicions that something was terribly wrong. Now, should General Brown attempt again to step out of line and defy those in high places by giving orders to remove the missiles, doing his Constitutional duty, the suspended threat of court martial would instantly come crashing down upon him. By means of the elaborately doctored and falsified evidence I've already mentioned, General Brown would be railroaded into certain conviction for treason for doing his duty. Already alleged statements by General Brown have been published recently to make him appear to be a dangerous man. Were General Brown to be courtmartialed with falsified evidence, it would destroy him personally. It would also prevent his efforts from producing any benefits to America—such as a resumption of the removal of Soviet nuclear missiles from our waters. Any such orders of his would be rescinded; and his courtmartial would be used to make any attempts by him to warn America useless, by destroying his credibility.

As long ago as October, 1976, just a month after my meeting with him, General Brown was given a powerful demonstration of the ability of his enemies to crucify him publicly. As I discussed that month in Audioletter No. 17, a six-month old interview of General Brown was dredged up and used to subject him to intense public embarrassment and criticism. A few alleged statements of his from the interview were made public and played up by the controlled major media to such an extent that he was forced to make a public apology on nationwide television. Can you imagine? All of that for a few relatively insignificant comments which, if he really made them at all, had attracted no attention six months earlier. This episode had just one purpose—to prove to General Brown that if the falsified charges of treason should ever be leveled at him, he would have no chance at all either to defend himself or to do a service to America. His only recourse now would be to himself publicly demand a court-martial, but even that would not be successful without a massive outpouring of public support for him ahead of time—and that, my friends, has so far been denied him to the everlasting shame of our entire nation. Should General Brown come to any physical harm, the responsibility for it will rest squarely on the shoulders of David, Nelson, Laurance, and John D. Rockefeller III; but meanwhile, he's a secret captive, keeping millions of Americans reassured that all is well merely by his presence on the scene. Whenever a public or official appearance or statement by General Brown is called for, it's arranged and carried out under the watchful eyes of a heavy escort, although this is not always apparent. Otherwise the openness, the accessibility, and warmth that has always distinguished General Brown among newspaper reporters is now gone. He's a virtual prisoner at the Pentagon, held practically incommunicado except for the carefully controlled communications and

appearances I have already mentioned. As soon as this Audioletter is released, you can expect to see things happen that may seem to disprove what I am telling you—for example, General Brown may become more visible publicly for a while. It is even conceivable, though highly unlikely, that this might even be carried to the point of having General Brown publicly deny that he has come under any new restrictions in recent months as the result, say, of the unfavorable publicity he received some months ago. Should that happen, keep in mind that General Brown is now a prisoner of war, imprisoned by the enemies within our own midst; and we've already seen many examples of the kinds of things American prisoners of war are forced to say for propaganda purposes....

On July 10, 1977, General Brown was taken to CIA headquarters near Washington, D.C., in Virginia. There he was taken to one of the many secret rooms designed into the CIA building by Nelson Rockefeller. The room was a laboratory, and the attempt was made to create a robotoid replacement for General Brown. The techniques employed were far more crude than those used in the Russian process since the CIA process required General Brown to be on the scene. The attempt ended in complete failure. A crude facsimile of General Brown was generated but it refused to come to life. Even so, General Brown could not be allowed to live because now he knew too much; and so on the evening of July 10, 1977, General George S. Brown, the last great patriot in the United States Government, was MURDERED.

A normal human "double" was found for General Brown since a robotoid attempt had failed. This was the man who testified in the role of General Brown at the Congressional hearings on the Panama Canal Treaty, September 27, 1977! At his side throughout, briefing and prompting him, was the Secretary of Defense, Harold Brown. Occasionally the "double" would be flustered by a question and looked down at the table in front of him until the Defense Secretary whispered something in his ear. Then he would look up again, say what he had been told, and so on. Once the Panama Canal hearings were out of the way, the "double" for the late General Brown was seen as little as possible in public. Soon there were stories that he had contracted cancer. Then the Air Force Chief of Staff, General David Jones, began acting as Chairman of the Joint Chiefs months before the end of General Brown's tour of duty. In June 1978 we were told that General Brown was retiring, and last December 5, 1978, we were told that he had died of cancer. At that point the General Brown "double" collected his pay and headed for Frankfurt, West Germany, where he landed on December 11, 1978, at 3:30 AM local time. It is a standing rule that "doubles" for important people never live long, and so at about 7:30 that evening General Brown's "double" was shot to death in the back of the neck. (End quoting from Beter.)